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businesses should be supported, so t hat
they may employ their funds to perhaps
provide further employment.

However, as the Minister commented In
his second reading speech, this measure
will cost the Treasury some $4.4 million
over a full year, and that in itself Is
commendable. The only reservation I ex-
press Is that I hope the $4.4 million which
will be lost to the coffers of this State will
not need to be raised by some other
method. In other words, I would not like
to see a situation where the Government
introduces a measure which will save a
certain section of the community some
$4.4 million a year and then, somewhere
along the line, because of the withdrawal
of funds by the present Federal Govern-
ment or some future Government. the Gov-
ernment is forced to Impose Increased taxes
In other areas.

Let us hope that does not occur and
that this Bill will provide relief to the
small businessmen, and is welcomed by
industry generally. I hope this small action
will go some way towards making ad-
ditional funds available to private Industry
so that more people may be employed.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by

the Hon. N. McNeill (Minister for Justice),
and passed.

LICENSED SURVEYORS ACT
AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 10th Novem-

ber.
THlE HON. LYLA ELLIOTT (North-East

Metropolitan) (3.15 p.m.]: This Bill In
effect proposes five changes to the parent
Act. The first Is the abolition of the articled
pupilage system and, In view of the 75
per cent failure rate in examinations
quoted by the Minister in his second read-
Ing speech, It Is about time this was done.
The second change is the requirement of
a university degree or equivalent quali-
fication from a tertiary Institution before
a person may enter the surveying profes-
sion. The third change is that a member
of the board shall be drawn from the
teaching staff of an educational institu-
tion conducting a course in surveying. The
fourth amendment to the Act seeks to
increase the penalties provided for off-
ences to $1 000 under the Act and $100
under the regulations. The fifth amend-
ment seeks to amend the definition of
"institute" to provide for a change In the
name of the Institution of Surveyors.

Representatives from my party have
discussed this legislation with the presid-
ent and former president of the inistitu-
tion, and they have assured us they are
very happy with the proposed changes.
They support them and, In fact, have been
seeking some of them for years. There-
fore, the Opposition Intends to fully sup-
Port the Bill.

Question put and Passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by

the Hon. N. E. Baxter (Minister for
Health), and passed.

THE PRESIDENT: I will leave the Chair
until the ringing of the bells.
Sitting suspended from 3.19 to 4.03 po.

House adjourned at 4.04 p.m.

Iurioqhatturp AatwmblIg
Thursday. the 11th November, 1976

The SPEAKER (Mr Hutchinson) took
the Chair at 2.15 p.m., and read prayers.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
Postponement

THE SPEAKER (Mr Hutchinson): I
advise that, as usual, questions will be
taken at a later stage of the sitting.

BILLS (6): INTRODUCTION AND
FIRST READING

1. Superannuation and Family Benefits
Act Amendment Bill.

2. Acts Amendment (Judicial Salaries
and Pensions) Bill.

3. Parliamentary Superannuation Act
Amendment Bill.

Bills introduced, on motions by Sir
Charles Court (Treasurer), and
read a first time.

4. Legal Aid Commission Bill.

5. Legal Contribution Trust Act Amend-
ment Bill.

Bills introduced, on motions by Mr
O'Neil (Minister for Works), and
read a first time.

6. Police Act Amendment Bill.
Bill introduced, on motion by Mr

O'Connor (Minister for Police), and
read a first time.
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HER MAJESTY'S THIEATRE
Acquisition by Government: Petition

MR BRYCE (Ascot) [2.22 P.M.]: I pre-
sent a petition bearing 1 418 signatures,
which reads as follows-

To the Honourable Speaker and
Members of the Legislative Assembly
of the Parliament of Western Austra-
lia in Parliament Assembled.

We, the undersigned residents in the
State of Western Australia do herewith
pray that Her Majesty's Government
of Western Australia will acquire Her
Majesty's Theatre and upgrade it to a
standard acceptable to patrons and
performers and provide a drama
theatre and drama workshop theatre
to a standard acceptable to patrons
and performers: that these matters
be regarded as essential to the cultural
health and well being of the people of
Western Australia as measured against
national and international standards:
that these matters be treated as urgent
and that they be implemented accord-
ingly.

r certify that this petition conforms with
Standing Orders.

The SPEAKER: I direct that the Petition
be brought to the Table of the H-ouse, and
in so doing I advise the member for Ascot
and, indeed, all members that it Is the
custom to inform the Speaker or the Clerks
prior to the presentation of petitions in the
H-ouse.

.The petition was tabled (see paver No.
5431,

DEATH DUTY ASSESSMENT ACT
AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands--

Treasurer) [2.25 p~m.1: I move-
That the Bill be now read a second

time.
This is the last of the measures for re-
ducing taxation which I foreshadowed
when introducing the Budget.

It is one of the most important Bills
to come before Parliament in the current
session because of the wide interest which
has been displayed in death duty, not
only in this State but also throughout
Australia.

This legislation Is brought before the
House in consequence of the policy under-
takings given by the Government to-

review the whole system, with special
regard to the burdens imposed and
the equity of the law;
provide a time payment system of
duty in hardship cases: and
institute a system of adjustments
where shares are sold at a loss.

As part of the implementation of the
policy undertakings, the provisions in this
Bill propose substantial further relief from
the burden of death duties imposed on
the family situation.

Although it has not yet proved possible
to introduce a single authority to levy
death duty, as both the Commonwealth
and State Governments still remain in the
field, it has been possible completely to
review our existing legislation.

Members will recall that when hionour-
Ing our undertaking to remove the pro-
visions which imposed duty on arrange-
ments mnade to protect family farms and
faily businesses, I advised the 'House
that in reviewing the Act we would seek
expert advice. We have been fortunate
in obtaining help from Professor M. C.
Cullity, who is the Professor of Law at
the York University in Canada.

Professor Cullity, while visiting this
State, made a study of our current death
duty legislation and, therefore, is familiar
with its contents. Apart from this, he is
regarded as an expert in the field of
legislation imposing taxation on deceased
estates. Many of the proposals contained
in the Bill now before members are based
on the advice he has given to us.

The amendments in this Bill may be
conveniently divided under-

policy undertakings and government
proposals;
removal of anomalies, ensuring equity
and consistency and clarifying the
existing law.

I shall explain the amendments falling
under each heading in turn.

The most important proposal under the
first heading is the provision to increase
the allowances for surviving spouses and
Orphan children.

In assessing the amount of death duty
to be paid, the commissioner determines
the aggregated value at the date of death
of all of the assets required by the law
to be included in a deceased estate.

From this figure is deducted the aggre-
gate amount of the deceased's liabilities
at the same date, thus producing a net
value. To this net value, if there were
no allowances, would be applied the ap-
propriate rate of duty as laid down in
the taxing Act.

In 1970 this State introduced a system
of allowances for the surviving spouse
and dependent children, where these per-
sons are beneficiaries of an estate.

The reason for selecting the spouse and
dependent children for a special allowance
was that widows left with dependent
children, or orphans, are the persons in
most need of relief from taxation.

These allowances are deducted from the
net value of the estate before the scale
of duty is applied and so the beneficiaries
either are relieved of the obligation to pay
duty or the duty payment is reduced.
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In 1970 the allowance for a surviving
spouse was $10 000 with lesser allowances
for dependent children. These allowances
were increased in 1973 to $20 000 for a
surviving spouse. $10 000 for each de-
pendent child and $20 000 for an orphan
child.

In this Bill it is proposed to raise the
level of allowance for a surviving spouse
to $50 000 and the allowance for an orphan
child to $35 000.

I should point out that under the Ys-
tern of assessment adopted in this State,
the effect of the allowances not only is to
benefit the surviving spouse and the
children; It also produces a benefit to other
family beneficiaries not In these specified
categories.

This occurs because, as a result of the
deduction of the allowances, a lower rate
of duty is applied to other family bene-
ficiaries who do not qualify for the z110w-
ante.

These are adult children, grandchilren
other Issue or dependent Parets. I ak
this point particularly, because tere seems
to be some misunderstandin aout the
application of exemptions and deduction
in Western Australia, compared with the
other States. Members will find on re-
search that our system is much more
beneficial than those in most other States.

I understand that the system of assess-
ment which operates in other States does
not produce this concession but leaves the
beneficiaries not receiving the spouse con-
cession, on the samne high rate of duty as
they would be if there were no spouse con-
cession. That, of course, is the key to
the reason for our benefits to be better
than those in most other States.

The effect of the new level of conces-
sion can be illustrated in simple examples.
Let us assume that an estate comprising a
house in joint tenancy, a car, some invest-
ments and a bank account, less the half
share of a mortgage on the house and
other liabilities, gives a net estate of
$85 000.

1 should mention in Passing that this is
well above the average net value of es-
tates assessed in 1975-76. Last year the
average value was a little under $24 000.

At a net figure of $65 000, where the
estate is all left to the widow, no duty
will be payable because the allowvance pro-
posed will reduce the estate to a figure
of $15 000 and the duty table for the im-
mediate family does not impose any duty
until the net value exceeds $15 000. if
there are, say, two dependent children,
the net estate would need to exceed $85 000
before any duty is payable. I emnphasise
that we are referring to net estate, and
not gross estate.

In the unfortunate event of both parents
dying, leaving the two dependent children
as beneficiaries, the estate in our example
would again attract no duty.

As I mentioned when introducing the
Budget, the proposed level of spouse
allowance will exempt about 90 per cent
of deceased estates from duty where the
whole of the estate Is left to the surviving
spouse.

This goes a long way towards our
objective of complete spouse to spouse
exemption and gives increased duty re-
ductions to other immediate family bene-
ficiaries where the whole estate is not left
to the spouse, but some bequests are made
to them.

During the last few years both the
Government and the Commissioner of
State Taxation have received representa-
tions for the spouse allowance to be ex-
tended to unmarried persons who are
living together on a bona fide domestic
basis. In the Bill now before the House
is a Provision to grant the allowance as
requested in the representations received.

In order to qualify, the persons con-
cerned must have lived together for at
least three Years immediately before the
death of one partner, unless there is a
child from the union, in which case no
Qualifying period is necessary.

Another Policy amendment contained in
this measure is a Provision to permit the
payment of duty by instalments, where
payment in a lump sum would result In
severe hardship. Although the Act at
present permits the commissioner to accept
duty over a Period and the department
has never forced the sale of an asset to
pay duty, there are cases where persons
have encountered hardship in the pay-
ment of duty.

This perhaps has arisen because they
were not aware of the help the depart-
ment can extend or they were uncertain
of the result of an application.

In order to ensure as far as possible
that taxpayers are aware of the assistance
which can be given and to Place it on a
formal basis, detailed provisions rzl2Ung
to this form of relief are contained in this
Bill.

This provision is to enable a taxpayer to
apply to the Treasurer for approval to
pay the duty over three years subject ti)
the production of evidence of hardship
and will require the lodging of the appli-
cation and information within prescribed
periods.

Among its announced Policies, the Gov-
ernment undertook to introduce a system
whereby taxpayers could apply for relief
when they had sold shares at a lower
figure than that at which those shares
had been assessed in a deceased estate.

The need for a provision of this kind
has arisen from fluctuations in the
economy and other factors which have
depressed the value of some shares to
such an extent that the deceased estate
has suffered considerable loss when the
shares have been sold shortly after death.
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The loss is bad enough but it Is even
worse when the unfortunate beneficiaries
have to pay duty an a value they did not
receive.

For these reasons a provision to allow
application to the commissioner for a
reassessment In genuine cases is included
in the Bill now before the House.

The proposed new section requires
application to be made within 14 months
of the date of death and is restricted to
the actual loss on the sale of securities
incurred within 12 months after death.

The provision has been drafted to cover
all marketable securities quoted on a
recognised stock exchange because not only
can a loss be sustained on shares but also
on other securities such as debentures.

The proposal sets out the factors which
the commissioner Is to take into account
in determining the loss on sale and limits
adjustment to assessed duty to cases where
that adjustment is $100 or more and ex-
ceeds 10 per cent of the value of the
marketable securities sald.

Adjustments for smaller sums would
result In expenditure by both the taxpayer
and the department of more than the
value of the adjustment.

The final Government proposal for a.
change in concessions embodied in the
Bill concerns the section which permits
the Treasurer to defer the payment of
duty.

Under the existing section, where an
estate consists mainly of a dwelling house
which is occupied by the surviving spouse
and the net value of the estate is less
than $50 000, the Treasurer has power to
defer the duty.

This usually is done where immediate
payment would cause hardship and pay-
ment of duty is generally deferred until
the death of the surviving spouse or until
the Property is sold.

It is proposed to raise the limit on
the value of the estate to $100 000 and
extend the deferment to cases of all de-
pendent relatives, including the surviving
spouse.

The Increase is broadly In line with the
Increase In the spouse allowance and the
extension will enable this form of assist-
ance to be extended to a brother and sister
situation and other arrangements involv-
ing relatives of the deceased, provided
they were financially dependent upon hIm.

The proposed changes in the law to re-
move anomalies, ensure equity, for .zon-
sistency and for clarity, have been based
largely on the advice of the expert opinion
of our consultant to whom I referred
earlier.

For these purposes, amendments are
proposed to-

(a) Remove powers of appointment
from the definitions dealing with
gifts and settlements because

these are dealt with under sep-
arate provisions and inequitable
results could flow from assessing
properties subject to powers on
appointment In this way.

(b) limit the scope of the existing
provisions dealing with powers of
appointment to ensure that the
properties subject to these powers
will be assessed only where the
deceased donor held a beneficial
Interest.
This is to prevent the assessment
where the deceased had an inter-
est merely arising from his pro-
fessional fees and other remunera-
tion as trustee and also to ex-
elude any ex gratia payments he
may receive from the donee of
the Power.
As the law now stands, there
could be a very inequitable result
If property in which the deceased
had none other than a. fiduciary
Interest was brought to assess-
ment on his death.

(c) Revise the provisions for assessing
assurance policies on the de-
ceased's life which have been kept
up for the benefit of another and
annuities and other Interests pro-
vided for others by the deceased.
The revision Is to place the assess-
ment of these benefits on a com-
mon basis which is consistent,
ensure that on the grounds of
equity any consideration for their
establishment or upkeep is de-
ducted before asessing and to
spell out clearly the method of
calculation of the amount to be
assessed.
The existing law is open to in-
terpretations which could produce
anomalous results.

(d) Provide for the application In all
cases of the section which author-
ises the valuation for assessment
purposes of substituted properties
in settlements.
Settlements are dealt with in two
provisions but only one is subject
to the substituted properties pro-
vision.
This is Inconsistent, therefore an
amendment is proposed so that
all settlements will be treated In a
uniform manner.

(e) To provide clear descriptions of
the time and method cf valuing
properties held as joint tenancies
or tenancies in common.
The present sections lack zlarity
on these points and this could
give rise to difficulties and argu-
ments.
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(f) To ensure that in the case of As a result of these amendments, there
settlements and trusts, where the
deceased retains an interest, that
the Interest is described as a
beneficial one.
This is to prevent assessment
where the interest is fiduciary
only and to Preserve a consistent
description of these Interests.

(g) 'To provide that notional assets
may be assessed only once in the
same estate.
Many of the provisions dealing
with notional assets are fairly
wide in character and it would be
possible to assess a notional asset
under more than one heading.
Although this has never been
done, there should be a section to
prevent it.

(h) To ensure that a girt made by
allowing a debt or other right to
become Statute barred and, there-
fore, irrecoverable, is included in
"gifts inter vivos" for assessment.
provided this happens within
three years of death.
Although this has not happened
to date, there should be a provi-
sian to cover this situation.

(i) Revise the provision dealing with
evasion of duty by use of policies
of assurance and annuities.
As it stands, the provision would
be difficult to enforce and is wider
than necessary.
The redraf ted provision limits the
scope of the section, makes clear
its intention, and will be more ef-
fective than the Present law.

(j) Revise the provision which deals
with the value of properties which
have been diminished and the
value of another's property has
been thereby increased as a result
of arrangements made by the de-
ceased.
The revised provision maintains
the Principle embodied in the cur-
rent law but makes clear the time
when the diminished value takes
place and this, for assessment
purposes, is to be limited to within
three years of death.
This Is consistent with the three-
year limitation in other provisions.
The redraft is mainly for clarity
and consistency.

(kc) Revise the Provision dealing with
tax avoidance by use of non-
testamentary dispositions.
The revision is to improve the ef -
fectiveness and clarity of the
provision and to remove any pos-
sibility that it can be applied to
settlements which are covered by
other provisions.

are a number of consequential amendments
included in the Bill and some provisions
are to be repealed because their content is
covered in the revised or other provisions.

Opportunity also has been taken to cor-
rect a minor error and a description
omission in the principal Act.

This concludes my detailed survey of
the legislation now before the House. It
contains substantially increased conces-
sions and is the product of a careful and
expert review of the legislation.

Although many of the provisions to be
amended are not consistently used, they
do contain the anomalies and inconsist-
encies I have mentioned and, in conse-
quence, need to be amended. As a result
we will have, I believe, a better Statute.

There is another matter concerning
death duty legislation on which I would
like to give information to members. When
the Death Duty Assessment Act was last
amended to deal with the provision which
was inimical to the interests of family
farms and family businesses and was re-
pealed in accordance with our policy un-
dertaking, I stated that we would be look-
ing closely at the position with a view to
preventing others from using the life-
governor type of arrangement improperly
to avoid their taxation liability. This we
have done and, as expected, the task has
proved extremely complex.

The Government has found that It has.
as yet, been unable to draft legislation to
close the loophole and at the same time
effectively protect the genuine family busi-
ness, be it a farming or some other kind
of business. Rather than hold up the
benefits to be conferred by this legislation,
the Government decided to proceed without
attempting to close this loophole.

For this reason this Bill does not con-
tain the promised provision. However, if
too many people take advantage of the
situation, the Government will have to
take another look at the problem.

Before I close I would like to refer again
to what I said about death duty when
introducing the Budget. The Increase in
the spouse to spouse allowance contained
in the measure before the House Is but
a first step to full exemption for spouse
to spouse bequests. Naturally the Gov-
ernment would have liked to achieve this
situation immediately but it would have
been financially irresponsible to do so.

The concessions in this Bill will cost no
less than $950 000 in this financial year
and $3 million per annum. when fully
operating. The cost this year, when added
to the other not Inconsiderable Laxation
concessions, reaches the limit to which the
Government may safely go and still pro-
vide the essential services to the com-
munity at the standard it has come to
expect.
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However, as I have already announced.
we have planned and do Intend to achieve,
full exemption for spouse to Spouse be-
quests within the next three years. More-
over, there have been releases stating that
in some of those States that are providing
full exemption in the spouse to spouse
situation, other measures are to be taken
to tighten up their laws to prevent avoid-
ance by use of discretionary trusts, life-
governor arrangements, and the like.

We have taken no action of this kind
so it may well be that, when our pro-
posals, coupled with our more generous
system of assessing duty, are taken into
account, our citizens, In the final analysis,
will be better off.

I invite members to look at this pro-
vision before they start to criticise the
legislation we have introduced, because
there are some rather surprising methods
used in the other States to retrieve iay tax
foregone on the so-called spouse to spouse
exemption.

When compared with other States, West-
ern Australia for many years has had one
of the lowest per capita collections from
death and gift duties in Australia.

The spouse to spouse exemption is only
a first segment in the Government's pro-
gramme to see how practicable it is to
phase out death duty.

Firstly we will keep inflationary factors
well in mind and keep exemptions and
deductions reviewed at short intervals to
preserve existing benefits.

Secondly, we wiUl seek to phase out on
a basis that will not precipitate replace-
ment taxes and charges which, quite
apart from being inflationary in effect.
would result in recurring taxes and charges
to the very people we plan to help mnost:
that is, farmers and family businesses.

Thirdly, any reductions and phasing out
must be in close consultation with the
Commonwealth Government because at
present any reductions we make only in-
crease the duty payable to the Common-
wealth-a situation that no responsible
Government can contemplate.

In summary, the Bill now before the
House contains amendments designed to
improve the equity, clarity, and consis-
tency of the law and provide generous
concessions to lighten substantially the
burden of death duty.

I would like to say, in view of the com-
plexities of this type of legislation, that
if members studying the Bill find they
have any matters they want further clani-
fled before debate is resumed, I suggest
they let me know and I will make sure
they have access, by arrangement, to the
information interpreting the various
clauses. It is not something we can re-
lease on a general basis, for a number of
reasons-some admninstrative and some
which would not be In the best Interests
of the taxing system. However, if any
member who has any misgivings about the

complexities of this measure will let me
know I will take steps to have an explana-
tion made available in order to, perhaps,
facilitate the second reading stage and,
particularly, the Committee Stage. I COM-
mend the Bill to members.

Government members: Hear, hear!
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

Jamieson (Leader of the Opposition).
Message: Appropriations

Message from the Governor received
and read recommending appropriations for
the purposes of the Bill.

POLICE ACT AMENDMENT BILL
Second Reading

MR O'CONNOR (Mt. Lawley-Minister
for Police) (2.49 pm.]: I move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

In a recent court case a charge brought
against a person for addressing a public
meeting in Forrest Place was dismissed.
The charge was laid Pursuant to a pro-
vision of the Road Traffic Code which was
subsequently ruled invalid as being ultra
sires the Road Traffic Act. It appears that
any action taken by way of regulation to
remedy the defect would meet the same
fate and that the only way to ensure that
the courts would uphold validity would
be for a suitable provision to be included
in an Act of Parliament.

Since the proposed legislation is directed
basically at the maintenance of law and
order, it is believed it should be enforced
by the Commissioner of 'Police. It would
seem therefore that the Police Act would
be the most appropriate one to contain
the provisions.

The Bill now before the House provides
that any Person desirous of conducting or
organising a pro cession, meeting, or as-
sembly in any street, thoroughfare, or public
place, must apply, first, to the Commnis-
sioner of Police for approval. The comnmis-
sioner can withhold approval only if he
has reasonable grounds for believing that
the Procession or meeting may occasion
serious Public disorder or damage to public
or private Property, create a public nuis-
ance, or give rise to an obstruction that
might be too great or too prolonged.

In granting approval, the commissioner
may impose such conditions as appear ne-
cessary for the preservation of public
order.

The Bill provides also that any person
who conducts, organises or takes part in
any procession or meeting which has not
been approved by the Commissioner or
who falls to observe conditions laid down
by the commissioner, when granting ap-
proval, commits an offence.

It will be an offence also to address an
unlawful procession, meeting, or assembly
from a private or Public place.

3889



3890 [ASSEMBLY]

A meeting, for the purpose of the amend-
ment. means a gathering of three or more
persons held to discuss matters of public
interest and to which the public or any
section of it is Invited.

Anyone who acts in a disorderly manner
or incites others to do so with the purpose
of disrupting a meeting commits an of-
f ence also.

A further Provision removes an anomaly
occasioned when an amending Bill last
year was changed in the Committee stage.
The Intention had been to remove the
words "rogue" and "vagabond" from all
places where they appeared in the Act.
The Committee stage alteration resulted
in these words remaining in one section
of the principal Act.

This section relates to persons living on
the earnings of prostitution and the error
has left the section without a prescribed
penalty for any person convicted of the
offence. The Bill will remedy this defect.

Thie increase in the distribution and
use of drugs of addiction, such as heroin,
in this State. and indeed, throughout Aus-
tralia, and other parts of the world, is
causing the authorities very great concern.

At a recent meeting in Melbourne of
Commonwealth and State Ministers repre-
senting Customs, Police, and Health, this
problem was discussed at length and all
Ministers agreed with a proposal that
Commonwealth legislation as it relates to
trafficking in drugs should provide for sub-
stantially increased penalties. The matter
is to be considered by the Commonwealth
which has indicated that it will introduce
legislation immediately to allow for a
maximum penalty. I believe Queensland
has made provision for this as well.

Mr Jamieson: That would be good re-
commendation-the black north!

Mr O'CONNOR: I believe even members
of the Opposition wish to see the traffick-
ing in drugs cut back as much as possible.

Mr Jamieson: I do not suggest you should
get examples from the black north.

Mr O'CONNOR: All State Ministers,
with the possible exception of the New
South Wales Minister, have Indicated they
will proceed with similar legislation.

Mr T. H. Jones: How far has the Com-
monwealth legislation gone?

Mr O'CONNOR: I do not know. The
Commonwealth has indicated it will go as
far as we have because moves are afoot
to try to standardise policy. There are
problems in trying to contain drugs in
Western Australia. We have many miles
of coastline and members know how hard
it is to police trafficking in that area.
We have had motor vehicles coming into
the Port of Fremantle with no water in
the battery and no oil in the motor-these
parts were filled with hashish.

We have had people comning from other
countries with suitcases with false bottoms.
and recently we had the case of a girl who
entered Western Australia wearing shoes
with very high platforms. These platforms
contained $30 000 worth of heroin. We all
realise the terrible effect that hashish and
other hard drugs have on individuals and
it is difficult to decide on a penalty which
will be severe enough. We have endeav-
oured to follow the suggestion made
at the last meeting; that is, a penalty of
25 years imprisonment and/or $100 000 fine
for trafficking.

The State Ministers also agreed to seek
approval of their respective Parliaments
for legislation to increase substantially the
maximum penalties for the offence of traf-
ficking in so-called hard drugs in accord-
ance with the. recommendation of the
National Standing Control Committee on
Drugs of Dependence.

It was also agreed that the legislation
should contain provisions enabling seizure
of profits and all property derived from
Illicit drug transactions.

The present
ern Australia
$4 000 and/or

maximum penalty in West-
for trafficking in drugs Is

10 years' imprisonment.

Our legislation already contains a provi-
sion enabling seizure of money and/or pro-
perty from a person when it can be proved
that it was intended to be used in drug
transactions. AS a matter of fact, at the
last conference Western Australia was
commended for being the only State to
introduce this legislation.

It is intended that the maximum penalty
for pedalling leaf cannabis remain as at
present; that Is, $4 000 and/or 10 years'
imprisonment. However, it is intended to
include cannabis derivatives in the in-
creased penalties: that is, hashish, resin.
and similar types of drugs.

Queensland already has announced it is
adopting the new penalties except that it
opts for life imprisonment in place of 25
years' imprisonment.

When consideration was being given to
increasing the penalty for trafficking in
drugs of addiction, penalties for other of-
fences were examined also. For example, it
seems anomalous that persons convicted of
manufacturing or preparing heroin are
subjected to a maximum penalty of impri-
sonment for three years and/or a fine of
$4 000. It has been decided therefore to in-
crease the penalty for this offence to bring
it into line with the new Penalties for traf-
ficking.

I commend the Bill to the House.

Debate adjourned, on Motion by Mr
TI. H. Jones.
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MEMBER FOR ASCOT: ALLEGATIONS
AGAINST A MINISTER OR MINISTERS

Inquiryg by Select Committee: Motion
MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [2.57

P.m.]: Notice having been duly given, I
move-

That a Select Committee be ap-
pointed to inquire into and report upon
allegations made against a Minister or
Ministers of the Government by the
Member for Ascot in the Legislative
Assembly on 9th November, 1976.

A few months ago I was privileged to
travel to London to represent this Parlia-
ment at the Commonwealth Parliamentary
Association seminar. One of the fundamnen-
tal purposes of the existence of the Com-
monwealth Parliamentary Association is
to foster a system of government that is
the envy of many people around the world.
I was impressed there by the decorum and
standard of behaviour in the Mother of our
Parliaments. Many members of this Par-
liament have participated likewise in Com-
monwealth Parliamentary Association con-
ferences and seminars and I ajn sure most
of us in this place believe that the system
we have is one that ought to be fostered
and protected.

The motion that I moved today is to
examine-

Mr Jamieson: That is not a very good
statement, you know. I have known of
punch-ups to occur there and I have never
known of one to occur here in 25 years.

Mr O'Neil: Not in this Chamber.

Mr THOMPSON: There may have been
an odd occasion where a difference of
opinion has resulted in the sort of action
to which the Leader of the Opposition re-
ferred, but basically what I have said about
the Commonwealth Parliamentary Associa-
tion is true.

We have our own system which is known
as the Cabinet system of government.-
From this Parliament 13 members are ap-
pointed-that is. 12 Ministers and the Pre-
mier-to conduct the day-to-day affairs of
Government. It Is important that these
people must be of the highest possible re-
pute. They ought to be completely above
reproach and I believe they are. However.
allegations have been made by the member
for Ascot that that Is not the case, and it
is against that background, Sir, that I
moved the motion.

The other night In this Chamber the
member for Ascot said-and I quote from
the corrected copy of Hansard,-

Some of the members of this Gov-
ernment have in fact grown very
wealthy during their parliamentary
careers through the manipulation of
capital, and these same people-

The Premier then Interjected and said,
"Which ones?" The member for Ascot went
on and said-

In fact, one of them we know very
well has sticky fingers.

Mr Skidmore: Probably had them in
a treacle tin!

Mr THOMPSON: One does not have to
be very bright to know precisely what the
member for Ascot was saying. He was
bringing into disrepute a Minister or a
number of Ministers of the present Gov-
ernment.

The motion I have moved simply affords
the opportunity to the member for Ascot
to prove some base to the allegations he
has made. I want to say at the outset
that it Is not my intention to canvass these
matters which will become the subject of
the Select Committee inquiry, because It
would be quite Improper of me to do so:
as the mover of this motion I would be
Involved in the Select Committee, and I
would suggest also it would be improper
for members of Parliament generaily to
delve into that matter. Members opposite
may laugh If they wish.

Mr B. T. Burke: Are you In favour of
as wide an Inquiry as possible?

Mr THOMPSON: I am in favour of the
type of Inquiry outlined in my motion.

Mr B. T. Burke: With no Minister ex-
empt?

Mr THOMPSON: I have no doubt this
motion will have the full support of both
sides of the H-ouse, because we have a
situation in which a member on one side
has made allegations about people on the
other side, and members on this side are
keen-

Mr B. T. Burke: Will Ministers be ex-
empt?

Sir Charles Court: The motion is all-
embracing.

Mr B. T. Burke: Does the Premier con-
sider himself to be a Minister?

Sir Charles Court: Yes.
Mr B. T. Burke: Good.

Mr THOMPSON: I have no doubt the
motion will succeed because members on
both sides must want it to. The allegations
made by the member for Ascot are of a
serious nature, and If substantiated a
Minister or a number of Ministers will
have to consider very seriously his posi-
tion or their positions within this In-
stitution.

Mr Bertram: What would be their rem-
edy?

Mr
would

Mr

THOMPSON: I would suggest they
consider their Positions.
Bertram: What would that mean?

Mr THOMPSON: If the member for
Ascot cannot establish his allegations,
then precedence in this House makes clear
the actions open to him.

Mr Bertram: What would Ministers do in
the circumstances?
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Mr THOMPSON: That would be en-
tirely up to them.

Mr Jamieson: That Is not good enough.

Mr THOMPSON: In making reference
to the action that would be open to the
member for Ascot, I draw attention to the
case of Mr ft. Robson, the then member
for Oeraldton, who in 1900 made allega-
tions about members of the House.

Mr B. T. Burke: Where did he make
them?

Mr THOMPSON: They were made out-
side the Parliament. I submit to members
opposite that the appointment of a Select
Committee is more relevant in this case
than in the case of Robson. because in the
latter case action could have been taken
within the courts; but no such action Is
available in this case. Therefore, I be-
lieve it is quite proper for this House to
appoint a Select Committee to Investigate
the allegations that have been made.
Clearly it is in the Interests of this House
and of this Institution to have the alle-
gations examined, and to have that
examination made as quickly as possible.

Mr B. TI. Burke: Quite right; including
all Ministers. What about the sub lud ice
rule?

Mr THOMPSON: May I point out, Mr
Speaker, that Mr Robson withdrew his
allegations and resigned his seat in this
place. I suggest there is a clear precedent
for what we have before us today. A clear
line is established not only In respect of
the Ministers if the allegations are sus-
tained, but also in respect of the member
for Ascot if the allegations are not ,Ius-
tamed.

Mr Bertram: Will you particularise the
allegations?

Mr THOMPSON: All members of this
House would be aware that they are ex-
tended a very great privilege. That privi-
lege is the freedom to express their
opinions within this Parliament. Thay
can do so without fear of action for libel
being taken against them in the courts.

Article (9) of the Bill of Rights of 188
established the right of a member of Par-
liament to have freedom of speech, and
during the last 300 years that right has
been maintained,

Mr Hartrey: And rightly so,
Mr THOMPSON: A member may state

whatever he thinks in debate in Parlia-
ment, however offensive it may be to the
feelings or injurious to the characters of
individuals; and he Is protected by his
privilege against any action for libel, as
well as from any other question of moles-
tation. This freedom of speech, however,
brings with it a very sombre responsibility:
the responsibility to act fairly.

Mr Bertram: But not to misinform the
House.

Mr THOMPSON: To support that con-
tention, I would like to quote from Erskine
May's Parliamentary Practice, 19th edi-
tion, chapter VI, page 78 under the head-
ing of "Restraint on Speech in Parlia-
ment". At that page there is a section
from Anson,' Vol. 1 (Parliament), p. 170,
which reads-

"Speech and action in Parliament
may thus be said to be unquestioned
and free. But this freedom from ex-
ternal Influence or Interference does
not Involve any unrestrained licence
of speech within the walls of the
House."

May goes on to say-
The cases in which Members have

been called to account and punished
by the House for offensive words
spoken before the House are too
numerous to mention (u). Some have
been admonished, others imprisoned,
and in the Commons some have been
expelled (a).

Mr A. R. Tonkin: That has happened
in Australia.

Mr Bertram: Does it not also happen
to those who lie before the House?

Mr Bryce: What about blatant con-
tempt?

Mr B. T. Burke: Not once, but twice.

Mr THOMPSON: The motion I have
moved is the only practical facility avail-
able to the House to consider the allega-
tions which have been made. It did occur
to me that there are three alternatives.
The first is to hold a full judicial Inquiry,
but in the circumstances that is imprac-
tical. The second is to appoint a Royal
Commission. We have had an example
in this State in fairly recent years of a
Royal Commission being set up to investi-
gate allegations made by a member of
Parliament.

However, when the Royal Commission
invited the member of Parliament to go
before it and give evidence, the member
claimed privilege and declined to give
evidence.

The third alternative is the appoint-
ment of a Select Committee, and in that
case the facility of claiming Privilege Is
not available to a member who may wish
to duck his responsibility.

Mr Jamieson: Will It be available to
a Minister?

Mr THOMPSON: It will not be avail-
able to any member, be he a Minister or
a private member, for the Purpose of
ducking his responsibility.

Mr B. T. Burke: On any matter? Is
using the sub iudice rule ducking respon-
sibility?

Mr Bertram: Are you going to lift the
sub iudice rule as well?

The SPEAKER: Order! The member
for Icalamunda will resume his seat.
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Mr B. T. Burke Interjected.
The SPEAKER: order!I If the member

for Balga Interjects again while I am
on my feet, I will have to take further
action against him. I have listened with
some Interest to some interjections, par-
ticularly by the member for Reign, about
matters sub fucice. I want to advise the
House that matters sub Judice do not
come under contemplation in the motion
before the Chair-not at all. Matters sub
judlee rest in Standing Orders. That is
purely for the Information of members.

Point of Order

Mr A. R, TONKIN: On a point of order
if I may, Mr Speaker: You referred to
sub judice coming within the ambit of
Standing Orders. I am wondering to which
Standing Orders you were referring when
you spoke about the sub Judico rule?

The SPEAKER: I am referring to the
custom we have In regard to matters sub
iudice, and the interpretation thereof, and
the actions taken by Presiding Officers
over Past years. The member for Kala-
munda.

Debate Resumed
Mr THOMPSON: I 'was pointing out

that three alternatives are available-or
appear to be available. However, really
only one of those alternatives satisfies
the present situation, and that is the
establishment of a Select Committee. I
say that because It appears to me to be the
only one whereby this House can be satis-
fied in the present circumstances.

No member who Is called before a Select
Committee would be able to duck his re-
sponsibility, whereas If he were called
before a Royal Commission he could do
so; and, in fact, the precedent I quoted
earlier indicates clearly that he probably
would. In these circumstances a member
could be called before the Select Commit-
tee and given the opportunity to give
evidence, and if he declines so to do the
Select Committee itself cannot deal with
that situation. However, it would submit
a report to this House, which would deal
with the matter. I suggest it would treat
the matter as contempt of the House.

So I submit to the members of this place
that the Select Committee that I have
moved to be appointed will give the mem-
ber for Ascot the opportunity to substanti-
ate the allegations which he has made. I
believe-

Mr Bertram: Would You be good enough
to particularise the allegation?

Mr ONeil: He read it at the beginning
of his speech.

Mr Bertram: I mean an interpretation
of it.

Sir Charles Court: The motion is
specific.

Mr THOMPSON., I have just explained
to the House that the Select Committee
cannot of itself do anything, but what it
can do is report to the House and this
House will then have the facility to deal
with the matter; and I submit it would
deal with it as a question of contempt of
this House.

Mr Hartrey: Which Standing Order
empowers this House?

Mr THOMPSON: In fairness to those
people who have been impugned it is abso-
lutely essential to deal with this matter
as speedily as possible. The case of Robson
to which I referred earlier was dealt with
in the space of a few days.

Mr Bertram: Was it?
Mr THOMPSON: Indeed. I submit that

this case will be dealt with fairly speedily.
The member for Ascot will have the oppor-
tunity to make and support his allegations
before the Select Committee.

Mr Bertram: What do you mean by a
few days? Would you help me there please?

Mr THOMPSON: No, I cannot help the
member.

Mr Bertram: Two or three?
Mr B. T. Burke: If you are terribly

serious about this whole business we can
wvrap it up in one day.

Mr THOMPSON: I am sure the public
of Western Australia, having been aroused
by the allegations made by the member
for Ascot, want to know what the situation
is and want to know very quickly. I have
every confidenc that this motion will get;
the full support of the House. I shall be
extremely surprised if it does not-

Mr B. T. Burke: So will 1.
Mr THOMPSON: -because both sides

of the House have an interest to see that
this matter is dealt with.

Mr Davies: You were told to say that.
Mr THOMPSON: I was not told to say

that.
Opposition members: Ha, ha!
Mr Jamieson: You were.
Mr THOMPSON: We can see just how

seriously members opposite regard this
matter. I do not intend saying any more
at this time. I1 have no doubt the motion
will get support and I confidently com-
mend it to the House.

Mr O'NEIL: I second the motion.

Adjournment of Debate
Mr JAMIESON: I move-

That the debate be adjourned.
Motion put and a division taken with

the following result-

Mr Barnett
Mr Date-a"
Mr Bertram
Mdr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Gunr
Mr Pavies
Mr H. D. LtysKM

Ayese-17
Utr Fletcher
Mr Hartrey
Mr Jamieson
Mr Skidmore
Ur Taylor
Mr A. Rt. Tonkin
Mr 5. T. Tonkin
Ur Moiler

(Teller)
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Noes-fl3
Air Blaikle Mr O'Connor
Sir Charles ourt Mr Old
Mr Cowan Mr O'N~eil
Mr Coyne Mr Ridge
Mrs Craig Mr Rusaton
Dr Dadour Mr Shalders
Mr Graydon Mr Sibson
'JTr Crewsr Mr Thompson
Mr Laurance Mr Tubby
Mr MePharlin Mr Young
.air I'enssros Mr Crko
Mr Nanoflcb Tllr

Pairs
Ayes Noes

Mir May Mr P. V. Lone
Mr T. D. Evans Mr Sodeinan
Ur Mclver Mr Crane
Mr Harman Mr Watt
Mr T'. H. Jones Mr Stephene
Motion thus negatived.

Debate Resumed
MR .JAMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of

the Opposition) [3.16 p.m.]: This is a
very important matter the Chamber is
debating this afternoon. Indeed, in view
of some of the contents of the mover's
speech it would have been very desirable
for the Opposition to have had some
time Just to digest some of the statements
because they do seem to run counter to
the present Standing Orders. Because
they do, one wonders whether he has had
the authority to make statemnents on be-
half of other members of Parliament and
we would want to examine it thoroughly
to know whether he was doing just that.

However, the Government saw fit net
to grant us an adjournment to have an
examination of those points and we pro-
ceed to the debate. We welcome an in-
quiry because out of it will come some
surprising results, no doubt, and con-
sequently there could be a number of red
faces. It is, however, unfortunate that
Parliaments such as this have to be in-
volved in such matters on the eve of an
election.

I have very little doubt that if it had
happened at another time the Govern-
ment would not have taken it seriously
and would not have bothered very much
because it seems to me-I was not in the
House at the time of the particular in-
cident-froni a copy of Hans ard that it
was clearly the Premier's objection and
the member for Scarborough's objection
to the first statemnent because they very
clearly indicated this In their constant
interjections.

Mr Davies: Did they ask for a with-
drawal?

Mr JAMIESON: They did not ask for
a withdrawal.

Mr Ridge: They asked the member for
Ascot to substantiate what he said and
he refused to do so.

Mr JAMIESON: Under normal circum-
stances if I said something to the Minister
In the course of debate-

Mr Ridge: If you said it to me I prob-
ably would not take much notice any-
way.

Mr JAIrSON: The minister would
not understand. I forgot that the hollow
in the head means a lot to people who
have nothing in it.

Mr Sibson: It Was too serious to ask
merely for a withdrawal.

Mr JAMESON: Some action should
have been taken. I ask members to lis-
ten to the situation that occurred. The
member for Ascot said-

Some of the members of this G'qv-
erment have In fact grown very
wealthy during their parliamentary
careers through the manipulation of
capital, and these same people-

He was then asked by the Premier-
Which ones?

He said-
in fact, one of them we know very

well has sticky fingers,
The Premier asked, "Which ones?"

Sir Charles Court; That is fair enough.
Mr JAMIESON: Reference was made to

only one, so I presume the Premier was
talking about the manipulation of capital,
and I will come back to that directly. The
member for Ascot went on to say-

But despite this, Mr Speaker-
And the Premier again asked, "Which
ones-corne on?" Then the Deputy
Premier said-

Do not bide behind generalities.
Then the member for Ascot said-

The Minister is prepared to sit
there in hypocritical fashion and
throw innuendos-

At that stage the Deputy Premier used
some unparliamentary words which I will
not repeat. Then the member ftr Ascot
continued-

-at the whole of the union move-
ment. Listen to the byenias on the
front bench.

The member for Scarborough then Joined
in-

You are not even prepared to name
names.

He was referring to the multiple associa-
tion in the original statement. The De-
puty Premier used some more unparlia-
mentary words and then the Speaker In-
tervened.

So It appears to me that the main
objection at Issue concerns the original
words. I have had a talk with several
people who know a little about the law
and they seem to have the opinion that
there is not much in the original state-
ment at all which could be construed In
any way as being something which coud
be actionable if it was said outside this
Chamber,

Sir Charles Court: Not much!
Mr JAMIESON: The Premier thinks it

Is, but he thinks a lot of things which
do not turn out to be factual in the
final analysis.
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The situation is that if the *objection
were to those first words dealing with
generalities, then it does not bear out some
of the things the mover of the motion
said. He went on to talk about the par-
liamentary system and I would say that
we set a better example than the example
set in a lot of other countries, despite
what he might think, including the British
Parliament where very often furores oc-
cur during the process of divisions and
so on, with people striking at one an-
other. This occurs also after divisions.
If members opposite tried to do what their
counterparts in Britain do-that is. im-
mediately a division is over in which they
were defeated by one vote, start to chant
and not stop yelling, "Out, out, out"-
our Speaker would throw them all out.
He would not tolerate that kind of con-
duct here. So it is no good the mover of
the motion here referring to examples of
the situation over there.

However, it is interesting to know that
the British Parliament considers more
vital the actions of People in Parliament,
and more Particularly the actions of Min-
isters in dealing with matters of State,
than do members opposite. Unfortun-
ately our People usually let things go. it
does not seem to matter what is done by
members of Parliament; many things seem
to be sacrosanct. I know on one occasion
a British Minister received the order of
conviction in connection with a Treasury
matter due to some leak of contents in
a Treasury document. However, prior to
that was Profurn. All he did was to say
to the House that he had not been In-
volved with some sex indulgence with cer-
tain females who were considered to be
a security risk. As he was the Defence
Minister it was considered that the as-
sociation was putting the country at risk.

He said to the House of Commons that
be had not been involved and subsequently
it was proved that he had been and he
admitted this to the House. He had told
a deliberate untruth and because of that
there was no option for him but to leave.

On the Australian scene unfortunately
this does not occur. Often we are told
things and then when it is found that
the things we have been told are contrary
to the fact and that this was known when
we were informed, those responsible do
not move one inch. Their hair does not
even quiver at the magnitude of the offence
they have committed.

I suggest that those on either side should
not get too excited about what might be
going on, but what might come out of it
could be frightening. However, having gone
so far, we m ust proceed. Nevertheless, I
have certain fears associated with the pro-
cedure.

I assume that the standard motions will
be moved at a subsequent time to give
the committee power to send for persons,
papers, and records. If this is not done,
of course, the committee will have no

powers. We have been given some assur-
ance by the mover of the motion that
when sent for by the Select Committee
Ministers will answer questions, so we are
going some of the way.

One of the problems which will be faced
will concern the loaded committee. It
will be politically loaded to the advantage
of the Government and so it might be hard
for a decision to be reached to call wit-
nesses before the committee. We are going
to consider that aspect a little later on.
We need some assurance that when it is
necessary to call People, those people will
be called. This will not be a majority
decision of the committee because it will
be done on the casting vote of the chair-
man who will be, in all probability, the
mover of the motion. We want a very
clear understanding on the position.

With all due respect to what You said,
Mr Speaker, I do not think the sub judice
rule would apply in respect of this com-
mittee.

The SPEAKER: I spoke of the current
debate.

Mr JAMIESON: Yes. Sub judice, in the
main, deals with the interfering of a per-
son's right to a fair trial. Under Stand-
ing Orders it is clear that evidence Is not
allowed to be disclosed, but we will get on
to that later. Whether anyone is allowed
to be in the room at various times is sub-
ject to determination by the committee.
All members of the legislative Assembly
are entitled to be in at the conmmute.,'s
meetings while they are in Progress, but
not wTsile the committee is having its
discussion after witnesses have been ex-
cluded.

In other words It is open house to mem-
bers of this Chamber to hear witnesses
when they are being examined. However.
once the committee begins its discussion
then, of course, under Standing orders,
members of Parliament are not entitled
to be present.

We need to be well aware of the situa-
tion which is that anything raised in
discussion need not necessarily be re-
ported to the House. It can be excluded
completely, but it should be investigated
if there is reason to suspect that an In-
vestigation is needed in a Particular case.
I want to have some assurances. There
must be by the Government no intimida-
tion of witnesses, and intending or poten-
tial witnesses. When it comes to civil ser-
vants, this presents a very great problem.
I want some guarantee from no less a
Person than the Premier himself that if
such People are brought forward as wit-
nesses they will not be subjected to
penalties.

Sir Charles Court: The Government
would be committing an offence if it did
that.

Mr JAMIESON: I do not want the gua-
rantee to be so subtle as that. I want
assurances that these people will not in
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any way be inhibited or disadvantaged.
It is very easy for the Premier to say the
Government would be committing an of-
fence if it did that, but we should bear
in mind that some of these officers look
for a career in their professions, and they
would want to continue in their pro-
fessions. If those people are to be dis-
advantaged the actions of the Select Comn-
mitee could be curtailed.

The Premier has assured us that that
will not happen. Of course, we will have
recourse to action by bringing a com-
plaint back to the House. However, if the
Premier knows he has a majority in this
House he could say, "Sc what?" That
would not help these people very much.
The result Is some sort of vocal exercise
recording an incident in Hansard which
we may be able to use In favour of these
people.

The other aspect to which I wish to
refer relates partly to what I have already
said. The Government should give a gua-
rantee that no Promotional or career op-
portunities of public servants will be
jeopardied by their giving evidence to the
Select Committee. As the Proceedings of
the Select Committee could involve those
people, we want the Government to be
sure of the direction in which it is going
in respect of this issue.

We would not like to see the times of the
sittings of this Select Committee mani-
pulated. The committee must be allowed
to inquire fully, and to call the number of
witnesses it will be required to call; it
must be allowed to examine them properly
and in full, so that there will not be any
rushed decision or report made by the
Select Committee. From the manner in
which the member for Kalamunda. moved
the motion, one would think that the
report of the Select Committee would be
brought down this evening! There seems
to be a preconceived decision in his mind,
and it appears as though he has written
out the report. A decision cannot be
arrived at and a report cannot be pre-
sented without a clear investigation into
the situation, and the problems that beset
us on this occasion.

Mr Bertram: Maybe the mover of the
motion realises the Government will have
a majority on the Select Committee.

Mr JAMIESON: Maybe that is one of
the reasons. The mover of the motion
mentioned three alternatives. I say that
the proper course to be followed is to have
an inquiry by a Royal Commission. If
the Premier is at all concerned about this
matter and does not stunt it politically-
no doubt we will hear more about the
matter as we proceed, and we will see
the manner in which it develops and the
surprising turns it may take-he should
be prepared to subject the matter to in-
quiry by a Royal Commission.

As the mover of the motion said, op-
portunity will be available for the mem-
ber who made the statement to claimn Pri-
vilege and to say nothing. However, that

also is the right of a member under the
Standing Orders relating to Select Com-
mittees, with one difference. If a member
happens to be on the minority side of the
House he can be dealt with: but if he
happens to be on the majority side he
will riot be dealt with.

Mr Bryce: Precisely.
Mr JAMIESON: The other method men-

tioned is a little fairer. The inquiry would
be open to the public, and people would
be able more readily to see that the pro-
ceedings were in order.

We have complained before about Gov-
ernment departments such as the Police
Department making their own inquiries.
When departments make their own In-
quiries it always leaves a stigma and makes
the people wonder whether all that should
be done has been done. That is no beVer
than a Select Committee inquiring into
the affairs or activities of members of Par-
liament.

Evidently, after getting together at a
party meeting or merely as a result of
discussions over the -last two days the
Government members devised a means
of recovery and they hit on this method
as being the logical step to take as it could
bring about some political backlash. The
Government may take any course of
action it chooses, but the outcome is for
the future to decide, We will face the
situation in the future as it comes.

I agree with what the mover of the
motion had to say about the restraint of
speech, and also what May's Parliamentary
Practice has said on the subject. However,
I do not think there is a member in this
House, perhaps with the exception of a few
stoic ones, who has not at some time
made some comment which on reflection
might not have been meant in the context
it was made. What I am saying applies
also to the mover of the motion.

It is all very well for people to deliver
sermons and to admonish others about
what they should and should not do; and
on this I would Quote the authority in
May's Parliamentary Practice. In the main
we have to rely on our own temperaments
and reactions when we are engaged in de-
bate in this Parliament.

In the absence of a Royal Commission
which in some way could take action
against the people concerned, we have no
alternative but to agree to the appoint-
ment of a Select Committee, and see what
comes from it. However, I stress again that
the Select Committee must run its funl
course. I cannot see that the matters to
be brought before It will be dealt with in
time. It is vital that all the activities into
which this Select Committee can inquire
should be inquired into; and it is essential
that the Select Committee takes the maxi-
mum amount of evidence so as to present at
proper report-after due consideration of
the evidence-to the Legislative Assembly.
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To that extent I support the motion. As
we get onto the more general debate on
the appointment of a Select Committee
some moves will be made, but I shall not
deal with them now. They can be raised
at the appropriate time. I have made my
comments as I see the facts, and on
what the mover of the motion said in his
speech. I have not had the opportunity
to analyse it fully to enable me to com-
ment on it. We know what will be the
decision of the House and we will carry
on from there. Having said that I favour
the appointment of a Select Committee, I
should point out there are some other
problems yet to be dealt with.

MR H. D. EVANS (Warren-Deputy
Leader of the Opposition) [3.40 p.m.J: I
thought somebody on the other side may
have liked to make some utterance, and I
gave that opportunity.

Mr O'Neil: The Opposition is supporting
the motion.

Mr H. D. EVANS: I thought someone op-
posite would have liked to make some
comment, but apparently not.

Mr O'Neil: There was no need to.
Mr H. D, EVANS: In moving the motion

we now have before us, the member for
Darling Range indicated-

Mr Thompson: To keep the record
straight, the member for Kalamunda.

Mr. H. D, EVANS: The member for
Kalamunda indicated the options open to
the Government in this matter. I would
like to make some reference to those op-
tions and, also, the observation which
comes to mind when looking at the alter-
native which was selected. To opt for a
Select Committee leaves several large
questions which need to be answered. in
the first place, the member for Darling
Range-

Mr Thompson: Kalamunda.
Mr H. D. EVANS: The member for Kala-

munda stated that a judicial inquiry, a
Royal Commission, or a Select Committee
was possible. A Select Committee has
been chosen, but there are several differ-
ences which should be drawn out. In the
first place, a Select Committee could not
possibly achieve the task which would con-
front it in the period of time that is
allowed. True, it could be turned into an
Honorary Royal Commission.

I am having regard for the Honorary
Royal Commission in which I took part.
The time which it took to set it up, the
time to operate and conduct hearings, the
time involved in discourse and discussions
in our endeavours to analyse the different
Conclusions and many recommendations
presented in the evidence, was somewhat
time-consuming to say the least. Every
member in this House would be aware that
the compilation of a report, of the kind

envisaged, cannot be done in a limited
time. Sufficient time is required to do the
job properly, and the Premier knows that,
as do other members on the Government
side of the Mouse.

This leads me to wonder why the Gov-
ernment, opted for the course which has
been Indicated by moving for aSelect
Committee. The Premier has stated-or
Is reported to have stated-that he wants
to get the matter wrapped up as quickly
as possible.,

Mr Bryce: I can imagine.
Mr H.1 D. EVANS: The obvious comment

which comes to mind Is that there Is not
much chance of that because of the course
selected.

Mr O'Nell: Do you want the Select
Committee to look into the running of the
Homebush Abattoir and the Kimberley
Abattoir?

Mr H. D. EVANS: I spent many hours
in a roam going over evidence, just a:; a
Select Committee of this kind would have
to do as well the Minister knows. Obvi-
ously, this matter cannot be glossed over.
It has been raised before the House and
It cannot be raced through, not only in
the interests of the member for Ascot-
against whom the motion is directed-but
In the Interests of every Minister on the
other side of the R-ouse because the word
has been used in the plural and that
means every Minister from the Premier
down.

Sir Charles Court:- That i~s right.

Mr H. D. EVANS: In the Interests of
the members of the Government, the
member for Ascot, and this institution as
the Parliament of this State, the thing has
to be done Properly. There will be no
short-cuts or sliding around corners. Now
the matter is before the House It bas to
go to its ultimate conclusion.

Mr B. T. Burke: Hear, hear!I
Mr H. D, EVANS: That is the province

of a Select Committee, the bulk of the
members coming from the Government
side. In all fairness, it does, not matter
who the member Is-and particularly be-
fore an election-it cannot be expected
that complete and 100 per cent impartial-
ity will prevail-not while dealing with
human beings.

By way of contrast, a judicial inquiry
or a Royal Commission could Involve a!
Supreme Court judge. There is a world of
difference between a Supreme Court judge
taking evidence In his professional tap-
acity, drawing his conclusions, and arriving
at his determination and a politician who
has an election coming up in a few months'
time.
Sitting suspended from 3.45 to 4.04 p.m.

Mr H. D. EVANS: Before the afternoon
tea suspension I was drawing the obvious
analogy between a judicial Inquiry and an
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inquiry conducted by five members of this
House, three of whom would represent the
Government side. I pointed out also the
unsatisfactory course that the Government
has chosen to pursue. It has adopted this
course, not as a House of Parliamlenit,
but as a Government. It has the numbers
so do not let us be fooled with eulogistic
phraseology that the House demands, or
the House says this or that. with the
numbers game It is the Government side
that dictates and that should be borne In
mind,

No-one could convince the populace at
large or the community generally that the
fair and obvious way to discover the full
ramifications of the issue Is the way chosen
by the Government. it Is the people who
are entitled to see that the Government Is
Carrying out an Investigation of the con-
duct of members of Parliament, and no-
body else.

The political component and the motiva-
tion that lie with the moving of this
motion are obvious. There are several as-
pects to this, not the least of which Is
the impending election. Also, there is the
timing of the motion and I notice In this
afternoon's edition of the Daily News that
the setting up of such a Select Committee
would be a "first" for Western Australia.
That suggests to me that the political
motivation associated with the motion has
something to do with Just that fact.

At the time the nature of the utterances
was such that I can recall their equal
on a number of occasions. Having regard
also for the context of the utterances and
the atmosphere in which they were made,
the words that strike me which could be
taken as giving offence are these-

Some of the members of this Gov-
ernment have In fact grown very
wealthy during their parliamentary
careers through the manipulation of
capital, and these same people-

There was then an interjection as follows-
Which ones?

And the member for Ascot then said-
in fact, one of them we know very

well has sticky fingers.
That was the Hansard record of the com-
ments of the member for Ascot. He made
these remarks during a stage of the debate
where the vituperation against the trade
union movement was at its highest. That
Is the context and the atmosphere in which
these statements were made.

The nature of the words themselves
could have led to a request for their with-
drawal at the time, but that course was
not followed. It almost appeared that the
Government was playing a waiting game.
Moving a motion in this way suggests that
the political element in the motivation Is
very strong Indeed.

If we look at the Standing Orders in
relation to Select Committees and their
composition, it can readily be seen that

such committees cannot compare favour-
ably with other judicial inquiries. Stand-
ing Order 367 reads-

Whenever it may be necessary, the
House may give a Committee power
to send for persons, papers, and re-
cords.

So wherever necessary the House may give
a Select Committee power to send for thes
things. I presume this would include Gov-
ernment files and documents also, How-
ever , the essential point is the question to
which the member for Kalamunda. did not
refer: Will the committee be so endowed?
Will it have these powers? I1 feel that is a
fairly important point which must be con-
sidered because I have no doubt that all
manner of inquiries and probings will be
necessary if this Select Committee is to
proceed.

Standing Order 369 provides that if a
member declines to attend a Select Com-
mittee. the Select Committee can take no
action other than report this fact to the
House. The member who moved the motion
pointed out that a member who refused to
attend as a witness could be held in con-
tempt.

However, -what if it happens to be a
member from the other side? What hap-
pens if a Minister chooses to decline to
front up? He could then be brought before
the House, and the House, comprising-
members of the same political colour -as
he, must take action. Is that -liable to set
at ease the mind of the community at
large? That is not the sort of way in which
we seek Justice.

Also, how -would it be practical to com-
plete the matter in the period of two weeks
remaining? How would it be possible to
carry out the inquiry, to call witnesses,
assess their evidence, and then come down
with a fair and just conclusion-fair and
just to everyone concerned-which is satis-
fying to the outside world? I do not think
it could be done, and the more I dwell
upon it the more the political motivation
seems to come to the fore.

As far as a Select Committee Is con-
cerned, a resolution by three comprises a
decision; and let us have regard for the
fact that there would be three Govern-
ment supporters on the Select Committee,
which means they could make a decision
on their own.

By way of contrast, a Royal Commission
under a chosen judicial figure provides an
opportunity for evidence to be heard in
closed session, and it would appear this
might be very desirable, at least in some
cases, because without a shadow of a
doubt in an inquiry such as this there will
be people loathe to come forward and give
evidence unless they know they have full
immunity and protection.

I seem to recall a Bill being passed not
so many years ago by the parties occupying
the Government benches at present; that
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Bill was specially to provide for witnesses
who sought to appear before a Royal Com-
mission. No doubt that was done for the
very same reason. Why is it not applicable
now? I am afraid the reason is not very
difficult to find. It is an effort on the part
of the Government to utilise its numbers
and position to create a facade and a
mockery of what is a most serious issue,
and one that has to be proven in the minds
of everybody in Western Australia.

We are talking now about the whole
Parliamentary institution, and as the
matter has gone this far there can be no
turning back by anybody on either side
of the House, no matter what pcsition he
holds.

The inquiry must be held in an atmos-
phere that is conducive to justice and fair
Play throughout the entire community,
because so much is Involved In the matter.
It Is for that reason I would much sooner
see a Royal Commission under a Care-
fully selected judicial fIgure, and it would
have to be someone who is competent and
thoroughly versed in this sort of rituation,
in order to allay the doubts that must
arise In the minds of the people of West-
ern Australia.

As far as this Government is concerned,
the Political motivation shows through a
little too clearly to ring of true Intention
and sincerity.

MR 3. T. TONKIN (Melville) [4.15
p.m.): During the time I have been in
this Parliament I have heard some im-
putations. of improper motives, some per-
sonal reflections on members, and even
some personal reflections against myself.
Standing Order 129 provides protection for
a member if the Imputation of improper
motives or the personal reflection is made
during the course of a debate. Standing
Orders do not provide any protection if
the imputation or personal reflection Is by
way of substantive motion.

I am wondering why when the member
for Ascot said what he said, someone did
not ask him to withdraw. He would have
been obliged to do so and to apologise if
requested. That procedure was not fol-
lowed, and I am wondering why.

Mr Bertram: Preconceived.
Mr J. T. TONKIN: There must be a

special reason In the mind of the Premier
for him to deal with the matter in this
way. I want to remind members of the
Government that I was the subject of a
motion in this House which charged me
with fraud-quite wrongly, of course,
because I was not the Minister who gave
the answers to the questions which were
objected to. However, a motion was actu-
ally moved In this Parliament charging me
with fraud. There was no Royal Commis-_
sion or Select Committee on that occasion.
Therefore. I suggest this has been blown
up for a political purpose.

Mr B. T. Burke: It is going to backfire.

Mr J. T2. TONKIN* History repeats It-
self. You will notice, Mr Speaker, that
this afternoon the Government refused en
adjournment of this motion. In 1959, in
the dying hours of the session, the Govern-
ment of the day suspended Standing
Orders for the purpose of introducing a
Bill to amend the Royal Commissioners'
Powers Act, and when we sought a reason-
able adjournment to enable us to make
Inquiries in other States we were refused.
There is a similar situation In respect of
the matter now before us.

Mr Speaker, I am sure you will recall
quite well the circumstances which caused
the Government of that day to want to
enlarge the powers and the immunities
under that Act. The reason I am dealing
with this is that I see the possibility
that this Select Committee will become a
Royal Commission. Then the very special
provisions which were written into that
Act will apply to the Select Committee
proposed to be appointed under this motion,
and in my view in some respects quite
unfairly.

It was argued by the Government on
the Previous occasion that a Royal Com-
missioner should have the same protec-
tion as a Supreme Court judge. My leader
at that time was the Hon. A. R. G. Hawke,
and he agreed with that. I did not agree
with it, for this reason: Royal Commis-
sioners are not necessarily magistrates or
judges; they can be ordinary persons or
Politicians with an axe to grind. Whilst
a Supreme Court judge would not be ex-
pected to act maliciously, it would not be
beyond the bounds of probability that a
Politician could act in that manner if he
found himself a Royal Commissioner.

Therefore, I was opposed to granting
complete protection to a Royal C'ommis-
sioner in the same way that a SupreMe
Court judge is protected; but that Bill
also granted Protection to barristers, so
they could say what they liked without
fear of redress. I had an unfortunate
experience with this.

I moved in the Parliament with regzard
to allegations subsequently proven to be
true about a case of bribery at the State
Brickworks. During the course of the
Royal Commission, a barrister slated me
very severely. I bided my time; I thought.
"My opportunity will come." What this
barrister said about me was published at
the time, so the public were made aware
of his remarks.

But the next morning when I sought
to reply to the allegations, I was pre-
vented from doing so because the barrister
got up and apologised, and the Royal Com-
missioner would not allow me then to
refer to the matter. When I complained
that this was unfair, his reply to me was,
"This will be expunged from the records."
A lot of good that was to me! That bar-
rister was enabled to do that because of
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the action of the then Government in
providing protection to barristers against
any action by persons slandered.

The Bill also provided protection for
witnesses and there were two who were
subsequently proved to be liars by the
Royal Commissioner, who said so in his
report. Those witnesses gave information
to the Government that a certain Person
had required £200 to get licences for book-
makers and that amount was to be paid
to me. The Government had this allega-
tion when it introduced that Bill to pro-
tect witnesses and so it deprived me of
the right of action I would have had
against these individuals for the lying
slanders they uttered. It seems that at
the time the Government had no more
to go on than the utterances of those
two men who the Royal Commissioner
subsequently called in his report "a pair
of liars."

This protection is extended to a Royal
Commissioner and so it will apply to this
Select Committee if it is turned into a
Royal Commission, and I feel it probably
will be that way and for these reasons:
We have been told that Parliament is due
to rise within a couple of weeks and more
business is being brought In each day.
It seems to me, having regard to the fact
Standing Orders provide that Select Com-
mittees cannot operate whilst the House
is sitting unless given Permission to do so,
there will be a limited time during which
the Select Committee can give attention
to these inquiries, which, to my way of
thinking, are likely to prove extensiv 'e.

It seems that the Rouse will rise before
the Select Committee has completed its
business and then it will turn into a Royal
Commission. If it is the intention of the
Government to use the power in the
Standing Orders to get a decision of this
House that the Select Committee be
allowed to sit whilst the House Is in
session, then we have another problem. The
chairman of the Select Committee is likely
to be the member for Kalamunda who is
the Chairman of Committees. is his work
on this Select Committee to take pre-
cedence over his work in this Parliament
during the closing days of this session?
If so, It shows scant regard, as far as I
am concerned, to the importance of the
business transacted-quite a lot of it with-
out prior notice.

So I see all sorts of difficulties with re-
gard to the Select Committee completing
its business and it seems to me inevitable
that it will run into a Royal Commission.
That being so, what will be the circum-
stances? They will be those I have out-
lined and they will result from the passing
of the legislation in 1959 extending the
powers. of Royal Commissioners and wit-
nesses. They will be able to say what they
like and the Royal Commissioner will be
able to say what he likes without any re-
dress to anybody. Is that a fair proposi-
tion? I do not think it is.

I come back to what I said Initially. Why
is there this desire to blow this matter up
In this way when over the years there have
been far more serious breaches of Stan-
ding Order 129 than this case? The Min-
ister for Labour and Industry gave a grunt.
How would he like to be the subject of a
motion in this House charging him with
fraud? He supported it.

Mr Grayden: This Is in the same
category.

Mr J. T. TONKIN:; Although this has
got to the stage where It has to go on I
suggest we have to be cognisant of the
fact of what can happen because of the
extended powers of Royal Commissioners
and witnesses, and because the committee
will be loaded and lopsided and is being
brought on at the time of an election in
order to gain political advantage-not be-
cause of any desire on the part of the
Government to try to purge what has been
said, or to protect the character of a
Minister.

This matter could have been handled
as I have already said by requesting a
withdrawal and an apology-and the
Speaker had that power-if it had been
asked for but It did not suit the Govern-
ment to act in that way. So, I point out
this aspect of the matter to members, and
suggest, because of my personal experience,
it will have to be watched carefully. The
Government of the day was not concerned
about my honour; that two liars appeared
and told a story. That was sufficient for
the Government to appoint a Royal Com-
mission. No-one was concerned about
letting me know there had been allegations
made against me but now they are very
concerned about the possibility that asper-
sions may rest upon some Minister or
Minister.

At the time I opposed the motion to ex-
tend the powers of the Royal Commissioner
I was unaware of the fact that its pur-
pose was to deprive me of my civil rights;
that did not emerge until some time sub-
sequently. The Royal Commission ostens-
ibly was set up to inquire into off-course
betting, but all the time the Government
was sitting on allegations made by two
liars, and subsequently found to be liars
by the Royal Commissioner. For no other
reason than that, the Government deprived
me of the civil rights I would have had
against these individuals. It shows how sit-
uations change. It could be that the Gov-
ermnent will he hoist with its own Petard
because in providing for protection to wit-
nesses, these people now can be encour-
aged to come forward in the knowledge that
they can say what they like, and will be
protected, Is that what the Government
wants? Well, It will serve it right for hav-
Ing created that situation in 1959. With
those comments, I support the motion,

MR BRYCE (Ascot) C4.30 P.m.]: I
think it has become fairly obvious to
everybody In the Chamber that this latest
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political stunt is just as rigged as the
Parliament the Government has knowingly
and consciously arranged to suit itself.

Nobody outside this Chamber will he
fooled by the fact that a committee com-
prising three Government members and
two Opposition members on the eve of an
election is designed to do anything but
bring down a predetermined result. Col-
leagues on my side of the House have
already clearly indicated that If state-
ments made by me during a speech two
nights ago offended the sensitivities and
Pride of members opposite, they had the
opportunity under the Standing Orders
to call upon me, through you Mr Speaker,
to withdraw those statements. When I
say "predetermined" I mean that because
members opposite did not subsequently
take offence, It is quite possible that some
of the same bacicroorn boys In the Liberal
Party's headquarters are already dra fting
the substance of the proposed committee's
report.

Nobody out-side this Chamber and, I
suggest sincerely, very few people inside
the Chamber would believe that three
Liberal-National Country Party members
and two Labor Party members sitting on
a Select Committee of inquiry on the eve
of an election are likely to come to any-
thing but a predetermined result. Far
that reason I wholeheartedly support the
remarks of the member for Melville.

I am surprised, to say the least, that
an aqleffation that some Ministers during
the course of their parliamentary careers
had grown wealthy through the manipu-
lation of capital offended the sensitivities
of those members. It seems that suddenlyv
some of the wealthy Ministers feel a little
ashamed of their wealth. That is surpris-
Ing; I would have thought they felt proud
of it.

Mr O'Connor: You should be the people
to feel ashamed of yourselves.

Mr BR.YCE: Anybody who studied
economics would appreciate that manipu-
lation of capital Is a perfectly legitimate
function in a society such as ours. There-
fore, it staggers rme to imagine that these
representatives of capital would find it
offensive for it to be suggested-the defi-
nition of manipulation Is "expert use of"
-that the expert use of capital during
their pariamentary careers as represen-
tatives of capital has made them wealthy
men.

Mr Speaker, It is important that 1 relate
a few remarks to the context In which
those allegations were made, because I
believe it is very important to the re-
mainder of the question. At the time
we were discussing an amendment to the
Industrial Arbitration Act that was des-
igned to force trade unions in this State
to adopt certain procedures for internal

elections. That piece of legislation had
been brought to this Chamber for a par-
ticular purpose-to foment Industrial strife
in Western Australia, to divide our com-
munity and to stir up hatred on the eve
of an election. Nobody in this Chamber
was fooled in any way about the Govern-
ment's motives.

I said at the time, and I repeat again, it
was not the piece of paper that was being
debated in this Chamber that night that
was significant. It was the furore and the
publicity that built up prior to that leg-
islat ion being introduced into the Parlia-
ment that was the essential key to the
debate, because during the course of that
debate and in the weeks and months that
preceded it we saw the brave men on the
Government's front benches insult, deni-
grate, and deride every Western Australian
citizen who is a member of a trade union
or is a trade union official or secretary.

I believed then and I believe now that
it was high time a sense of balance was in-
*hected into the debate that was deliberate-
ly fostered to divide labour and capital in
this State. It is high time with regard to
the Ministers who have been hurling this
abuse at people who are defenceless, who
do not take their places in this Chamber
and who cannot reply in the terms that
their accusers used under parliamentary
privilege-helpless people who have sus-
tained this kind of slander-that a sense
of balance was Injected into the debate
because these people had been put through
a great deal of suffering and misery. They
had been accused of rigging elections.
They had been accused of having hot lines
to Moscow. Every decent and conscientious
trade union official and trade union mem -
ber had been defamed by these Ministers
in this Parliament.

The essential point is that not one mem-
ber of the Government's brave front
bench would accept the challenge to name
one of those so-called Irresponsible trade
unionists who were perpetrating all these
evils. That was the context that I am very
plcased to bring to the minds of members
in which those of us on this side of the
House, who proudly represent the Labor
movement, were sitting and listening to
accusations being hurled under parlia-
mentary privilege by the people who rep-
resent capital in this Chamber.

There is no doubt about where their
vested interest lies. I made a number of
allegations. The member for ICalamunda
has referred to only one of them. It is
quite fascinating, when we see the broad
terms of the motion, that no reference
was made to the other allegations. The
sensitivities of members opposite appar-
ently were not offended by my allegation
that they deliberately rigged the Parlia-
ment to -suit themselves and to protect
the vested interests that they represent
here. Apparently that did not bother them.
They apparently acknowledge it.
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They have taken no exception, Mr
Speaker, to my allegation in that same
sneech that they took action in this Par-
liament, by way of their votes, to oppose
legislation seeking to require members of
Parliament to disclose their vested inter-
ests. The member for Morley brought to
this Chamber a Bill that would have re-
quired members of Parliament to supply a
register with detailed information relating
to their shareholdings in companies and
other business interests. Members opposite,
representing capital, opposed this legisla-
tion. They were afraid of it.

WY1hen I accused themr of doing this they
did not acknowledge that they were up-
set by the allegation; it did not concern
them in the slightest. It was another al-
legation which I am happy to repeat: mem-
bers onPOsite have opposed Publicly the
rrinciple that a company should disclose
the details concerning the amounts and
the names of recipients of donations at
election time. Let us never have any doubt
in our minds that that is where most of
the Political skulduggery lies in our coun-
try and in our system of government.

In the United States of America there
are very serious limitations in this parti-
cular activity. That is where a lot of the
Political skulduggery lies. Yet I repeat
for the sake of context that members op-

osite, who represent capital, have opposed
this legislation.

I am aware of a report that was de-
livered to a meeting of one of the metro-
politan divisions of the iberal Party when
one of the presidents in the context of
that report -I have seen a copy of the
report-actually stated that they ought
to be worried that the day may come
when Political parties and companies had
to disclose the source of their income at
election time.

The SPEAKER: I would like the hon-
ourable member to relate his comments
to the motion before the chair.

Mr BRYCE: That was the third allega-
tion that I made. Apparently these al-
legations have not offended the sensitivity
of members opposite. I would have thought
that that particular type of allegation was
the type with which they ought to be con-
cerned If they have a social conscience
and are concerned about the morality of
Politics. That is where the serious threat
lies.

In fact, what they have chosen to take
exception to are suggestions which many
people outside this Chamber would find
very surprising indeed. Some of the people
who have been elected to this Parliament
representing capital, and who have been
accused of manipulating capital and using
this means in an expert fashion during
their parliamentary careers, have be-
come wealthy. Why are they suddenly
ashamed of having become wealthy? I

repeat that in their role they should be
expressing their pride in respect of their
wealth.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: They will get a
knighthood for It.

Mr BRYCE: As far as the inquiry is
concerned I sincerely support the concept
of a very thorough inquiry, because it is
an issue which does concern many West-
ern Australians. I think anybody who
listens to or reads about this debate will
readily appreciate that it is the greatest
sham of all time if we accept the guide-
lines laid down by the Premier in his
statement to the media today, and handed
to the member for Kalamunda who moved
the motion; it is the suggestion that this
inquiry should be wound up, and that the
Select Committee should report back to
Parliament in a few days. I wonder in
whose interest this whole question is!

If the Premier is so concerned about
statements that some of his Ministers have
grown wealthy during their parliamentary
careers through the manipulation of
capital, and if that has upset him. I sug-
gest the inquiry into this matter should
be looked at very thoroughly indeed. MY
only suggestion Is that it should be
thorough and should affect all Ministers.

We on this side of the House believe
it should concern all members. We have
no hesitation in supporting the principle
that all members, including Ministers.
should indicate to the public exactly where
they stand in respect of their investments.
if that is done a lot of the nonsense and
suspicion would be left behind. It Is only
when members on the opposite side o1 the
House fiercely oppose such a move that
this type of situation will arise. TO sug-
gest that the inquiry should be wound up
In a few days would make it a farce, In-
deed, and I hope it is recognised as being
that.

The Inquiry needs to be thorough. We
need to have the opportunity for people
to be called as witnesses as provided in the
Standing Orders relating to Select Com-
mittees, but everybody must be concerned
that the people who will be called as
witnesses should be given the protecIon
to which they are entitled. What is the
purpose of an Inquiry where peo-ple may
be called as witnesses, or where people
may be frightened off as witnesses, if
they cannot be assured that what they
say will be privileged, so that they can,
in fact, give evidence and provide the
truth.

Mr O'Connor: Some members will tell
lies too.

Mr Bertram: They tell lies here.
Mr O'Connor: You may too.
Mr Bertram: So do you.

Withdrawal of Remarks
Mr O'CONNOR: I would ask far a with-

drawal of the remark made by the member
for Mt. Hawthorn.
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The SPEAKER: Order! The Minister
for Transport has asked for a withdrawal
of the remark made by the member for
Mt. Hawthorn, In the Interjection he made.

Mr O'CONNOR: That is correct.
The SPEAKER: I certainly did not

bear the interjection. I would like to
know what it is.

Mr O'CONNOR: The member for Mt.
Hawthorn said I told lies in Parliament.

The SPEAKER: The member for Mt.
Hawthorn has been requested to with -
draw the offending remark, and I ask him
to withdraw it.

Mr BERTRAM: I withdraw it, but I
would like the opportunity-

The SPEAKER: Would the member for
Mt. Hawthorn resume his seat? I cannot
have any "its" or "buts" with the with-
drawal. The honourable member has been
asked to withdraw the remark and he has
withdrawn it.

Mr BERTRAM: The Minister made the
same accusation against me, and there-
fore I ask him to do as I have done: that
is, to withdraw his remark.

The SPEAKER: If an offending inter-
jection has been made I would ask the
Minister to withdraw it.

Mr O'CONNOR: Mr Speaker, I did
not make that statement.

Mr BERTRAM: I say that the Min-
ister did make the statement clearly and
unmistakably to the effect that T told
lies.

The SPEAKER: I would like to know
what the Interjection was.

Mr BERTRAM: I said to the Minister
by way of interjection words to the effect
"You lie also". My interjection was really
intended as a general interjection.

The SPEAKER: What was the offend-
Ing comment of the Minister?

Mr BERTRAM: I had to say what I
did say in order to give the context of
what took Place. The Minister said words
to the effect "You do also".

Mr 0 CONNOR: I did not say that.
When the member for Mt. Hawthorn made
his reference I said "You may".

The SPEAKER: I will ask the Mansard
reporter to supply the interjections.

[The Speaker was supplied with a copy
of the transcript.]

The SPEAKER: Order! It appears in
this interchange which took place that
there was enough said for an apology to
be made on both sides. I have before me
that the Minister said-

Some members will tell lies too.
The member for Mt. Hawthorn at that
Juncture said-

They tell lies here.

The Minister said-
You may too.

At which the member for Mt. Hawthorn
s aid-

So do you.
After which contretemps I believe the
Minister ought to apologise and have done
with it.

Mr O'CONNOR: If you so wish, I do,
Mr Speaker.

Debate Resumed
Mr BRYCE: I had reached the stage

in my remarks where I was indicating
that this committee of inquiry will be
pointless-it will be for public political
consumption-unless there are guarantees
that it will be a dinkum inquiry. Members
on this side before me have said-and I
can assure the House so will others who
will follow me-that we do support a
dinkumn inquiry, and I think I should In-
dicate what I mean by "dinkum" inquiry.

A dinkum inquiry will certainly be a
full one. There will be no restrictions
on people being able to provide evidence
and information they wish to provide.
Many people are concerned, not just my-
self, that there is a tradition in Parlia-
ments--not just this Parliament-to en-
sure that committees of inquiry are not
set up for the purpose of whitewashing.
That is not an original source of con-
cern to me. If we are to avoid that con-
cern we must have some guarantees for
the protection of people who will be in-
vitedi to give evidence before the committee.

Another vitally important aspect will
be a guarantee to this committee that
it will be able to discuss the business
aff airs relating to the Premier's interests,
which have been the subject of a writ
and a sub iudice ruling before this Par-
liament. I would have thought that the
finest example of what I said the other
evening concerning the manipulation of
capital would be that of any particular
individual in this Parliament who was part
and parcel of a company: someone who
owned the sole governing share in that
comoany-even though it was described
to this Parliament as a nominal interest-
a share which has eight times the voting
strength of the 25 000 shares. The holder
of that share has the opportunity to dis-
perse the wealth of that company. I have
said that in the simplest terms so that
it does not lay itself open to misinterpre-
tation or misunderstanding.

That would be the finest example of how
any Minister In this Government or any
member of the Parliament was manipulat-
ing capital during the course of his oar-
liamentary career. I would think it is a
simple and straightforward example.

What does concern many people as
well is the fact that In this very powerful
Position the Premier occupied at the time
he described the situation as a simple,
single nominal share.
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The SPEAKER: Order! I allowed the
member for Ascot a good deal of tolerance
because his are the allegations which are
the subject of the motion before us and
I did not want to prevent him from ex-
panding his viewpoint; but he Is going
far too wide Into matters that can be
brought under the review of the Select
Committee if it is appointed. I do not
think it is proper for him to branch out
into individual cases as he is doing. I
will ask him to have regard for that.

Mr ERYCE: In terms of the general
principle involved here, what does concern
me about this particular committee is
that, as I understand the situation, it will
not be permitted to report to this Parlia-
ment on any issue which is currently
classified or categorised as sub judice.
The committee may be able to discuss
stome of the questions, Incidentally, as
I understand it, that also will be for the
committee to decide, and I ask members
present: How is It likely the committee.
comprising three Government members
and two Opposition members, will decide
on a question like that?

Even if it were decided that such ques-
tions could be discussed by the members
of the committee, it would not be possible
or acceptable for that committee to bring
back a report to this Parliament contain-
ing any reference to a matter which this
House bad already ruled was sub ludtee.
Therefore1 in this way, contrary to the
Premier's interjection earlier on that the
issue categorised as sub judice is not re-
levant, I suggest it is highly relevant and
it will have a very limiting effect on the
work of the committee. This is one of
a long list of things which will help to
make the committee a sham unless sub-
sequent decisions are made to reverse these
possibilities.

SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-
Premier) (4.56 pm.): I rise to speak very
briefly on this matter in order to put cer-
tain things in their proper perspective.

Mr Davies: As usual.
Sir CHARLES COURT: First of all I

want to explain why I did not move the
motion. The mover of the motion auto-
matically becomes a member of the com-
mittee and in view of the fact that the
allegations are against Ministers-and I
class myself as one of them-

Mr Barnett: So do we.
Mr A. R. Tonkin: The chief one.
Sir CHARLES COURT: The chief one-

the only one with the commission to form
a Government, if that helps at all. As
I was saying, in view of the fact that the
allegations are against Ministers--and I
class myself as one of them-we were
most anxious as Ministers that it could not
be claimed that any member of the com-
mittee was. In fact, a Minister. There-
tore it was right and proper that the mo-
tion should be moved by a person not a

Minister. I want to say here and now
that the nominees of the Government will
not include any Ministers because we be-
lieve the whole inquiry is intended to be
In respect of an allegation made about
Ministers or a minister, whichever way we
like to look at it. We must assume that
all Ministers are under attack or are the
subject of the allegation by the member
for Ascot.

I would say, with the greatest kindness
I can muster, that the member far Ascot
has done himself a great disservice in the
speech he made today, because the Gov-
ernnment's, intention was to get the machi-
nery established without any prejudginq:
of the issues and without any directions
to the Select Committee.

Members opposite might laugh, but it
is ironical that many times members on
that side have espoused the virtues of
Select Committees, and all of a sudden
when a Select Committee is to examine an
allegation made by one of their number-
a serious allegation-

Mr Barnett: We are supporting It.
Sir CHARLES COURT: -they want to

ridicule Select Committees, at the same
time knowing that they dare not oppose
outright the idea of a Select Committee.

Mr A. Ft. Tonkin: We support the motl:n.
Sir CHARLES COURT: I want to remind

members opposite that the Select Commit-
tee principle built into our tradition,
Standing Orders, and Statutes is included
so as to provide that the Select Committee
is an extension of this Parliament, and so
many of the comments made on the other
side today are, in fact, a reflection on the
institution Itself-

Mr Jamieson: Cut it out.
Sir CHARLES COURT: -because Select

Committees are only an extension of the
Parliament, and the members of a Select
Committee get all the protection of Par-
liament. This is the reason, if a member
refuses to give evidence to that Select
Committee when called on so to do, he is
dealt with not by the committee, but by
the Parliament. That is the great strength
of its deliberations.

I want to come back to the speech by
the member for Ascot because it was un-
fortunate from his point of view that he
made such a speech. I would have thought,
now he has, committed himself to support
an inquiry, he would be most anxious to
let it get going as quickly as it can so he
can spell out these allegations, because the
motion has been so worded to give him
complete freedom to cover all the points
be alleged against Ministers, or a Minister,
as the case may be.

The main issue for, or the first job of,
the Select Committee, of course, will be
to hear from the member for Ascot to find
out what it is all1 about. From that point
onwards It will proceed and take the logi-
cal sequence of events.
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I remind members apposite that if they
reflect on their speeches, without exception
they have been apologetic. They have been
trying to break down what was said, and
have been trying to imply that what was
said by the honourable member in the heat
of the moment was nothing compared with
other statements which have been made in
this place.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Sir CHARLES COURT: I did not catch

the interjection from the honourable mem-ber, but If it was what I thought it was, I
would want him to withdraw it. However,
I did not bear what he said completely.

The honourable member talked about a
predetermined result, but he is doing the
very thing we on this side today all
endeavoured not to do-not to predeter-
mine the issues.

Mr Jamieson: When you become neutral
we will all cheer.

The SPEAKER: Order!
Sir CHARLES COURT: I thought this

matter would have been regarded as seri-
ous. It would have been considered to be
serious in any other Parliament, but we
do not have a privilege committee to deal
with these matters automatically as they
do have in some Parliaments.

Mr Bertram: That is a very bad thing.
Sir CHARLES COURT: Members oppo-

site do not seem to be prepared to allow
this machinery to be created in this atmo-
sphere so that the matter can be consid-
ered in a sensible way, and the good name
of this Parliament and the people con-
cerned can be cleared up or, if they
are guilty, they can be dealt with. That is
the object of the exercise

Mr B. T1. Burke: Will the sub judice rule
apply?

Sir CHARLES COURT: I will come back
to the point of the Select Committee. It is
an extension of the House, and it is an
extension of the privileges of the protec-
tion of the House.

I now want to move onto the question
of a Royal Commission. All of a sudden
there is an affection by members opposite
for Royal Commissions instead of Select
Committees. It is very clear in our mem-
ories of how one member of the Labor
Party, not so long ago, was prepared to say
about people all sorts of things which were
damaging.

Mr Jamnieson: That was prior to your
coming to Parliament, about 24 years ago.

Sir CHARLES COURT: When that per-
son was called on to appear before the
Royal Commission-he being the cause of
it-he refused to give evidence. On this
occasion the Government was not pre-
Pared to allow such a situation to develop,
because if the member refused to give

evidence then the Parliament itself would
have to deal with the situation. That is
fair enough, because Parliament would deal
with this matter in public and no Gov-
ernment would be stupid enough to deal
with it in a pre-emptory way. It would
be dealt with in a fair way.

Mr H. D). Evans: You wanted to wrap it
up quickly.

Sir CHARLES COURT: If the member
concerned did not want to give evidence
he would, of course, be admitting he made
a false allegation, and then Parliament
would be entitled to deal with the person
in its own way.

Mr Jamieson: That Is prejudging.

Sir CHARLES COURT: We are trying
to create a facility whereby the person
concerned may have complete protection
and freedom to make his allegation against
a Minister, or Ministers. Royal Commission
witnesses are protected by a Statute, and
Select Committee witnesses have the pro-
tection built Into the procedures of
Parliament, Standing Orders, and the
Statutes.

I want to refer to the allegation that
members on this side of the House did not
take advantage of the opportunity to
request the withdrawal of the remarks and
an apology from the member when he
made the allegation. I inform members
that they should read the Mansard report
where they will see there was some strong
protest, but the member for Ascot pressed
on regardless.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Who got to his feet
and demanded a withdrawal?

Mr Bertram: No-one.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I ask members
opposite to be attentive for a while. At the
time of the allegation members on this
side protested very strongly, and at a cer-
tain time the Speaker intervened, If mem-
bers opposite read the Hansard transcript,
and if they have a knowledge of Standing
Orders, they will understand that the in-
tervention of the Speaker at that time
created a situation In which he admoni-
ished the member for Ascot-or made a
request, whichever way one likes to look
at it. The member for Ascot was asked to
take a more responsible attitude and it
was a doubtful point whether withdrawal
could then be requested.

That brings me to the main purpose of
this motion. We enjoy a special place in
the community.

Mr Bertram: Hear, hear!I
Sir CHARLES COURT: We have a privi-

lege given to us. It has been extended to
us so that we are free to say anything;
even anything offensive and even if peo-
ple take exception to what we say we have
this very special privilege. It is terribly
important that that Privilege should not
be abused.
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Mr Bryce: What about writs?

Sir CHARLES COURT: Well, what
about writs?

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: order!

Sir CHARLES COURT: Obviously mem-
bers on the other side want to deny the
citizens of this State the protection of
the law.

Mr B. T. Burke: This is a nominal
speech!

Sir CHARLES COURT: I well recall a
certain member opposite, who is now
looking at me, who took advantage of that
procedure to protect his position.

I want to say that every Minister wel-
comes this move so that we will have a
chance to find out what the allegations
are, and against whom they are made. I
am authorised to speak on behalf of Min-
isters in this place and in the other place
-that is something the member for Kala-
munda could not do. All Ministers wel-
come this inquiry. They believe it should
be held expeditiously so that the Select
Committee can find out what the allega-
tions are, and which were made by the
member for Ascot. It will then be up to
each Minister, each in his own way and
in his own right, to answer the allegations
which are made in respect of that particu-
lar Minister.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Will the sub judice
rule apply?

Sir CHARLES COURT. Grow up! Does
not the member for Morley know any
other Latin?

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Sir CHARLES COURT: I must tell him

of a few slicker phrases than that.
Mr H. D, Evans: There are no slicker

Phrases than that.
Sir CHARLES COURT: The fact that

no Minister will be on the Select Commit-
tee, but will be available to give evidence
if required by the Select Committee, I
think demonstrates our sincerity of pur-
Pose in the matter.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: What about the sub
iudice rule?

Sir CHARLES COURT: There have been
allegations from the other side that we
are taking this action for a Political ad-
vantage.

Mr Bertram: Hear, hear!
Sir CHARLES COURT: No-one enters

into this sort of inquiry capriciously, and
what has happened means that members
opposite are unwittingly saying to Govern-
ment Ministers that they-the Ministers
-have nothing to fear; because of the
allegations which have been made we

now have the prospect of a Select Com-
mittee which is an embarrassment to
them-the members of the Opposition.

Mr H. D. Evans: Why don't you go for
a Royal Commission?

Sir CHARLES COURT: I remind mem-
bers opposite that the Ministers of the
Government welcome the inquiry. There
will be no reluctance on the part of Min-
isters to give evidence if so called because
of allegations of a specific nature if and
when made by the member for Ascot.

It will be up to the member for Ascot, if
this committee is confirmed. I1 was sur-
prised that he even involved himself today,
unless he was prepared to make some re-
traction, which he has not. He has now
compounded the matter by making it clear
to the Parliament that what he said the
other night was not in the heat of the
moment.

Mr Bertram: That makes it worse,
doesn't it?

Sir CHARLES COURT: What the niemn-
ber for Ascot said was premeditated and,
therefore, it becomes more important that
the Government should deal with the
position, and it makes it doubly nec2ssary,
therefore, that we have this inquiry as
quickly as possible.

The Leader of the Opp')sition, whilst
supporting the idea, to my mind com-
mitted a grievous error for one who
is a leader on his side by prejudging the
Select Committee. The Leader of the Op-
position referred to certain "red faces"
which would come out of the Select Com-
mittee. He went on to say this was now
going to become a "frightening affair";
they were his words. Frightening for
whom?

Mr Bertram: If someone cannot give
evidence because of the sub in dice rule-

S'r CHARLES COURT: We on this
side-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Does the sub judfice
rule apply?

Sir CHARLES COURT: -thought it wise
not to indulge in pre-empting the Select
Committee's work. While they-members
of the Opposition-are giving support to
this Select Committee Idea with tongue in
cheek because they have no alternative,
and now they have gone this far, they are
at the same time attempting to Prejudge
the issue and to pre-empt even the pro-
cedures of the Committee; and therefore
in my opinion they are doing a grievous
disservice to this House, to the institution,
and of course to the Standing Orders.

The former Leader of the Opposition, the
member for Melville, gave us a lot of
background about Royal Commissions and
a time when a Royal Commissioner's
powers were altered. I remember the inci-
dent very well, and he knows the reason
for it was quite different from the one he
put to the House this afternoon. If a Royal
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Commissioner had sat at that time under
the laws which existed at that time, lhe
himself would have been exposed to a
rough and tough lot of people, and the
Parliament did the right thing in protect-
Ing the Royal commissioner, barristers.
and others who were appearing because it
was made very clear to the Government of
the day that no Royal Commissioner or
barrister would have been prepared to ap-
pear, particularly in the atmosphere
around a certain industry which existed at
that time.

Mr Davies: You would believe anything
If you believe that.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I have no desirle
or intention to become involved in the de-
tail or in any way to prejudge or pre-
empt-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: What about the sub
judtce rule? What about it?

Sir CHARLES COURT: The Committee
will sit as an extension of this House.

Mr B. T. Burke: So it is bound by the
same rules, too. You cannot talk about the
Premier's business.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The Premier will
be ready and willing to give evidence when
required. If there is a specific allegation to
answer I will have no compunction at all
about answering it.

Mr Bertram: You would have no option
because it is sub ludice.

Sir CHARLES COURT: What are mem-
bers opposite worried about?

Mr Moiler: What are you worried about?
Sir CHARLES COURT: If the member

for Ascot-who is now starting to identify
himself as a person who will adopt this as
something of a campaign so far as the
Government is concerned-is prepared to
make definite allegations before the Select
Committee, that is what it is all about.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: The chief Minister is
immune.

Sir CHARLES COURT: That is what it
Is all about, if there are any allegations
about my own private affairs, let him make
them, and make them quickly and in the
right place-to the Select Committee.

Mr B. T. Burke: It is sub judice and you
know it. Even The West Australian has de-
serted you on this.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I find that in the
Opposition there is a great degree of sen-
sitivity on the issue. I would suggest to
members of the Opposition that the best
thing they can do is let this Select Com-
mittee convene and let it do its work; and
if it does not function as they believe it
should in fairness, they have plenty of Op-
portunity In this place and In the media
to let it be known to the public.

I want to remind members of one thing
they have apparently forgotten. There
is such a thing- as a minority report or a

dissenting report, and our own Standing
Orders spell it out very clearly. If anyone
on a Select Committee feels the report of
the committee is not a fair statement
of the findings and the work of that com-
mittee, he has all the machinery written
into the Standing Orders for the purpose.

I have been on a Select Committee
where I have made a minority report and
I know it can be done. Members of the
committee confer and try to reach agree-
ment on as many points as they can.
I have had the experience of being on a
Select Committee, and strangely enough
the minority report I was concerned with
involved a member of the Country Party
joining with me against the then Leader
of the Country Party and two Labor mem-
bers. So do not get the idea that a
Select Committee is a loaded affair. That
reflects on the Parliament, the House,
the institution, and our own Standing
Orders.

We do not want to get involved in the
detail-that is for the Select Committee-
but I want to make it clear that every
one of the Ministers here and in another
place welcomes the commnittee; and we
hope the honourable memnber does the3
decent thing by coming out and maldong
his allegatio;'1s in specific terms, and we
will be prepared to answer them.

MR B. T. BURKE (Balga) 15.15 p~m.):
As the Premier and his Ministers welcome
this Select Committee so. too, do the
members of the Opposition. We welcome
the Select Committee and seek only those
assurances which we think are appropriate
to ensure the Select Committee operates
fairly and in a nonpartisan way.

As you will know, Mr Speaker, I am
one of the youngest members of this House,
and far be it from me to base predictions
upon a lack of experience; but I have
learnt one thing about politics and that
Is that sometimes some very surprising
things come about when they are least
expected, and sometimes some of the
smartest moves conceived by the smartest
leaders result in things happening which
are not wished to happen by the leader
in whose mind the move was conceived.
I say that as a warning to the Parliament
about what might emerge from Pandora's
box now that the Premier has plucked
off its lid.

How can we on this side of the House
be expected to accept the word of a Gov-
ernment led by a man whose past per-
formance has shown that he has very dire
trepidations about revealing information?
He has shown by his use of the legal pro-
cesses that he Is prepared to wait through
many years to prevent the emergence of
information about himself-

Sir Charles Court: Nothing of the sort.
Mr B. T. BURKE: -and to prevent de-

bate in Parliament; and this Parliament
knows on how many occasions members
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have been sat down and told that items
they wanted to discuss were sub judfce.
They were sub juiice simply because the
Premier of this State maintained in exist-
ence a writ upon which very little action
had been taken over a very long time.
This is the man the Parliament wants us
to say is suggesting a Select Committee
will operate in a nonpartisan and unbiased
way. What rubbish!

We on this side of the House make it
quite clear that if this Select Committee is
to meet It will want to discuss the affairs
of every Minister and make inquiries into
those affairs. One of those Ministers Is the
Premier, and the opposition does not want
to be bound by the sub judice rule and
have its hands tied In preventing our legi-
timate Inquiries and investigations.

Is that an unreasonable thing to seek,
Mr Speaker? Is it unreasonable In the
light of allegations which have gone be-
fore? Is it unreasonable to say that a
motion which talks about Ministers' inter-
ests should also talk about the Interests
of the Premier-the first Minister? Of
course It is not unreasonable. What Is un-
reasonable Is to propose a motion to set up
a Select Committee and then to exempt
from the inquiries and investigations any
Minister, be he the Premier or his most
junior colleague.

Sir Charles Court: No-one is exempt.

Mr B. T. BURKE: In fact, the Premier
has told us today In two ways that his af-
fairs shall be exempt. He has told us the
Select Committee will be an extension of
the Parliament and bound by the same
rules and Standing orders as the Parlia-
ment, which means, as we have been sat
down in this House when we tried to talk
about his affairs, we will be prevented
from talking and reporting on his affairs
as a Select Committee. That is one way in
which he has told us his affairs will be
exempt.

Another way in which he has told us Is
his refusal to confront the continued ques-
tioning of members of the Opposition as
to his attitude towards the sub luiee rule.
We have asked the Premier whether the
sub judice rule will apply to the delibera-
tions and the report of the Select Com-
mittee. So that there is no misunder-
standing, let me pause now and ask the
Premier a question which he may care
to answer by way of interjection. Will the
sub fudice rule, as it governs debate in this
Chamber, govern the debate, investigation,
inquiry, or report of a Select Committee
as it Is proposed?

Mr Moiler: Good question.
Sir Charles Court: I want to tell you

this-
Mr B. T. BUJRKE: The Premier does not

want to answer the question. Will the Pre-
mier answer the question?

Sir Charles Court:. Just listen for a
moment. If the honourable member who
has made the allegations goes to the Select
Committee and makes allegations about
me, or any other Minister-

Mr Bertram: It is sub Judicel
Sir Charles Court: -they will be ans-

wered, but he must be specific this time.
Mr B. T. BURKE: The Premier has re-

fused to answer the question, and in his
refusal he tried to define more precisely
the terms of reference of this Select Com-
mittee.

Sir Charles Court: I can't-they are in
the motion.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The motion refers to
the allegations made by the member for
Ascot an the 9th November. The Premier
now says that he will not provide informa-
tion unless specific allegations of a more
precise nature-

Sir Charles Court:. Why should I?
Mr B. T. BURKE: -are brought along

to the Select Committee by the member for
Ascot.

Sir Charles Court: The member must
Justify his allegations.

Mr'B. T. BURKE: That is evasion, and in
case it was unintentional, let me again ask
the Premier: In his opinion does the same
situation in regard to the sub judice rule
apply to a Select Committee as it does to
this Parliament? The question could be no
more simple, clear, and concise than that.

Sir Charles Court: And you have had a
very straightforward answer. The member
is the one who has the questions to answer.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr B. T. BURKE: Let us have an answer

-'"Yes" or "No".
Sir Charles Court: You have had your

answer, and if the member makes his
specific allegations, the answers will be
given.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Is it "Yes" or "No"?
Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr B. T. BURKE: We do not want the

answer "Maybe" or the preface "Let us
pretend". Is the sub judice prohibition
going to affect the Select Committee?
if It Is, then it makes a mockery of
any sincere or genuine inquiry into the
affairs of Ministers.

Sir Charles Court: You are just putting
up a smoke screen. You have had your
answer. If the member makes specific
allegations, they will be answered.

Mr' Bertram: He is not allowed to make
them.

Sir Charles Court: Let him do the
manly thing instead of the cowardly
thing.
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Mr B. T. BURKE: The Premier is start-
ing to reveal his true colours. We see
already in this first aspect that the Pre-
mier is not prepared to say his affairs
will be subject to scrutiny. I warn mem-
bers of the Government that before to-
night Is out the Opposition will explore
many other aspects. On our first attempt
to seek a genuine inquiry the Premier
is not prepared to say his affairs will be
subject to scrutiny.

Mr Tr. J. Burke: He must have some-
thing to hide.

Mr Grayden: He said the member for
Ascot must make specific allegations.

Mr B. T. BURKE: That is one of the
reasons why we, in the back of our minds,
begin to doubt the truth and honesty of
the inquiry proposed.

Sir Charles Court: The truth is coming
out now. You don't want the inquiry,
but you cannot reject it. You are trying
to get out from under now at a fast rate
of knots.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!

Mr B. T. BURKE: We will give the lie
to the Premier's interjection that the Op-
Position does not really favour this Select
Committee. We indicate to the Premier,
through You, Mr Speaker, that before the
night is out, we will have ample oppor-
tunity to assure the House that every
matter eonuerniing every Minister will be
liable to investigation, inquiry, and re-
port.

We will see then who supports a genuine
inquiry. We have seen the example of a
Premier who, for years, has prevented
public debate or parliamentary debate on
a certain subject.

Sir Charles Court: Nothing of the sort.

Mr B. T. BURKE: He has taken this
action on the pretext that such debate
would influence the result of any court
trial. Now we are expected to swallow
the Proposition that this Select Commit-
tee will be genuine and fair. Not only
that, but the man who moved the original
motion told the House, before even be-
ginning his speech, that the inquiry will
take a day or two. How did he know
that?

Mr O'Neil: He did not say that.
Mr B. T. BURKE: I am likely to be a

member of this Select Committee.
Mr O'Neil: He did not say that-he

said no such thing.
Mr B. TI. BURKE: I will tell the Govern-

ment a thing or two. There will be many
matters into which I would want to look,
and I doubt very much whether any in-
vestigation would be concluded in the
short time envisaged by the mover of th8
motion.

I will not be bound by the Premier's
dictatorial attitude. He tells the Select
Committee-before it has been chosen-
that it will call the member for Ascot
first. I may well want to call the Premier
first.

Mr O'Neil: You are going to be on the
Select Committee?

Mr B. T. BURKE: It is not up to the
Premier to determine the procedure of
the Select Committee at this stage.

Sir Charles Court: I am not trying t,.
Mr B. TI. BURKE: It is not up to the

member for Kalamunda to tell his col-
leagues-who may be members of the
Select Committee-that they will sit for
one or two days or perhaps until Shrove
Tuesday.

What sort of sham is this? What sort
of game are we trying to play? We have
already seen the Premier trying to set
the stage in a most unrealistic manner.

Mr O'Neil: You are setting the stage-
you have just told us you will be a
member of the Select Committee.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The Deputy Premier
would break the stage!

The Premier Is attempting to set the
stage with regard to time and with regard
to procedure. More importantly, however,
let me stress this point again: the very
bad thing we have seen Is the continual
refusal to give an unqualified assurance
that all Ministers' affairs will be subject
to scrutiny. T1he back-benchers on the
Government side must be aware that that
Is the situation.

Sir Charles Court: If there are specific
allegations, they will be answered.

Mr B. T. BURKE: No unqualified as-
surance has been given. The member for
Kalamunda must know that if he Is to be
the chairman of the committee his posi-
tion is untenable. If the terms of reference
by legal process cannot be adhered to-

Mr Orayden: If any specific allegations
are made-

Mr B. T. BURKE: -that is going to be
the case. The allegations were specific
enough for the Government to move to set
up a Select Committee, but not specific
enough to look Into the Ministers' affairs.
If possible-

Mr Orayden: If he makes a specific al-
legation it will be answered.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Balga.
Mr B. T. BURKE: The other matter

upon which I wish to touch is the general
Proposition about statements during de-
bate provoking or causing the sort of re-
action that has been exhibited by the Gov-
ernment on this occasion. It may he that
on some occasions an action such as the
one taken by the Government Is warranted
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In the light of statements hurled back-
wards and forwards across the Chamber.
I do not know about that, but I do know
that the allegations made by the mem-
ber for Ascot are broad enough to en-
compass almost all the things that the
Opposition wishes to bring under Inquiry
on this occasion.

As a likely member of the Select Com-
mittee, I would like to assure members on
my own side and members on the Gov-
ermnent side that I will be assiduous. I
will ensure that everybody in this House
remotely connected with the manipulation
of capital-be he a Minister or anyone else
~-fronts up to tell us what he is doing.
That is what the Government wants us to
do although now it says the allegations are
not specific enough.

Sir Charles Court: Of course they nave
to be specific.

Mr B. T. BURKE: We will see how
specific they are. I say they are specific
enough to get right to the bottom of the
situation.

Mr Coyne: Sherlock Holmes!
Mr O'Connor: Perry Mason!
Mr O'Neil: 008!
Mr B. T. BURKE: The member for

Murchison-Eyre does not have the abili~y
to manipulate anything, let alone capital,

Mr Grayden: Is the member for Ascot
going to resign?

Mr Ber-tram: Do you think he should?
Mr B. T. BURKE: A valid point has

been raisad. There are two sides to a
situation such as this. I have heard
rumours In the corridors that one or two
quite important matters will need 'to be
discussed, but far be It from me to pre-
empt the Inquiry of the committee.

Mr O'Neil: You probably started the
rumours, if the truth is known.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Let mue say this:
If the member for Ascot has made allega-
tions that will not stand the light of day,
then in the same way as if Government
members and Government Ministers have
done things of which they can stand rightly
accused, the member for Ascot will have
to make his own peace with the public and
the Parliament and with the report of the
Select Committee. However, I warn the
Minister that the same will apply to the
Ministers, If the Government Is sincere on
the return of the report from the Select
Committee.

Mr Bertram: What do you say he should
do?

Mr Grayden: Resign.
Mr B. T. BURKE: I want to return co

this question of the sort of diabolical be-
haviour that can cause a reaction of this
sort in Governments. As 11 have said, I
can see that on occasions allegations are

hurled backwards and forwards across the
Chamber, and they can result in a very
serious situation.

To set up a Select Committee is a very
serious thing to do, and it should be pro-
voked only by something of a serious
nature. I would suggest that the most
serious thing any man could do is to lie to
the Parliament. I put forward to members
that that is perhaps as serious a thing as
any member could do.

Mr Grayden: I hope Hans ard is record-
ing every single word.

Mr Bertram: Of course it is, it is reason-
ably efficient.

Mr Jamieson: They are very good.
Mr B. T. BURKE: The Minister for

Labour and Industry uses his own rule to
judge what Hansard records of other
people; we all know Hansard does not even
bother to write down what he says. Let rue
go back and repeat for the Minister's bene-
fit and for the benefit of Mansard, what I
was saying. It is my proposition to this
House that the most serious thing any
member of this Chamber can do Is to lie to
the Parliament,

Mr Bertram: Hear, hear!I
M%1r B. T. BURKE: As was said previously,

that Is what the former British Cabinet
Minister (Mr Profumo) did. In abstract
terms that may not have been as serious
as the other things in which he indulged,
but in parliamentary terms it was the
most serious thing.

Mr Grayden: I could not agree more.
Mr B. T. BURKE: So, to continue and to

expand my proposition a little further.
let me say this: if to lie to the House Is
the most serious thing a member can do,
and If the allegations made by the member
for Ascot should evoke or provoke a Select
Committee, then what should be the action
of a man who lies to the House?

Mr T. J. Burke: Resignation.
Mr B. T. BURKE: What sort of action is

warrantcd in the face of a man who stands
in his place and lies to the House?

Sir Charles Court: Parliament has plenty
of machinery to deal with such a person.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The Premier is right:
we have planty of machinery, and in a very
short time we will have an opportunity to
oil that machinery.

Sir Charles Court: I hops you do.
Mr B. T. BURKE: Bear in mind, Mr

Spcaker, the things I have said, because
in a short time we will see which way
members on the Government side jump
whent the matter is laid very squarely and
very dispassionately before them. Then we
will see whether the virtue that members
opposite all seem now to demonstrate, will
persist.

The last thing I wish to do Is gently Lo
upbraid the Premier because he said In
his speech a short time ago that all the
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Ministers supported the move for a Select
Committee. He said every Minister was
pleased to see this move. But our very
good information is that the Premier did
not ask any of the Ministers prior to an-
nouncing this move. He mentioned to one
or two of his colleagues that he intended
to do it, but did not call the Ministers
together to obtain their endorsement of
his proposition.

Sir Charles Court: That Is how wrong
you are; there has been a Cabinet meeting.

Mr B. T. BURKE: That is typical of the
way in which this man operates.

Mr Grayden: You are absolutely wrong.
Sir Charles Court: That statement is

completely false.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr B. T. BURKE: It Is also true to say

that the back-bench members were not
aware of what was going to happen. I have
no doubt the Ministers now agree with
what the Premier has done. If they did
not they would not be Ministers; it is as
simple as that.

Sir Charles Court: They are 100 per cent
enthusiastic.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The Premier con-
sulted himself and gained a consensus-
which nevertheless is quite hard to do-
and announced the move to appoint a
Select Committee. He then announced that
the Ministers had been told, they agreed
with the move, wrote a speech for the
member for Kalamunda, and is now Imple-
menting his consensus plan.

Mr Grayden: They were told-
Mr B. T. BURKE: I agree: they were

told. It has now been admitted by the
Minister for Labour and Industry that he
was told.

Mr Grayden: What are you talking
about?

Mr B. T. BURKE: That does not mean
that everyone else was told, as special
measures are necessary in the case of the
Minister for Labour and Industry; but it
is a fair indication.

Mr Grayden: The matter was discussed
on several occasions.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Balga.
Mr B. T. BURKE: Is It not strange how

Government members squirm when the
boot is on the other foot?

The SPEAKER: Order! Will members
refrain from talking across the Chamber.

Mr B. T. BURKE: A moment ago the
Premier could stand expansively and talk
of the Opposition not really wanting a
Select Committee, and of the Opposition
apologising for what has happened. The
Opposition wants the Select Committee
and apologises for nothing.

Sir Charles Court: You could have
f ooled us.

Mr B. T. BURKE: As I said previously
-and I may be proved wrong-it has been
my experience that strange things have a
way of emerging when least expected; and
Government members should bear in mind
that they, throtigh their leader, have
opened Pandora's box, and if something
that is unpalatable emerges, it is too late
to push it back into the box.

Let me make one final point in my con-
tribution to the debate. Let me say that
I find it incredibly important that this
Chamber shou'd contemplate proceeding
with an inquiry into all Ministers' busi-
ness in the knowledge that it cannot in-
quire into the Premier's business. That is
the position, and yet we are going ahead
with this.

Let us be dinkuim. Let us tell the Prem-
ier-and we will Provide an opportunity
later-that it is not good enough that the
Minister for Police, the Minister for Lands.
the Minister for Works, the Minister for
Agriculture, and the Minister for Fuel and
Energy should have to have their affairs
scrutinised without the Premier's affairs
being subject to the same scrutiny.

Mr Grayden: The Premier has made his
position absolutely clear. What more do
you want?

Sir Charles Court: Not only myself, but
every Minister.

Mr B.
interjects
ref erence

T, BURKE: The Minister now
to try to qualify the terms of
of the Select Committee.

Sir Charles Court: No, he doesn't.

Mr B. T. BURKE: That is just not on;
allegations have been made, and the Gov-
ernment seized upon them. It has moved
the motion to set up a Select Committee.
So do not let it now change the ground
on which it wants to fight. Do not let
it try to make us conform to its party.

Mr Grayden: Has the member for Ascot
nothing to substantiate the allegations?
That is what the Select Committee is for:
to inquire into the information he has.

Mr Bertram: Which he is not allowed
to bring.

Sir Charles Court: Of course he can.
A member: No, he cannot.
Sir Charles Court: Don't try to squib it.
The SPEAKER: Order! Will the mem-

ber for Balga resume his seat? There are
far too many interjections. I do not mind
the odd interjection, as I have said before,
but I think this debate should be con-
ducted in a better manner than it is at
the moment. The member for Balga.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Thank you, Sir. De-
spite the interjections and the continual
harassment, it is quite clear that the same
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restriction wiUl be placed on the Select
Committee as has caused members in this
Chamber to be sat down whenever they
have tried to discuss the Premier's busi-
ness. We seek only an assurance that that
will not be the case.

There are other important amendments
that we believe will ensure that this Select
Committee is a fair and nonpartisan as
it needs to be. We believe, for example,
that, as far as possible, it should be a
public inquiry if it has nothing to hide.
If allegations are to be made the people
making them should do so in public; and
if they are wrong, let them suffer the
consequences. On the other side of the
coin, those who answer the allegations
deserve publicity to verify their position
if it is a correct position; and they de-
serve Publicity to ensure their condemna-
tion if their position is wrong.

That is another qualification which we
believe would make this Select Committee
no less viable or credible than other Select
Committees. We also want to ensure that
there is immunity for witnesses who come
before the Select Committee. and to en-
sure they will not be subject to prosecu-
tion or civil action of any kind. We do not
believe that will cause the Select Commit-
tee to break down or become any less cred-
ible than previous Select Committees.
What we do believe is that the Parliament
should ensure all the information which
should be brought to the committee is
brought to the committee.

We also wish to make sure that civil
servants, whose positions as every member
would know are very difficult at times like
this are not in any way subjected to any
sort of harassment. We do not want Pub-
lic Service Board inquiries commenced
during the currency of the Select Commit-
tee; we do not want CIS Inquiries com-
menced at the same time. That reminds
me: We have not yet seen the CIS report
on the last inquiry, although I believe it is
to be tabled shortly. We do not want those
sorts of things going on at the same time
as the Select Committee. If they need
to go on after the Select Committee has
concluded taking evidence, well and good;
but they should not occur at the same
time, to the harassment and disadvantage
of people who -lay their jobs on the line
every time they try to tell the truth as they
see it in public.

These are the very elementary sorts of
requirements we will be seeking. There is
one more: To make sure the inquiry is
conducted in a nonpartisan way and that
witnesses of whom members of the comn-
mitt--e wish to ask questions are free to
come before the committee, we believe
there should not be a majority decision as
to who shall appear before the committee.As members of this House know, there
will be five committee members. If I am
a member, and the member for Cockburn

is a member, and we wish to call a particu-
lar witness, we can be prevented from do-
ing so should the other three members say
that our request is unreasonable and un-
warranted.

Who has anything to hide in this mat-
ter? We certainly have not. We believe
that any two members of the committee
should be entitled to seek witness from any
person. That is not an unreasonable re-
quest. All we are trying to say to the com-
mittee and the House is that if the two
members are allowed to call witnesses be-
fore the committee, every side will have
the opportunity to seek the information
they need.

These are not suggestions which will
cause bias to creep into the committee's
deliberations; they are ways in which we
believe the committee's work will be up-
graded. In a matter of such acute politi-
cal complexion as this, these are ways in
which the Government will be able to
say with pride, "This is a nonpartisan
committee. We extended these sorts of
concessions, and this is the report."

We seek these concessions from the
Government not in the name of political
advantage for our side, because obviously
there is none to be gained, except for
the evidence which will come forward.
In a political matter of this sort, it is
necessary in terms of procedure and the
availability of evidence to concede to both
sides an equal say in which witnesses
shall come forward, and the way in which
the committee will be run.

I conclude by re-emphasising the need to
have included in the inquiry the affairs
of every Minister, not just the affairs of
the 12 Ministers, excepting the Chief
Minister. We have been sat down for
long enough In this Chamber. The Gov-
ernment now has made the move. Nobody
can say who will regret the step which has
been taken. However, whether or not it
will be regretted by someone, the im-
portant thing is that the affairs of all
Ministers, including the Premier, should
be subject to scrutiny.

MR BERTRAM (Mt. Hawthorn) [5.55
p.m.]: I was hoping the Minister for
Labour and Industry would not be leav-
ing the Chamber at this precise moment
because in the course of interjections a
few moments ago he was good enough to
inform me that a Cabinet meeting had
been held to consider this motion. I
asked him where it was held and he said,
"Here".

Mr Grayden: I
of the sort. You
Cabinet meetings
"Yes".

did not say anything
asked me whether any
were held and I said,

Mr BERTRAM: I then said, "Where?"'
Does the Minister remember that?

Mr Grayden: I said, 'There was one
here".

3912
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Mr BERTRAM: Is the minister agree-
ing with me now?

Mr Grayden: Yes.
Mr BERTRAM: Why then a moment

ago did he say that he had not said
anything of the sort? We have agreed
that a Cabinet meeting was held here.
Would the Minister be good enough to tell
me where It was held?

Mr Orayden: In the Cabinet room.
Sir Charles Court: Where do you think?

It has the name on the door.
Mr BERTRAM: For reasons totally be-

yond my comprehension and, no doubt.
beyond your comprehension, Mr Speaker.
the Minister said the meeting was held
here. When was it held?

Mr Grayden: What has that to do with
it?

Sir Charles Court: Mind Your own busi-
ness. We do not have to tell you when
we meet.

Mr BERTRAM: The Minister has told
us all the rest: I thought he would go
along with this request and tell me when
it was held.

Mr Grayden: Goodness gracious, don't
you think this matter was discussed over
and over again In the course of the day?.

Mr BERTRAM: Go on-this is only a
simple little matter. The Minister can
tell the Parliament. When was the Cabi-
net meeting held? It was held in the
Cabinet room and I Am asking the Minis-
ter when it was held.

Mr Orayden: If you want to know when
this particular issue was discussed, it was
discussed throughout the day.

Mr BERTRAM: Not at a Cabinet meet-
ing?

Mr Skidmore: A running Cabinet meet-
ing!

Mr BERTRAM: Was it held on the move?
When was the meeting held? Surely the
Minister can remember that. It was only
yesterday that the notice of motion was
given.

Sir Charles Court: What does it have
to do with you? We do not have to tell
you when we are going to meet.

Mr Laurance: A brilliant line of ques-
tioning, Perry Mason, brilliant!

Mr BERTRAM: I am not at all dis-
turbed by an insurance executive of three
years' standing, who then retired to become
a school teacher. Mr Speaker, for reasons
which you may not comprehend-

The SPEAKER: I am finding it difficult
at the moment.

Mr BERTRAM: Nobody in the House
knows why suddenly there appears to be
an iron curtain of secrecy imposed around
a very simple, straightforward proposition;
namely, when the Cabinet meeting was
held. We are not going to be told.

The SPEAKER: Order! I should like
the honourable member to confine his re-
marks to the subject matter of the de-
bate.

Mr BERTRAM: Certainly, Mr Speaker,
I will move on. It was Just a little point
which I thought the Minister could tidy
up.

Mr Grayden: It has no relevance.
Mr Jamnieson: Yes It has, because by not

answering the question you are admitting
the Premier does all these things by him-
self, on his own behalf.

Mr Grayden: That is absolute nonsense.
The matter was discussed the previous
night and all the next day, culminating
In a Cabinet meeting.

Mr Jamieson: You are telling us now;
why did you not tell us before?

The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr BERTRAM: I think the Minister for

Labour and Industry has found it is time
to keep quiet, otherwise he will put his
foot back in the fat. We did not come
down in the last shower; we know how the
show operates.

Mr Grayden: I hope you will not be
the legal counsel for the member for
Ascot.

Mr BERTRAM: Is the Minister suggest-
Ing the member for Ascot should have one?

Mr Grayden: No, I am saying that If you
are to be the legal counsel for the mem-
ber for Ascot he should get someone else.

Mr BERTRAM: I think that would be
an excellent Idea, and when that person
discharges his obligations before the
zormlttee, I take it the Minister will be
the first to see to It his costs are paid by
the Parliament. Is the Minister going to
agree to that also?

Mr Grayden: I expect that by then, the
member for Ascot will have resigned his
seat. Possibly, his place will have been
taken by the former member for Clontart.
The member for Ascot has no optlcn but
to resign.

The SPEAKER: Order! There are too
many interjections. I ask the member for
Mt. Hawthorn to proceed with his speech.

Mr BERTRAM: Yes Mr Speaker, I am
erring here in paying too much attention
to the nonsense of the Minister for Labour
and Industry, and I apologise for that. As
we all know, the Minister plays a certain
role In this Parliament: we all recognise
that fact and we will have something
more to say about it later.

Mr Jamieson: There has to be a hatchet
man in every team.

Mr BERTRAM: That Is spot on! How-
ever, be is not the best hatchet man in
the Government lineup.

The SPEAKER: Order!
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Mr BERTRAM: The member for Icala-
munda moved this motion, and the very
fact that it was the member for Kalarnunda
suggests by inescapable inference that the
matter Is reasonably important and serious
-according to their mover, not ours.

Then the Opposition did what it ought
to do and what is habitually done when a
motion is introduced: we asked for an
adjournment. It was denied. It is a measure
of the fairness of this Government that it
denied the adjournment of a matter which
according to his own outburst, the mver
of this motion considers to be serious.
which we do not necessarily accept at this
stage.

Sir Charles Court: You did not really
expect an adjournment.

Mr BERTRAM: I most certainly did nzt
because that is the Premier's perfcrmranc.

Sir Charles Court: Neither would any
Government have given an adjournment
an this.

Mr BERTRAM: Let us deal with the
Premier's interjection.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: It is normal procedure
on such an important matter.

Mr BERTRAM: This is the highest court
of the land. What other court, right down
to the lowest court of petty sessions, would
deny an adjournment in such a situation?
Which other court would dare to do so?

Sir Charles Court: it is one of your num-
ber who provoked it.

Mr BERTRAM: Now the Premier will
start explaining that he knows more than
I do. I am a lawyer and he is not. Yet he
always seems to know more about the law
than I do, according to him. He sits in
judgment on me. If a bookmaker or a boot-
maker were to start telling him about the
accountancy profession, what would he
have to say about that? Yet he is always
able to sit in judgment on my performance.

I think it is a condemnation of the Gov-
ernment that it denied an adjournment on
a matter of this kind which, according to
the Minister for Labour and Industry-of
whom I do not take very much notice-
would have involved serious consequences.
Let us not take too much notice of the
Minister for Labour and Industry, because
we do not ordinarily, but let us take notice
of the mover of the motion. Did he do so
to waste the time of the House or because
be believed it was a proper thing to do
and was a matter of sufficient significance?
He then votes against an adjournment.

He has had time to prepare his speech,
although I do not know who wrote it. He
had his speech ready and was all set to go
-with the Opposition not ready to go.
What notice did the Opposition have that
this motion would be Pursued? There is
no law to require it. What was to prevent
the Premier, having acted in pique for the
purpose of pulling somebody Into gear, from

concluding overnighbt that he had made
an error? What was to prevent him not
pursuing the motion? He did not pursue it
anyway; he got somebody else to do it.

Sir Charles Court: Notice was given yes-
terday.

Mr BERTRAM: MY mind turns back to
the Settlement Agents Bill when the Pre-
mier was prepared to give me seven days
to study a Bill which had the effect of ex-
terminating settlement agents from their
industry and snuffing out the livelihood of
the more than 1 000 people who would have
been affected by it. The Opposition, the 45
per cent of the populace we represent and
I were given seven days to prepare an
answer. What did we ultimately find? The
Bill was withdrawn because it was obnox-
ious and unsatisfactory. Let me remind
settlement agents that if this Government
is returned after the election, God help
them. I have already warned them. Never
let it be said that I have not told them
just how they will be treated if this Gov-
ernment is returned; and the Government
can deal with the matter at the beginning
of the Parliament Instead of at the end of
It in an election situation.

This business of not conceding an ad-
journment and giving us no time to pre-
pare a reasonable case is nothing new. We
were not taken by surprise. This has been
manifested by the contributions from this
side in the course of the debate.

How about having a little accuracy also?
The member for Kalamunda quoted Rob-
son's case and said that it was over in a
few days. It was not over in a few days. It
ran from roughly the 29th May to the 14th
June, which is very simply ascertained by
looking at the appropriate volume of Han-
sard. Why did he say "a few days", know-
ing it was 15? If he has not looked at Hant-
sard, why has he not? Why did he tell us
It was a few days? Either he has not
taken care to check or, having checked,
he told us it was a few days knowing it
was not true.

Mr Laurance: Fifteen days Is more than
a few days, is it?

Mr BERTRAM: Hello'I Here is Perry
Mason coming out of his thell-the spokes-
man for insurance. He has told us that
he is an insurance executive.

Mr Laurance: What are you?

Mr BERTRAM: The member for lit.
Hawthorn seeking to get for the people
of Mt. Hawthorn a fair deal in this place
-a full-time member.

The former Leader of the Opposition.
the member for Melville, wants to know-
as I trust in ordinary decency the memn-
bers of the public will want to know-how
it Is that on the eve of an election the
allegedly offensive comments of the mem-
ber for Ascot should be dealt with in this
way when on nearly every other occasion
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in this Parliament and previous Par~ia-
ments no such thing was ever contem-
plated. Why the change of direction?
Why the inconsistency? Why this extr-a-
ordinary performance, is what we want
to know.

We do not expect the Government to
tell us, and since it will not tell us we
are pointing out this extraordinary change
of direction: the Government has always
been heading in one direction and has
always acted under Standing Orders 129,
144 or 145 and on this occasion it is charg-
Ing off the path. Why? Has it something
t-o do with consistency? Has it something
to do with credibility? Has it something
to do with the fact that a general elec-
tion is just around the corner? Or was
it simply that the Premier decided that
he would start pulling somebody into gear?
He does it, we believe, in Cabinet. He
does it in other places, we believe. So
on this occasion he is pullingc a member
of the Opposition into gear.

Let us look at some of the other things
that happen in this Parliament of whiich
the Government members are not ashamed
and compare those things with this allega-
tion which is said to bring them, some
of them or the Parliament into disrepute.
The member for Ascot has already pointed
out a few of them. But to accommodate
the member for Scarborough, I ask: What
is more heinous--to deny pople an equal
vote or to accuse somebody of manipulat-
ing capital? I ask you, Mr Speaker, to
make a value judgment.

The SPEAKER: Order! I think the
comparison is tenuous and I do not want.
the member to dwell on that.

Mr BERTRAM: I will put another ex-
ample which I would say unmistakably
you, Mr Speaker, would not think to be
drawing a long bow. With the greatest
respect, I most certainly do not agree
with you, Sir, on the other question but
I bow to your ruling that to devalue the
votes of people is not reprehensible and
does not throw this Parliament into dis-
repute I

The SPEAKER: The member must ap-
preciate that they are different matters.
I do not mind his making comparisons but
they must have a bearing on the matter
before us.

Mr BERTRAM: I appreciate your view-
point. Mr Speaker. Is it a. closer analogy
or comparison when members of this Par-
liament threaten with physical force or
offer to fight a member of the Opposi-
tion in these very precincts or immediately
outside them? What was done about
that by anybody? What is more serious
with regard to bringing not only each
member but also the whole Parliament
into disrepute? I witnessed from as close
as here to the corner of the Table one
member bashing another member in the
eye. He could have blinded him and it
was done without provocation.

Mr Sibson: Were these two of your own
members?

Mr BERTRAM: They most certainly
were not. The attacker was a member
of the Government.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the member
for Mt. Hawthorn resume his seat? He
should know very well what I meant when
I asked him to speak to the motion before
the Chair. It is not good enough that he
should make continuous comparisons with
other matters. I would like him to speak
to the motion before the House, and not
bring forward a whole series of compari-
sons.

Mr BERTRAM: I respect your viewpoint.
Mr Speaker. What I was striving to do was
to indicate the question of consistency, the
way this Parliament acted on certain
matters, and the way it acted on this
matter. I am a bit taken aback by your
comments, Mr Speaker. I still believe, when
giving the speech some consideration, that
a number of comments were highly rele-
vant, but I will not be able to speak on
them.

I should make an observation on another
matter. To me it is extraordinary that the
member moving the motion should have
either refused or neglected-as I believe he
did, or at the very best he forgot to do so-
to tell this Parliament about his personal
understanding and his personal Interpreta-
tion of the words said to have been used by
the member for Ascot the day before-
yesterday-and which he says are offen-
sive.' Why should he deny Parliament that
knoawledge? Is that not highly relevanrt tn
this debate?

It most certainly Is highly relevant, yet
as I have said he either refused or neg-
lected to point out with crystal clarity
what he alleges amounts to allegations and
charges. It is surprising that he should
make a series of moves in this House, but
Is not prepared to come out and be specific.
Can that be regarded by anybody as being
fair? According to my judgment of what
happens to be and what does not happen
to be right, it is certainly not being fair.

Sir Charles Court: Who were You refer-
ring to-the member for Kalamunda?

Mr BERTRAM: Yes. I think he should
have come out and told us specifically what
the words meant.

Sir Charles Court: If lie did that he
would have been transgressing, and he
would have been subjected to ridicule and
strong criticism.

Mr BERTRAM: When a. member opens
the gate wide and tells us something, does
the Premier say he would be ridiculed?

Sir Charles Court: He was very wise In
not doing that.

Mr B3ERTRAM: One of the Important
safeguards in court trials is to give the
person on the receiving end of an allega-
tion the opportunity to know exactly where
he stands, and not half of where he stands.
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I was very interested to hear what the
Premier had to say earlier in this debate.
As I recall, be used the word "Premedi-
tated". I have not had a chance to look
at the meaning of the word in the diction-
ary: I suggest it would not be a bad idea
for the member for Kalamunda to look at
the dictionary on occasions.

I think what It means is that the member
for Ascot had sat down coolly and calmly.
took his time, and after the greatest of
in-depth consideration, made certain
statements in this House. I am very
interested in that observation. I deny that
was what the member for Ascot did, but
that is beside the point.

The point which the Premier has been
hammering, because he thinks It Is highly
relevant, is that if something is said in
this place in the heat of conflict and
debate, and the remarks are offensive, they
should be treated in an entirely different
light from something which might be said
or done in this place in a quiet and cal-
culated way, thought out beforehand and
premeditated, and even written out word
for word. He draws a distinction, and I1
agree with him entirely that a premedi-
tated attack, premeditated lying, or pre-
meditated misleading of this Parliament,
for example, is extremely serious. I repeat
that I agree with him. I am thrilled to be
able to be in complete harmony with the
Premier on that point. I would like to
have that recorded1 because It Is not often
that the Premier and I are In agreement
on matters which are debated In this place.

There have b~een almost innumerable
questions coming from the Opposition
across to the Government, and to the
Premier in particular, seeking to obtain
from him a crystal clear, unqualified In-
timation that the member for Ascot and
any other witnesses called before the Select
Committee-which will be apointed should
this motion be carried-will be able to
raise any matter they wish to raise con-
cerning any and every Minister.

Sir Charles Court: If they have specific
allegations, of course they have.

Mr BERTRAM: We do not have any
such assurance. The member for Kala-
muda is very anxious that no-one, in par-
ticular the member for Ascot, shall by any
possibility or strange circumstance be able
to duck consequences. I agree with him.
I think he has a wonderful concept.
Therefore he says he will make sure that
everyone required to give evidence will do
SO.

It is most important of course that not
only shall the witnesses come to the com-
mission-present themselves physically-
but also that they shall be able to testify.
if there is any rule which makes it man-
datory upon the Select Committee to pre-
vent certain material being raised by
question, statement, or by any other
means, then may I ask: What is the use
of compeiling someone to come to give
evidence?

The Person would come and say that
he wants to talk about so-and-so. As the
Premier pointed out only yesterday, Par-
liament is the body which determines its
own destiny, and he also told us today that
the Select Committee is an extension of
this Parliament; in other words, it is this
Parliament. We believe therefore that the
sub judice rule which applies here will
apply to the Select Committee.

The SPEAKER: The honourable mem-
ber has 16 minutes ieft.

Mr BERTRAM: Since it will apply there,
the member for Ascot In respect of cer-
tain questions may simply not be able to
raise them, whether or not he wants to.
The Select Committee would be duty bound
to say to him, "You cannot talk about
that here." I will come back to that again
in a moment.

In order that a degree of justice may be
seen to be occurring in respect of this
motion, it is my intention to amend it. So
if members will be kind enough to look at
their notice paper at page 4 they will be
able to follow the amendment which, no
doubt, will accommodate the member for
Kalamunda who has shown a great anxiety
to do the right thing by the Parliament
and by the member for Mocot. I am hoping
now he will continue with exactly the same
policy because we on this side cannot im-
agine he would not. I propose to move the
following amendment-

That the motion be amended as
follows-

(1) by inserting after the word
"upon" the paragraph desig-
nation "(a)"; and

(2) by adding at the end of the
said motion the following-

and
(b) the allegation that in

a personal statement
made by the Premier
(Sir Charles Court)
in the Legislative
Assembly on the 14th
day of September,
1912, in grave breach
of privilege, he lied
to the Legislative
Assembly.

Sitting suspended from 6.15 to 7.30 p.mn.

Mr BERTRAM: The circumstances said
to justify the motion moved involving the
member for Ascot occurred yesterday, the
loth November-I think towards or during
the evening. As we noted earlier this
afternoon, the attempt by the Opposition
to adjourn the motion was defeated by the
Government so that the Opposition was
placed in the invidious and very difficult
and unfair position of having to proceed
with this debate before it was ready. That
places me also at a great disadvantage
when it comes to seeking to argue the
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amendment which I proposed just prior to
the tea suspension because the circumi-
stances referred to in my amendment are
not altogether new although they are cir-
cumstances which all members of the
House, from time to time, and former
members of this House, from time to time.
since the 14th September, 1972, have dis-
cussed. It has been corridor talk ever since
then almost, in a sense, it would seem in-
cessantly.

Mr Rushton: You must walk in funny
corridors.

Mr Jamieson: The Minister must have
funny ears.

Mr BERTRAM: I am at a disadvantage,
and the Opposition is at a disadvantage,
because of the lack of time available. 1,
personally, would give very serious and
favourable consideration to any attempt
which might now be made by anybody in
this House-particularly anybody on the
Government side-to adjourn the debate
after I have spoken so that members will
be given a proper opportunity and so that
there will be no question of their not being
given a fair go by the Opposition in re-
spect of this motion, or any other matter
arising in the course of debate. I want to
make that abundantly clear.

Mr O'Neil: You are playing for a bit
more time.

Mr BERTRAM: I have sacrificed time in
this debate by making that point clear.
However, that is the price one has to pay
in such circkumstnces.

Somebody may ask: "What allegations?"
That would be a hyper-technical query be-
cause we all know what this motion is all
about for the reasons and circumstances
which I have already outlined. So, to seek
to actually identify what this motion is all
about would also be a waste of more time
on my part which I cannot afford.

Thte fact of the matter is that In this
place, as members know and as some mem-
bers know better than others, there is a
distinction between mere debates and Per-
sonal statements. A personal statement is
something which a member may make-
and I would be happy If any member can
correct me on this point-if the House, by
unanimous determination, concedes him
that privilege-a very real and unmistake-
able privilege not lightly conceded.

It is a statement which most members
would be entitled to make from a written
script, and the idea of making or granting
such an extraordinary concession is in
order that the member may clear up any
facts or circumstances which are abroad
and which may not, in his view, be correct.
So, in ordinary decency and fair dealing
members of this Parliament, and members
of other Parliaments, concede that right to
a person to make a personal statement bf
fact, and in making the statement the
person does not debate it.

It Is customary for members of Parlia-
ment not to interject, and nor do members
of Parliament debate the statement; that
is not in the rules of the game. It is a
concession-a decent, fair, and proper con-
cession-which I hope never will be denied
any member of Parliament to enable him
or her to place on record a factual situa-
tion so that a nonfactual position may be
clarified and, if a person's reputation is at
stake, so that the good reputation-if one
has It-shall be maintained and sustained.
I understand that is the position. I do not
say that authoritatively because I have
not, of recent times, had an opportunity to
read May in detail or certain other mat-
ters which I would very much like to have
placed before the House.

Mr O'Neil: We concede your point of
view Is correct.

Mr BERTRAM: Thank you. My recollec-
tion is that on the 14th September, 1972,
a concession was given unanimously by
this House for the Leader of the Opposi-
tion at that time-now the Premier-to
make a personal statement.

Mr B. T. Burke: He abused the conces-
sion.

Mr BERTRAM: My recollection is the
statement was one which was read.

The SPEAKER: The member has five
minutes.

Mr BERTRAM: Thank you, Mr Speaker.
The statement was read, and prepared I
think even with the consultation of '-,thers.
It was because of the contents of that
statement which seemed to mec to be ex-
tremely odd-extremely odd-that an un-
usual step was taken. On the probability
that the statement did not seem to be
likely-it seemed to be extremely unlikely
-subsequently a file which had relevance
to the statement and its accuracy was
tabled In this place by the then Attorney-
General.

I intend to quote the statement which,
as I have said, was a personal statement.
I will quote only part of it because I do
not have very much time, but for those
who are interested It appears at pages
3343 and 3344 of Hansard for 1972. The
statement, in part, reads-

The Important thing I desire to
make clear to the House Is that-

(a) My shareholding in Cherrita,
Pty. Ltd. is a very nominal
one.

Mr B. T. Burke: What is nominal about
it?

Mr BERTRAM:, Further in the report, it
reads-

I interpolate here to say that
Cherrita is the company in which I
have one share out of the 25,002
shares in all.

Every person to whom I have spoken about
this so far over a period of years, when-
ever the question has come up, has said,
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"This Is an innocuous shareholding-in me I would expect and insist upon the
name only, unreal, insignificant, the kind
of thing that happens when a person, say
an articled clerk, signs a memorandum of
a co mpany and takes one share In order
that the Companies Act may be complied
with, but the aiticled clerk does not par-
ticipate In the company because to all
intents and purposes It Is a valueless posi-
tion he is in."

But when the Companies Office file was
tabled here it revealed a position which
staggered all members. Even one very well-
known lawyer in this place was staggered
at what he found, and he said so. He
never dreamt the file would disclose the
facts which It did disclose. To use an
expression which never Impresses me very
much, "from Off the top of my head" I
am trying to reconstruct what was there,
because It turned out, from memory, that
the one share attracted unto Itself eight
times the voting power of the combined
total of all the other shares, which was
25 001. Once again from recollection, the
shareholding gave a power of directorship,
perhaps even a governing directorship; at
any rate, something equivalent to complete
power over and control of the company
and also other benefits. And none of these
was unlawful-very usual-which makes
the situation quite staggering. But of
course we can put the story together. It
also gave absolute jurisdiction and control
over the disbursement, entitlement, dis-
tribution-call it what one likes-of divid-
ends.

Everyone I have spoken to has said that
was not a nominal interest; it would be
nonsense to say It was. It was anything
but a nominal interest. It was an all-
transcending, far-sweeping, unlimited
power in that company.

Sir Charles Court: The member con-
cerned does not happen to have any shares
of any sort now.

Mr B. T. Burke: What about that time?
Mr BERTRAM: There was nothing

wrong with that arrangement. It was very
usual.

Sir Charles Court: Are you going to
tell them the other part that happened
on death at that time? Are you going to
tell them the whole story?

Mr BERTRAM: I am afraid I cannot
because I have been thwarted here and
I regret that. But at least this will give
the House an opportunity which, so far
as I can gather, it has been wanting for
a very long time: and it will give the
Premier what he was giving the member
for Ascot-an opportunity to sustain what
he had to say yesterday. This will give
the Premier, of course, the same fair
and equal opportunity to do the same.
I do not see any reason in the world why
he should not have that right. If that
kind of situation were lined up against

why anybody should not have that right.
The SPEAKER: The honourable mem-

ber's time is up.

Amendment to Mfotion
Mr BERTRAM: I move an amendment-

That the motion be amended as
follows-

(1) by inserting after the word
"upon" the paragraph desig-
nation "(a)"; and

(2) by adding at the end of the
said motion the following-

and
(b) the allegation that in

a personal statement
made by the Premier
(Sir Charles Court)
in the Legislative
Assembly on the 14th
day of September,
1972, in grave bieach
of privilege, he lied to
the Legislative As-
sembly.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: I formally second
the motion.

Point of Order
Sir CHARLES COURT: Mr Speaker, I

rise on a point of order. I do not know
what one's position is in this House when
we have a motion moved which in itself
makes an allegation which, to the best of
my knowledge,' has never been made and
says, as though it is a statement of fact,
that a person lied, when the person did
not lie as a matter of fact, It makes a
prejudgment that a person has misin-
formed the House. I wonder how you.
Mr Speaker, stand in accepting such a
proposal before the House. If one reads
the motion it says-

the allegation that in a personal state-
ment . . . he lied...

Mr T. J. Burke: It is only an allegation.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: On that point of

order Mr Speaker-
The SPEAKER: Order! The honourable

member will resume his seat. I will need
to have a look at this particular matter
and I will leave the Chair until the ring-
ing of the bells.
Sitting suspended from 7.45 to 8.03 p.m.

Speaker's Rufling
The SPEAKER: After a good deal of

consideration, I uphold in part the point
of order raised by the Premier in respect
of the words "lied to". I do this for the
simple reason that had this word been
used in debate in respect of a member I
would have objected to its use as being
unparliamentary, and it is obviously wrong
to allow the use of the word in written
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lorm in an amendment. However, this
leaves something of a vacuum, and as I do
not want to hold up the debate, I direct the
Clerks to delete the wards "lied to" from
the amendment and to insert the word
"misled"t ,

Point of Order
Mr J. T. TONKIN: I rise, Sir, on a

point of order. I remind you. Mr Speaker,
that by usage of Parliament it is provided
that one cannot impute motives or say
anything against the character of a mern-
bcr in aebate, and if one does so, one can
be asked to withdraw such a statement.
However, there is a provision that if a
member wants to make a direct charge
against another member, he can do it by
motion, and in that way he can accuse a
member of having lied. How otherwise was
Profumo obliged ultimately to resign from
the British Parliament when hie had first
taken the stand that he had not lied at
all, and it was proved subsequently by
motion that he had lied?

I submit to you, Sir, that this is a
matter you should reconsider in view of'
the probability that a situation like this
will arise again, because if your ruling is
sound, that one cannot in a motion make
a charge against a member, that in effect
means one cannot lay a charge against a
member when one has good grounds for
doing so. I think this calls for reconsidera-
tion.

The SPEAKER: I am indebtcd to the
member for Melville for raising this point,
I agree, and I regard it as true, that when
a motion of its own accord reaches such
terms as that contained in the amend-
ment, it is allowable, provided it is a
motion standing in its own right. I am
quite in accord with his view that such a
situation follows Standing Orders. How-
ever, I submit that this case is different in
that the motion, together 'with the amend-
ment-il they are carried-will be passed
onto a Select Committee and that is a
quite different situation from a motion
standing in its own right. I believe, there-
fore, that this decision is justified in the
circumnstances.

Dissent from Speaker's Ruling
Mr A. R. TONKIN: I move-

That the House dissent from the
Speaker's ruling.

In moving to dissent from your ruling,
Sir, I believe the House should take
cognizance of the remarks of the
member for Melville. it is true we are
not in this House to allow lightly language
to the eff ect that one member is a liar or
one member has lied. However, the Houre
must always have within its hands the
right to show that a member has in fact
lied. If no such charge is allowed, it means
that members are able to do this very act
and Yet escape the consequences. So it is
quite clear that we must have the capacity
to cenisure a member if in fact it can he
shown that he has lied.

The amendment moved by the member
for Mt. Hawthorn refers to an allegation.
The Opposition believes this House has
the right to instruct a committee of the
House; that Is, we have a right to say,
"An allegation has been made that the
now Premier has lied to the House and we
want a Select Committee to inquire into
this matter to see whether such an allega-
tion is true.'

The Select Committee can then investi-
gate the matter and it can either refute
the allegation or substantiate it. However.
ii the House is not permitted to instruct
a committee to inquire Into an allegation,
then it is removing from the bounds of
possibility the v'cry fact that a member
may lie to this House. We should always
have this capacity to say: This member
has lied, we will show that he has lied.
and therefore he will be dealt with
appropriately.

As I say, we accept that it is unparlia-
mentary to use the word "lied". It is a
word that is thrown around far too loosely
and If such a charge is not substantiated.
it is certainly improper and irregular, and
should not be accepted. However, the fact
remains that lies are told and that Parlia-
ments have been lied to.

John Profumo has been mentioned al-
roady and the one crime he committed
was that he lied to the House. His other
adventures were not crimes, but he lied
to the House of Commons, and that Cham-
ber regards this kind of thing very
seriously. I believe it is time this Parlia-
m,-nt took very seriously such an allega-
tion, or such conduct by a member.

Now, an allegation is being made. it
may be argued in this place that the
allegation is unfounded, but that is not
the point in dispute at the moment. The
point in dispute at the moment is that
this House has competence to make such
an allegation if it has some reason to do
so: and, of course, there Is reason to do
so.

It is quite clear that statements were
made and that a word was used which we
would think was not used according to its
Proper usage, and the Impression was
given that a member of this House had a
nominal share in a company when in fact
he controlled that company. That is not
the usual use of the word "nominal".

So if you, Sir, rule the amendment out
of order and say to this House that we
are not allowed to make such an allega-
tion, then you are saying to all members
of the future, "You may say things and
You will not be able to be charged with
what You have done because we think this
language Is unparliamentary."1

The SPEAK<ER: Of course, that is not
true.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: I am submitting to
you, Sir, that a great deal of notice of pre-
cedent is taken by this House, and will
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be in the future. I believe your comment
was that a motion of its own accord would
be acceptable, and that if this had been
moved originally by the Opposition or by
the Government as part of the original
motion it would have been accepted.

Quite clearly, it is competent for the
House to amend a motion, and if this
amendment is accepted by the House it
will become part of the motion. You have
said it is quite okay for a motion to be
moved using this language. Therefore, if
the House in its wisdom sees fit It will ac-
cept this amendment, and it will then be
a proper part of the motion. An amend-
ment moved to any motion is as much a
part of the motion once it is accepted as
is any other part of the motion. There
is no ranking in the orders of a motion.

A motion may be moved which is
amended eight times, and when the eighth
amendment is accepted by the House it
has Just as much status as any other
Part of the motion, including the original
part of the motion. Once the amended
motion has been agreed to by the House
there is no way to differentiate between
the various parts of it, even though some
may have been added at various times.

To sum up, the point has been excel-
lently made by the member for Melville-
and this is the basis of my case-that we
all know that such a thing as a lie occurs
in life. Lies are told. It is alleged such
a thing happened in this House. It is
most important that a. Select Committee
look at this question and decide whether
the allegation is correct.

Now, this is purely an allegation,' and
the House has a right to instruct a Select
Committee to look at this most serious al-
legation. If the House does not have the
right to do that, then we are saying that
people in the future will be able to tell
lies to Parliament and yet never be charged
with it, because it is unparliamentary to
do so; whereas, of course, what is more
unparliamentary than using the word
"liar" or "lied" is to lie to the House It-
self. That is the real unparliamentary
thing. This House must keep within its
hands the right to deal with or punish a
member who does that most unparlia-
mentary thing of all;, lie to the Rouse.

Point of Order
Mr B. T. BURKE: I rise on a point

of order. My point of order seeks to asic
you under which Standing Order you. Sir,
have competence to instruct that an
amendment moved by a member of the
House shall be altered in a way that might
not be acceptable to either the mover
or the seconder.

The SPEAKER: Under the general
powers of the Speaker to handle the sit-
uation as he sees best.

Dissent from Speaker's Ruling Resumed
Mr HARTREY: It is with regret that 1,

who am only a junior member of this
House by comparison with the member
for Melville-although I am actually a
year or two senior to him in age-rise
to disagree with that member.

if someone in this House wished to
charge me with malversation of my trust
funds, he would be quite entitled to do
so in those terms. A man who is guilty
of malversation in respect of his trust
funds--especially a lawyer-is, in com-
mon parlance, a bloody thief. But if
somebody stood up and said that in this
House, I would immediately say that is an
unparliamentary term, and that if the
member concerned wished to charge me
he should charge me in proper language.

Mr Speaker, that is what you have done.
If it is desired to charge the Premier with
having misled the House, that is the way
to say it. But unparliamentary language,
whether it is "thief" or "liar" is not ad-
missible; and I think you are perfectly
right in saying so. With all respect to
the member for Melville, who is much
more experienced than I am in these mat-
ters, but who I do not think knows any
more about English when all is said and
done, certainly I cannot disagree with the
Speaker's ruling.

Point of Order
Mr B. T. BURKE; I rise on a further

point of order, Mr Speaker. Under the
general powers which oblige you to main-
tain the proper procedure of the House,
I submit the words "deliberately misled"
would be a more appropriate substitution
for the word "lied" than the word "mis-
led".

Mr O'Neil: The House is already det-
termining whether the Speaker is right
or wrong; not you.

The SPEAKER;, 1 am not at all sure
this is actually a point of order, but I
take the point that some might prefer
a slightly different phrase. I could have
ruled the amendment out of order, but
I did not want to do that. I said pre-
viously-and I paraphrase it now-I would
use my general powers to make the alter-
ation to change the words "lied to" to
"misled".

I think the matter could be debated on
that level under the circumstances which
I outlined. I have tried to show the nice
difference between a substantive motion,
which would stand of its own accord, and
a motion which seeks to set up a Select
Committee. I therefore continue to rule
that this should be so, in order to ease
the debate.

Dissent from Speaker's Ruding Resumed
Mr SKIDMORE: I wish to support thie

dissent from the Speaker's ruling. I would
like to refer to the short speech of the
member for Boulder-Dundas in which he
said that what has occurred is correct and

3920



[Thursday, 11 November, 1976] 92

that the words in question should not be
entertained in an amendment. He sug-
gested that the member for Melville was
wrong.

However, I understood the Speaker to
accept the proposition put forward by the
member for Melville, and it is passing
strange to me that, having accepted the
proposition that had we been dealing with
a substantive motion it would have been
fair and proper to have accepted the
words, the Speaker Should proceed to
delete the words and substitute another
word in their place. Please correct me it
I am wrong, Mr Speaker, but I under-
stood you to put forward the view that
because we were dealing with an amend-
ment rather than an original motion, it
was not possible to accept the wording in
the form put forward by the member for
Mt. Hawthorn.

The SPEAKER: It is going to another
authority.

Mr SKCIDMORE: Whether or not it goes
to another authority, surely it should not
deny the right of a member to move an
amendment to a motion before the House.
We would reach a ridiculous situation if
at some future time members looked
back on this as a precedent and said, "An
amendment was rejected in 1976 on the
ground of improper wording and the
Speaker of his own volition deleted some
of those words and substituted another
word and made the amendment in a form
which may not have been ac~ceptable. tn
the mover or seconder of the amnendment."
N'either the mover nor the seconder of
the amendment has indicated his thoughts
on this matter. I believe such a precedent
could make it very difficult for any future
Speaker to maintain any semblance of
control in relation to allegations which
are made in this place.

With all due respect to you, Mr Speaker,
I consider it quite improper for a Speaker
to delete wards and substitute other words
in amendments, and had I moved the
amendment I would have made my posi-
tion quite clear. Having moved an amrend-
inent containing certain words, I would
feel it my duty to defend the wording.
thereby proving the sincerity of my pur-
pose; I would not have been prepared to
accept your compromise solution.

To my way of thinking, there is a big
difference between the words "lied to"
and the word "maisled". AS the member
for Boulder-Dundas suggested, this is only
an allegation, and does not necessarily
need to be substantiated.

We are not dealing with a trial In a
civil court, or with the rules of the Supreme
Court or a Court of Petty Sessions; we are
dealing with the rules of this House under
its Standing Orders.

Mr Hartrey: This is a court.
Mr Grewar: This Is the highest court In

the country.

Mr SKIDMORE: I would be quite pre-
pared to accept that this is the supreme
court, but one cannot compare the rules
of this place with the rules of the law
courts of our land; there is a different
set of principles involved.

I hope the amendment is accepted in its
original form because If It is not, we could
be creating a problem of great magnitude
for future Speakers and members. It may
be said that members may not wish to take
advantage of precedents, but In the few
short months I have been here my faith
In human nature has been shattered. There
is no denying that the rules and history
of this place are bound up with practice
and precedent and the utterances of mem-
bers taken down in Hansard since the dim,
distant days. Speakers' rulings can be
placed in the same category.

With respect, Mr Speaker-and I do have
due respect for the Chair-it was Improper
for you to alter the wording of the amend-
ment; r do not believe It was within your
province. If it were, we would be removing
the right of people to move motions con-
cerning- matters In which they sincerely
believed.

The statement, "It is alleged that a man
shot his wife" In no way can be construed
as a statement of fact, no more than it
can be said that an allegation that some-
body has lied automatically makes a liar of
that Person. We have not determined this
issue. I believe the House should permit
the amendment in Its original form, and
I support the motion to dissent from the
Speaker's ruling.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Mr Speaker-
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Swan did bring to my mind that I should
Propose to the mover and seconder of the
original amendment that if they do not
wish to debate the altered amendment it Is
within their province to withdraw that
amendment. it would then leave the orig-
inal amendment they moved. I advise the
House that at that juncture. I would rule
the original amendment out of order, for
the reasons to which I referred earlier,
after which the debate on the motion could
be resumed.

Mr BERTRAM: Thank you, Mr Speaker.
Whilst reserving my right to participate
In the motion of dissent before the Chair-

The SPEAKER: This will not prejudice
that.

Mr BERTRAM: -1 would have to go
along with the alternative proposition of
the deletion of the words and the replace-
ment of other words, which You intimated.
I will certainly do that.

The SPEAKER: Thank you. The mem-
ber for Balga wishes to speak to the
motion?

Mr B. T. BURKE: I wish to continue
the debate on the disagreement with your
ruling.
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The SPEAKER: I call the member for
Balga.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: I am at a bit of a
loss to know the present state of play.
It seems the mover of the amendment has
agreed to withdraw his amendment.

Mr Bertram: No, I have not withadrawn
anything.

The SPEAKER: TChe member for Moriey,
I think, gained the wrong impression tromn
what the member for Mt. Hawthorn said.
The member for Mt. Hawthorn intimated
to the H-ouse and to me that he did not
wish to withdraw the amended motion
wixchi I have suggested. I tlvn calle
the member for Balga to sr~eak to the
motion that the Speaker's ruling should
be disagreed with. Is the member for
Morlcy happy about the situation?

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Thank you.
Mr B. T. BURKE: Mr Speaker, with

due respect, I am sure that the 11th
November, 1976, will go down in the re-
cords and history of this Parliament as
the day an which there were gymnastics
of an unprecedented nature in this Gov-
ernment's efforts to avoid facing up to
reality and answering the truth with
argument. Z am amazed that any man in
your position, Mr Speaker, could take
upon himself the right to alter unilaterally
an amendment moved by a member of
this House acting perfectly within his
rights and then allowing debate to con-
tinue for some time on a motion to dis-
agree with your ruling before interrupt-
ing the debate and offering an alterna-
tive to the mover and seconder of the
amendment-an amendment which would
have nullified the move to disagree with
the ruling you have made.

Mr Speaker, it is Incomprehensible to
me that you should be able to cali upon
some mystical general powers to substan-
tiate the action you have taken. It has
always been my experience, limited though
it is, that Speakers have given authorisa-
tion under which their actions have been
taken. That is one thing, Mr Speaker.

The other thing I find difficult to com-
prehend is the way in which you, Mr
Speaker, can equate and substitute the
word "misled" for the word "lied". it
seems to me that the elementary substi.tu-
tion, if it is to be made-and 1 deny
that it should or can be made-Is the
words "deliberately misled". It seems to
me unreasonable to unilaterally make this
change and expect the mover and seconder
of the amendment to agree with the
change.

The member for Morley summed up the
Opposition's position precisely when he
said that if that amendment were nassed
it woiuld become an indistingui -hable part
of the motion before the House. If a
1 bstarttlve motion is before the House an

umending part of that motion is part of
the substantive motion. I find it absolutely

d.'sgraceful that the actions of the Premier
which are souuht to be impugned by this
amendment are slipp.ed off the hook ii,
this way.

Mr BRYCE: I rise to support the motion
of dissent on similar grounds, -with one
additional point. I found that I had time
to consult Collins National Dictionary. I
very much regret that it was not the
Oxford Dictionary which I prefer, but
this is the best which is available to us
at Parliament house.

The word "lie" is defined thus: "to
utter an untruth, to mislead, to d&eeive,
to make false statement". A liar is de-
fined as one who utters a falsehood,
"lying" as being addicted to telling lies,
and "white lie" as an untruth uttered
without evil intent.

Mr Sibcon: We know that.

Mr BRYCE: If I may express a rejoinder
to the member for Bunbury, he might not
be aware that the definition of the word
"mislead" is "to lead astray". There Is a
very significant difference between to lead
astray and to make a false statement or
to utter a deliberate falsehood.

What members on this side of the House
find most pertinent in the use of these
words Is that on the occasion that has
been referred to a very carefully prepared
and legally phrased document was read to
this House. It was deliberately prepared
and carefully savoured before it was pre-
sented to the Chamber. There were no
interjections; there was no on-the-spot
thought. In that sense if a deliberate
falsehood were uttered it would constitute
a lie. That is a harsh word, and I sin-
cerely believe that this sort of thing occurs
very Infrequently.

The member for Melville made the point
quite clearly that in the Profumo case in
the British Parliament a substantive
motion was moved to Incorporate this
principle. A similar motion Incorporating
the use of the word "fraud"-wblch is
certainly commonly accepted as unparlia-
mentary language-was used against the
member for Melville In a substantive
motion.

I Indicate may support for the reasoning
behind the viewpoints put forward by the
members for Balga, Melville, Swan and
Morley that once an amendment has been
considered and Incorporated with an Initial
motion, it becomes part of the entire whole
-part of a totally new motion.

As the original motion was moved by the
Government and as the amendment which
is now before us would have been ruled
out of order on a previous occasion, I sub-
mit It Is perfectly valid and proper for
this amendment, if accepted, to be in-
corporated as part of the motion.

Mr JAMIESON: Mr Speaker, under cer-
tain circumstances one could probably en-
compass some of the reasonings behind
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your move, but I find it most difficult to
do so In view of the wording of this am-
endrnent. The original motion deals with
allegations. The amendment deals with an
allegation. Although the amendment is a
little more specific in that It seeks to
Investigate whether the person concerned
lied to the Legislative Assembly, It is tn
allegation and not a fact at this time.
It could not be a fact until the matter
is reported upon to this House by the
Select Committee. Mr Speaker, I think
You said the Rouse is referring this mat-
ter to another authority.

This is a committee of the House1 and
it gets its authority from this House.
Furthermore, it must report back to this
House. It is not an outside authority;
therefore it is completely encompassed by
the activities of the Legislative Assembly
and all the normal and formal functions
as Prescribed by the Standing Orders and
the rest.

I do not see there can be any way in
which the amendment cannot be accepted
as part of a formal motion. The member
for Swan has clearly indicated that re-
peatedly one sees references in the Press
to persons alleged to have robbed, killed,
or raped people. It cannot be suggested
that the person responsible was a robber,
a rapist, or a liar until such time as the
court has made a determination on the
matter.

On this occasion the court acting on
our behalf would be the Select Commit
tee; and therefore it would be for the
Select Committee to determine whether
these things did happen. It is given the
responsibility to report on the correctness
or otherwise of the allegations placed be-
fore it for investigation.

In the circumstances, regrettably I join
with members on this side in disagree-
ing with your ruling, Mr Speaker, because
I feel it is desirable to make the posi-
tion clear, as I see it, in regard to the
use of words-as distinct from expressions
-that are unparliamentary, where they
are used deliberately within the context
of a motion or an amendment. So far
as this argument Is concerned the ori-
ginal motion is a technicality.

I Join with my colleagues in opposing
Your ruling. I would have hoped that
you, Mr Speaker, would be prepared to
have another look at the matter after
the member for Melville Indicated to you
there was some doubt In his mind. on
reflection, You may realise that problems
will be created if motions or amendments
are interfered with by the Presiding of-
ficer, without specific reference to case
history, using a latent power-I think I
have heard that expression being used in
other walks of life-to do so.

I agree there comes a. timp when, in
the absence of a guide, an instruction, a
view, or a precedent, it is necessary for
the Presiding Officer of his own volition

to make a determination. However, I do
not agree that on this occasion we see
such an instance before us. The amend-
ment is an attachment to the motion;
it then becomes something positive before
the House. Therefore, I feel that the
member who moved the amendment in the
way he did Is entitled to the wording he
specified.

Ur BERTRAM: I Paused f or a moment
before rising to my feet, in order to give
any member on the Government side an
opportunity to speak against the motion
to dissent from the Speaker's ruling. We
on this side are surprised that no member
opposite has felt possessed of a case in
justification of your ruling, Mr Speaker,
to come out and speak on it with sufficient
justification. I do not want it to be said
that the Opposition has mnonopolised the
strike by shutting others out and getting
the call, because to do so would be unfair.

I adopt all tho arguments that have
been put up by members on this side who
have spoken on this motion to dissent from
the Speaker's ruling, with the exception
of the argument put up by the member
for Boulder-Dundas. I must go on record
as saying that I was extraordinarily im-
pressed with the argumkent advanced by
the former Premier and Leader of the
Opposition, and now the member for
Melville, and by what he had to say on
this motion of dissent.

After all is said and done, he possesses
-as the member for Boulder-Dundas
rightly conceded-an extraordinary wealth
of experience, and therefore members of
this House should give equivalent and
appropriate weight to the remarks he has
made. It will be recalled that the member
for Melville drew on some authority for
his attitude on the Profumno case which,
as members know, has an extraordinarily
close analogy to the case involved in this
debate.

It is no good seeking authority or re-
ference from any source which is not
parliamentary. The member for Melville
with all his experience knows that, and
therefore was able to rely on the Pro-
furno case with ample justification. I
think It is worthy of mention that this
amendment to the motion has something
to say about an allegation. It is not a
statement which amounts to a judgment.
a conviction without trial, or anything in
the vaguest way resembling that, as the
member for Swan so well put the position.

The member for Swan referred to what
one is able to see in the Press daily-mere
allegations. In any event if it was thought
there was any unfairness at all It was
erared whben the Premier made a denial
of thbe allegation immediately I resumed
my seat. Readers of Hanscard will know
there is no unfairness involved. One could
have no particular objection to what he
did. The fact is that on the fairness side
we have no problems.
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I support the argument that the ulti-
mate amended substantive motion is not
a segmentised matter which is to be carved
up or placed into categories. It is a sub-
stan tive motion.

It does not appear to me to amount to
ordinary common sense that one should
be able to use certain words in an un-
amended motion, but that the very same
words cannot be used in the amended
substantive motion. That does not seem
to be right. It seems to be illogical, and
things which are illogical and do not
appear to make good sense offend us all.
On that ground I have no alternative but
to dissent from your ruling, Mr Speaker.

Finally I refer to one point that con-
cerns me, and it is not a point which has
just arisen. It was made earlier by me
in the debate before this turn of events
was expected or contemplated. I believe
that in this House we should use correct
words to describe an allegation or senti-
ment which Is in our minds, If we have
something in our minds, which we have
justification to put forward, we should
then wrap it up and convey it in correct
words. We know that in this place that is
what happens.

Let us take the substantive motion
moved by the member for Icalamunda. I
have already complained that when given
the opp:)rtunity he declined, refused, or
neglected to particularise the very essence
of what he was getting at.

The words used by the member for Ascot
have a hundred and one meanings and SI
ordinary fairness to him, he should know
which one it is which Is offensive. one
hardly needs to develop that point further.
All other courts In the land-this is sup-
posed to be the highest, setting the pattern
or precedent--always give the parties par-
ticulars so they know precisely what is
the issue and so that they do not Imagine
that a certain thing is the Issue and pre-
pare to fight it and then find that the
Issue was something else.

A member can mislead this House in a
million and one ways. Somewhere along
the line when the amendment Is carried
and It becomes part of the ultimate sub-
stantive motion and the matter Is referred
to a Select Committee, we will have to
reveal the precise nature of the mislead-
ing. I think the time and proper place to
do it is here.

All the people involved In the Parlia-
ment, the public, and the debate, are en-
titled to know precisely what Is the al-
legation so that the definition is narrow
and not blurred by being broad. I think
that is very clear, and because it Is clear
and because of the reasons I have given
and arguments I have adopted, I support
the motion to dissent from your ruling,
Mr Speaker.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I rise to oppose
the motion, but for entirely different reas-
ons from those expected by members on

the other side. Mr Speaker, quite frankly,
I thought you were being extremely gen-
erous In your ruling. You were endeavour-
Ing to facilitate the matter so far as the
Opposition was concerned when in fact I
would have thought the correct ruling
would be to disallow the amendment al-
together.

Mr Davies: You are reflecting on the
Speaker.

The SPEAKER: I did consider that
course of action.

Sir CHARLES COURT: You mentioned
that you gave serious consideration to it,
but in a generous attitude and one of
conciliation and helpfulness You decided
to allow the amendment to be debated, but
In a f orm which did not Infringe oni the
particular point which had been raised.
If the words which were proposed by the
honourable member had been allowed, it
would have meant that a member could
get away with anything in this House If
he wrote It, but not if he spoke it.

Mr Jamieson: That is not quite right.

Sir CHARLES COURT: When the de-
bate Is resumed on the proposed paragraph
(b) It will be very clear that that para-
graph is completely Inconsistent with the
motion Itself, The original motion Is very
clear and deals with a specific matter.

Mr Davies: It doesn't, you know.

Sir CHARLES COURT: In a moment of
Panic the Opposition has tried to bring
In a smoke screen to try to bide the em-
barrassment It feels because one of Its
members has been asked to substantiatc
the allegation he made.

So, I rise to say that we oppose the
motion to disagree with your ruling, but
I did want to make the comment that I
believed your first thoughts on the mat-
ter were the correct ones.

Motion (dissent from Speaker's ruling)
put and a division taken with the follow-
Ing result-

Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr T' J. Burke
Mr Canr

Mr Blafifle
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadour
Mr Orayden
kir Grewar
Mr flartrey
Mr Laurance
'Mr Merbarlin

Ayes-14
Mr Davies
Mr Jamieson
Mr Skidmnore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr J. T1. Tonkin
Mr Mailer

(Teller)

Noes-22
Mr Mensaras
Mr Nanovlch
Mir Old
Ur O'N~eil
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
Mr Shaiders
Mr Silison
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Olarka

(Teller)
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Pairs
Ayes Noes

Mr May Mr P. V. Jon
Mr Dfclver Mdr Sodeman
Mr T. D. Evans Mr Crane
Mr Harman Mr Watt
Mr T. H. Joas Mr Stephens
Mr Fletcher Mr O'Connor
Mr H. D. Evans Mr Young

Motion thus negatived.

Debate (on amendment to motion)
Resumed

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [8.58
p.m]: Mr Speaker-

Point of Order
Mr A. R. TONKIN: On a point of order,

I take it that the member for Kalamunds
is not replying to the motion.

The SPEAKER: I put the question which
is that the amendment as I directed it be
corrected be agreed to.

Debate (on amendment to motion)
Resumed

Mr THOMPSON: I am the first speaker
on the Government side on the amend-
ment.

I was impressed earlier on today when
I received an indication from the Leader
of the Opposition, his deputy, and other
members on the other side of the House
that they fully supported the motion I
moved.

Mr Skidmore: Still do.
Mr THOMPSON: it is now almost 9

o'clock.
Mr Davies: You can tell the time, too.
Mr THOMPSON: We have had approxi-

mately five hours of debate and in my
experience in this place I cannot ever re-
call a motion which has had the full
support of both sides taking as long as
this to be passed. I will not make any sort
of prediction as to the circumstances or
reasons this debate has taken so long, but
I draw the attention of members to that
particular point. I see this amendment
moved by the member for Mt. Hawthorn
as simply a ploy to delay a vote being
taken on the original question before the
Chair about a Select Committee being
established.

Several members interjected.
Mr THOMPSON: I thought members

opposite wanted the motion passed in a
hurry in order that the member for
Ascot-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: We want it to have
some teeth.

Mr THOMPSON: -would have the op-
portunity to get on with substantiating
his allegations.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!I Will the hon-

ourable member please resume his seat? I
want to advise members that I would like

this debate carried on in as reasonable
a manner as possible. I understand there
can be the use of strong and forcible
words, but I do not want too many Inter-
jections. Most of the speeches have been
listened to reasonably well, and that is
desirable, particularly on an amendment
of this kind and a motion of this kind.
So I ask members for their co-operation
and that they refrain from making con-
cer ted interjections.

Mr THOMPSON: The Government has
given an undertaking that its members
will attend the Select Committee and
answer specific charges which are made.
The motion I have moved has been de-
signed to set up that Select Committee
to enable the member for Ascot to Sub-
stantiate the allegations which be has
made. I did not Intend the motion to
deal with any other matter.

Mr Bertram: You do not feel it should
be an open Inquiry?

Mr THOMPSON: I want a full and open
inquiry into the allegations made by the
member for Ascot.

Mr Jamnieson: That has no time basis,
Mr THOMPSON: I did not intend that

the Select Committee should consider any-
thing else. It is possible the Opposition
will move to add something else.

Mr Davies: That is a thought, by Jove!
Mr THOMPSON: I have moved the mo-

tion for the appointment of a Select Com-
mittee to deal specifically with the allega-
tions made by the member for Ascot, and
for that reason I oppose the amendment.

MR A. R. TONKIN (Morley) [9.01 p.m.]:
We want to make it quite clear that the
amendment in no way indicates a lack of
support for the motion.

Mr O'Neil: You could have fooled me.
Mr Davies: The Minister is easily fooled.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr A. R. TONKIN: There is no point

in conducting an inquiry which excludes
the Premier from it.

Sir Charles Court: The Premier is not
excluded at all. We have given a cate-
gorical undertaking he will answer any
question of a specific allegation.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: We will not fall
for that, because the Premier cannot, by
himself, change the rules which apply to
the committee. A sub judice rule has been
brought forward time and time again to
prevent debate on this very subject.

Sir Charles Court: Then why are you
allowed to debate this matter tonight?
No-one has taken any exception to that.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr A. R. TONKIN: We want to ensure

that the Premier is included in the terms
of this motion. He has said he is pre-
pared to answer any qestion, but what
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is the point of the Premier answering any
question if the Select Committee is not
able to report on those answers? It can
be argued that the committee will be able
to report, but we want to make it clear
that 13 Ministers can be investigated
under the terms of this motion. It is no
good the Premider saying that he will
answer questions.

Sir Charles Court: You are attempting
to make the inquiry apply to one person.

Mr O'Neil: There is hardly any need
to investigate my interests.

Mr Jamieson: The only interest you
have is a boat; we have investigated you.

The SPEAKER: Order!I
Mr A. R. TONKIN: Some of my col-

leagues seem to be rather jubilant.
Mr Bertram: That is more than I could

say for Government members.
M,~r A. R. TONKIN: I have been trying

to say that at the moment there Is a writ
lying about the place which has not been
proceeded. with. It comes under the inter-
pretation of the sub judice rule.

Sir Charles Court: Who said it has not
been proceeded with; who told you?

MVr A. R. TONKIN: That writ has pre-
vented this LPariiament from operating
PLoperly, and we want to knouw why.

S-r Charles Court: You will get a shack
soon.

hir A. R. TONKIN: We want to ensure
that the Select Cummittee is not muzzled,
and that it is not prwented from investi-
gating this matter. I say again, it is not
good enough for the Premier to say he will
answer questions when he knows full well
the committee will not be able to report
its findings. The committee will be muzzled
because of the sub indie rule.

We want It to be quite clear that every
pers5n can be examined. At the moment
there is only oine Minister in respect of
whom we do not have a free go because a
writ has been issued. We believe that writ
has been issued purely to shut us up.

Mr B. T. Burke: Oh, no!

Mr A. R. TONKIN: It has been Issued
purely for that reason.

Mr O'Neil: Even the member is laughing
a his own statement.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: That writ has been
lying around the court for four years and
has been a very useful and successful
device In preventing Parliament from dis-
cussing this matter. I would like to quote
the1 Lord Chief Justice of Britain, Lord
Widgery, wvho said it was wrong to stifle
comment on public issues by issuing a writ.
He went on to say-

I regard that an abuse of the law,
of contempt of court.

Mr O'Neil: The member for Ascot has
s-ime personal experience of that.

Mr A. ft. TONKIN: It is absurd for the
Deputy Premier to snigger about the writ
issued by the member for Ascot. If he
considers a Period of six weeks compares
with a peried of four years, I do not agree.
There is a vast difference between six
weeks and four years.

I will q :cte from the report of the Select
Committae on Procedure in the House of'
Commons where such matters as sub iudie
are taken seriously. I quote as follows-

The first such consideration is the
fundamental responsibility of Parlia-
ment to be the supreme inquest of the
Nation with the overall responsibility
to discuss anything it likes.

Those words came from the House of
Commons Select Committee on Procedure..

Sir Charles Court: That applies now.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: What is most Impor-

tant Is that we have been prevented for
a period of four years, from discussing
what we believe to be a misleading state-
ment to the House.

Sir Charles Court: But Parliament is
only working on its own decision in that
matter.

Mr A. H. TONKIN: I repeat the quote
from the House of Commons Select Com-
mittee on Procedure as follows-

The first such consideration is the
fundamental responsibility of Parlia-
mnent to be the supreme inquest of the
Nation with the overall responsibility
to discuss anything it likes.

That is the first consideration when look-
ing at this question of sub judice, accord-
In,, to the House of Commons Select Com-
mittee on Procedure. We have heard from
conservatives that we have a Westminster
system. We believe the Westminster system
should be introduced into Western Aus-
tralia. We would applaud the Westminster
system with its very high standard of
Propriety-of Ministers not misleading the
House.

We know that John Profumno lied to the
House. It was not an affair of great state
that he lied abo~ut; it was about his per-
sonal life. one would think that was hardly
germane to the whole question, and yet he
lied, and resigned.

Is it fair that any Minister should be
able to avoid answering to the House on
a statement he has made to the House?
That is an intolerable proposition which
strikes at the very root of the Westminster
system. We do not believe any Minister
or any member should be able to avoid
answering to the House with regard to any
statement that he has made to the House.
If we make a statement in this place we
should be answerable to the House.

The position is we have seen the
Supreme Court of this State used as a
device. it has been used as a ploy to
prevent proper debate in this Chamber,
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and we reject that situation. That is the
reason we want to be sure that this
Select Committee will not be a whitewash
Job, and that it will be a genuine com-
mittee of inquiry to look at every Min-
ister, including the chief Minister, the
"1prime" Minister, the first Minister-the
Premier. We consider that to be absolutely
essential.

The rules of the Select Com mittee will
be similar to those of the Hou .e and we
have heard the ruling time and time again
that the matter of the Premier's ste-
ment in September. 1972, is not to be
debated because it is sub judjee. We saw
how by interjection 20 or 30 times we
asked the Premier while he was on his
feet and speak ag to this motion, "What
about the sub judtce rule?" He ignored it
most of the time until right at the end
when he Said, "Don't you know any ether
Latin phrases?" That Is how he treats
this House, with a contemptuous giin:
"Don't You know any other Latin
phrases?" Never once did he say, "I am
dinkum; I am prepared to lift the writ
and support a motion which will allow
a proper inquiry."

So we see this House used once again
as a convenient device to move for a
Select Committee to have a whitewash
job-in the words of the member for
ICalamunda, to bring down a report in a
few days. We are not going to accept that
is going to be a proper inquiry if the
Premier's statement, and all] that gars- wvith
that statement, are excluded because of
Some sub judice rule which was put there
to prevent justice being violated in this
'House, and was certainly not put there to
allow a politician to avoid answering to
the H-ouse for his misdeeds.

Quoting once again the renport of the
Select Committee on Proced'ure of the
House Of Commons-

The House of Commons declines to
recognise any paramounteyN in the
courts or other judicial tribunals.

The House of Commons refuses to rccog-
nise that any court is superior to it. Yet
we have seen where this House has bent
the knee to the Supreme Cour.t. It has
permitted the writ lying in the Supreme
Court to prevent Proper debate in this
H-ouse, and this is something with which
we cannot agree.

In Australia we have Professor Geoffrey
Sawer, the doyen of constitutional law-
yers in this country, saying-

It has long been recognised by the
High Court-

That is. the High Court of Australia-
-that the intention of the contempt
of court provision-

That is, the sub judice rule-
-was not to stifle debate on matters
of Public Importance.

The High Court of Australia recognises
that never was it the intention that the
sub juctice rule should be misused as it has
been misused in this way in this State
to stifle debate on matters of importance.

The SPEAKER: Would the honiourable
member Please resume his seat? I want
to remind him that debate on the issue
of the sub judice rule is not proper in
debating this matter. He can refer to it
in the manner it has been referred to in
the past, in regard to a Select Conimit-
tee, but it is of no use going into a song
and dance about the general matter of
the sub judice affair. I think the honour-
able member understands this. Would the
the member for Morley continue?

Mr A. R. TONKIN: Thank you, Mr
Speaker. The point I have been trying to
make is that the purpose of the amend-
mrent before the Ho;use is to ensure
that the committee is able to inquire
into a matter into which we have not
been able to inquire because of the sub
judice rule. So it is certainly very im-
portant that we give to this committee
the right to look at every Minister. T.here
Is oniy one Minister who is at the moment
excluded from proper inquiry; that is, the
Premier, because of a writ he issued four
years ago which has prevented debate.
That is why the sub Wudce rule comes in.
I agree we are not debating the whole
matter of sub luctice but certainly we are
arguing that a matter wve have been pre-
vented from debating should be con-
sidered by the Select Commnittee.

What kind of inquiry is it going to be
if in fact the chief Minister of this State
is the only one who cannot be dealt with?
The member for Ascot spoke about "sticky
fingers". He talked about a particular
Mtinister. Let us suppose for the sake of
argument he was referring to the Pre-
mier. I am not saying that is necessarily
so-I do not know what is in the mind
of the member for Ascot-but let us sup-
Pose it was the Premier to whom he was
referring. Yet we are prevented from
investigating this aspect because of a wvrit:
because a Select Committee is a commit-
tee of this House and because to report
upon it may be considered improper by
violating the sub judice rule.

I am not saying that is the only possible
interpretation. I think there are argu-
ments for and against. But I am saying
we should put beyond doubt the right of
the committee to investigate th dealings
of all Ministers. There is only one who is
in doubt. The motion as moved by the
member for Kalamunda deals with every
Minister but it leaves out one Minister.
He is the biggest fish of the lot-

Mr Barnett: A shark.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: -and to leave out

of the net the biggest fish is just not
good fishin. This is why we insist unon
this amendment; without it tl~s commit-
tee Is going to be muzzled.
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To reiterate, the Premier has said he
is prepared to answer every question. That
is a meaningless statement because what
he did not say was, "I will answer every
question but you will not be able to report
on it because of the sub ludice rule."

Mr Bertram; Nor will we be able to ask
any.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: That, therefore, is
the nub of the Opposition's case. We
welcome an inquiry. We were absolutely
delighted when the Premier gave notice
of this motion yesterday. We thought this
was what was needed in Western Australia
to clean things up, and we are so de-
lighted that we are embracing this motion.
We want to see that this motion is genuine
and that no person is omitted from this
inquiry.

Mr O'Neil: You are not fooling anyone
but yourselves.

Mr A. R. TONKCIN: This must be a
dragnet inquiry which will encompass
every Minister. What kind of inquiry, will
It be If in fact the chief Minister is ex-
cluded? So although it could be argued
either way as to whether a Select Comn-
mittee could report on anything that is
sub judice, we want to put it beyond any
reasonable shadow of doubt that the
financial dealings of every Mi1nister will
be open to inspection by the Select Com-
mittee; and we 'want to be assured that
the Premier above all will be included in
this. And the only way to do it is by an
addendum to the motion to make it quite
clear that those matters which have been
adjudged as sub juelice are in fact within
the competence of the committee, because
otherwise the committee is an empty
sham; it is a whitewash and it will not
do what we on this side of the House
want it to do. We want to clean the
stables.

Mr Young: It is to inquire into every
member-how absurd! Just because one
member lost control of his mouth.

Mr A. R. TONKIN,. Had this House ac-
cepted a Bill which was before it last
year, to require every member to declare
his income, there would be no need for
this motion. Had we shown we had clean
hands there would be no need for this
kind of motion.

Mr Young: You did not turn up at
half the meetings-and It was your com-
mittee!

Mr A. U. TONKIN: We applaud the mo-
tion. We want to ensure it is fair din-
kuin. We want to ensure that the chief
Minister of this State is not excluded in
any way and that therefore his dealings
-and all his dealings--will be the subject
of a Select Committee inquiry.

SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands.
Premier) [9.19 p.m.): I want to comment
briefly on a matter in opposition to this
amendment which was not within the

competence of the member for Kalamunda
to mention because he can speak as a
back-bench member but not specifically as
a Minister or on behalf of the Premier.

This amendment is nothing short of a
smoke screen, as I have said earlier, and-

Mr Mailer: What about the writ?
Sir CHARLES COURT: -if members

want to deny-
Mr B. T. Burke: Let us inquire into it.
Sir CHARLES COURT: If members

opposite want to deny the ordinary
courses of justice to citizens in the com-
munity, let them say so.

Mr Jamieson: You have not done any-
thing about it.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The writ to
which members opposite refer will be
settled in due course.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: In due course!
Sir CHARLES COURT: Any delay is not

my fault.
Mr Jamieson: No action at all,
Sir CHARLES COURT: Quite apart from

that, I want to refer to the fact that I
have given a categorical undertaking, and
I give it again-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: A Select Committee
cannot report-you cannot change the
rules like that.

Sir CHARLES. COURT: If the hon-
ourable member will listen, he will learn
something. I have given a categorical
undertaking that 1, together with the
other Ministers, will be only too pleased
to attend to answer specific allegations.

Mr Bertram: They cannot be made.

Sir CHARLES COURT: Just keep quiet
for a moment because obviously members
opposite have got wrapped up in the
record of sub judice.

Mr O'Neil: They are starting to believe
the member for Morley.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The simple fact
is, if the member for Ascot goes before the
Select Committee and makes a specific
allegation against the Premier, or any
other Minister, that has to be dealt with
by the Select Committee as an allegation
at that time, and It has no relevance at
all to the matter before the Supreme
Court.

Mr Speaker, I remind members of just
what Is involved. The member for Ascot
said-

Some of the members of this Gov-
ernment have in fact grown very
wealthy during their parliamentary
careers through the manipulation of
capital..

Mr Bertram: Well, that is not an
offence.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The implication
there, especially with the comments that
follow, constitutes a very serious allegation
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against the Ministers of this Government,
including Its Premier.

Mr Jamieson: But you would agree the
committee could unanimously find In
favour of that statement?

Sir CHARLES COURT: I want to say
this: if the member for Ascot goes before
this Select Committee and has the courage
and decency to make specific allegations-

Mr Bertram: He is not light on for
courage.

Mr Skidmore: Are you suggesting he has
not got courage and decency?

Mr O'Neil: We will find out.
Sir CHARLES COURT: -I am telling

the House now, and I will say it outside
the House if necessary, I will answer those
specific allegations. 1 have nothing to hide:
as it happens, I do not have a single
share.

Point of Order
Mr B. T. BURKE: My point of order is

this: according to our Standing Orders, no
member has the right to abrogate the will
of the House as the Premier appears to be
doing now with respect to the sub judie
Standing Order.

Mr O'Neil: He frightened you!
Mr B. T. BURKE: I am seeking a ruling.

We will see who is frightened.
Mr O'Neil: You would not know a ruling

If you saw one.
The SPEAKER: Order! I think the point

of order raised by the member for Balga
Is frivolous. I have listened to matters
about sub ludice at some length before
taking exception to them. The Premier
has not infringed in any way.

Debate (on amendment to mnotion)
Resumed

Sir CHARLES COURT: If I can return
to the substance of the whole question
before US, it surrounds the allegations
made by the member for Ascot. My under-
standing is that if he is going to be decent
about It, he will appear before the Select
Committee and say, "My allegations in
respect of this Minister are as follows, and
in respect of another Minister are some-
thing else etc." Then those Ministers,
through me, have given a categorical as-
surance that they will attend as appro-
priate to answer those specific allegations.

I am assuming that the honourable
member will go before the Select Com-
mittee and say something like, "The Pre-
mier has manipulated this and manipulated
that. He has a fortune and he is a rich
man. He has all this money because he
has manipulated capital, etc.", and hope-
fully attempt to give his proof.

Mr Bertram: That is not an offence,
is it?

Sir CHARLES COURT: Then, of course,
It is for me to say whether he is right or
wrong, and to prove whether he Is right

or wrong. I am only too delighted to do
this. I repeat, and I hope the media for
once will say this, I have no beneficial
interest in any share in any company, and
I have not had such an interest while I
have been Premier.

Mr B. T. Burke: You did have when you
made these statements.

Mr Skidmore: Are the shares to be re-
turned to you later?

Mr O'Neil: Get back in the gutter.
Sir CHARLES COURT: How far In the

gutter can one be! I want to say this:
when we do get around to debating the
question that seems to be bugging people
on the other side of the Chamber, who
seem to read only one part of the articles
of a company, they will have red laces
about the allegations in regard to the
statement made in 1972.

Mr B. T. Burke: The only red face will
be that of the Deputy Premier.

Mr O'Neil: At least that face is here
more often than yours.

Sir CHARLES COURT: As the member
for Balga accused me of being a beneficial
shareholder, I must discuss that particular
point. We are now dealing with the man-
ipulation of capital by Ministers while in
Parliament, and this is what the honour-
able member must go before the Select
Committee to establish. I want to say
again that this amendment is not only
irrelevant, it is quite unnecessary, because
I have given an assurance that if the
honourable member is prepared to do the
decent thing and appear before a Select
Committee to s tate his allegations
categorically, we will be there to answer
them.

The Select Committee has all the power
in the world. If it Is not satisfied with the
answers that it receives, it can seek the
answers it believes it should get. I there-
fore reject the amendment.

MR B. T. BURKE (Balga) [9.21 p.m.]:
It was on the 14th September, 1972, that
the statement was made to which the
Opposition took exception. It is recorded
in the 1972 Mansard on pages 3343 and
3344 as part of a personal explanation
made by Sir Charles Court when he was
Leader of the Opposition. I remind the
House that these words form the basis of
the amendment because this amendment
spoke originally about lies being told and
it now speaks about the House being mis-
led. The basis for that assertion was these
words--

(a) Cherrita Pty. Ltd. is a family
company made up of members of
my family.

(b) It is not a Hendry, Rae & Court
partners' company.

(c) I own one share out of 25 002
issued shares.
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The important thing I desire to make
clear to the House is that:-
(a) My shareholding in Cherrita Pty.

Ltd. is a very nominal one.
Sir Charles Coart; It could not be much

less.
Mr B. T. BURKE: The Leader of the

Opposition, as he then was, continues-
I interpolate here to say that Cher-

rita. is the company in which I have
one share out of the 25 002 shares in
all.

ThIat is what the then Leader of the
Opposition said. Is there anyone in this
House who wvould deny that the then
Leader of the Opposition intended to
convey the very definite impression that
he was a shareholder in name only, con-
trolling just one share out of a total of
25 002 shares?

Mr Davies; And full of virtuie!
Mr Young: You are going to get a rude

awakening when you find out.
Mr B. T. BURKE: On Wednesday, the

13th September, 1972-and this is recorded
on page 3269 of Mansard-the then Pre-
mier said, among other things, that Mr
Court, as he then was, admitted that he
was a shareholder in Cherrita. Mr O'Neil
then made an interjection and Sir Charles
Court said, "One share!". Mr Rushton,
ever the also-ran, said-

You said he was the largest share-
holder.

So Mr Rushton certainly thought that the
Leader of the Opposition at that time had
proved that he wvas not the largest share-
holder and that he owned only one in-
sigifficant share.

The truth of the situation is that Sir
Charles Court omitted to explain that his
share in Cherrita was worth eight times
the voting strength of the 25001 shares
held by other people in the company.

Mr Bryce: That is not a bad form of
malapportionment.

Mr B. T. BURKE: That amounts to
misleading the House.

Mr Bertram: One-vote-one-value!
Sir Charles Court: Do you know how

much I got for the share when it was
sold?

Mr B. T. BURKE; Do you deny, Mr
Speaker, that that amounts to mislead-
ing the House? One life governer share
is certainly not a nominal share-holding.

Mr Young: You do not understand.
Mr B. T. BURKE: The people of this

State have bitten off the hoof of this sit-
uation, and they do not need to eat the
whole carcase to find out that it is tainted.
Government members are going to be so
sorry that their Premier plunged them
into this sort of mess.

Eight times the value of the other
25 001 shares in that company, and the
Premier tries to tell us he was not mis-
leading the House!

Sir Charles Court: How much was the
share worth when I got rid of It?

Mr Jamieson: Whatever you wanted to
make it at the time.

Mr B. T. BURKE; Yet the Premier said
that he desired to make it clear to the
House that his shareholding- in Ch-2rrita
Pty. Ltd. was a nominal one.

Sir Charles Court: it is even less now.
Mr B. T. BURKE: if we should inves-

tigate the member for Ascot for making
assertions, what should we do to the Pre-
mier for misleading the House and, as
our original motion said, lying to the
House?

To get to the very heart of the situation,
we need to refer to the articles of asso-
ciation. We need to look to that set of
rules of the company called Cherrita under
which a man with a nominal interest had
eight times the voting power of all other
shareholders. Let us look at clause 10
of the articles. It says, amongst other
things--

Sir Charles Court: How little you know.
Mr Young: You have no training in this

field, and You have no intelligence.
Mr B. T. BURKE: I have no training,

but enough intelligence to understand this
situation. Article 10 states, amongst
other things--

... so long as any shares in the
capital of the company of any class
sall stand in the Company's Register
of Members inl the name of Charles
Walter Mdichael Court of 46 Waratah
Avenue Dalkeith in the said state
Company Director .. , the said shares
so standing registered in his name (ir-
respective of the actual number of
shares so registered) shall confer on
the said Charles Walt2r Michael
Court such number of votes as shall
equal eight times the number of votes
conferred on the holders thereof by
all shares in the capital of the com-
pany of any class standing registered
mn any name other ...

Now let us look at clause 71.
Mr Young: Will you read the other

articles?
Mr B. T. BURKE: I will read the

articles I wish to read.
Mr O'Neil:; We are accustomed to that.
MTr B. T. BURKE: I will read them in

good faith, and I will allow all those people
who are so keen to say something to stand
up and say it.

Mr O'Neii: Speak up, we can't hear you.
If the argument fails, scream.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The Deputy Premt er
can stand up and read out the articles
that he wishes to publicise. If Governmelnt
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members are so keen to have all the
articles read, let the Deputy Premier read
them. He is renowned for echoing in the
background: let him stand on his feet and
make a speech, or can he not do so?

Sir Charles Court: Poor old Billy Bunter.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The next clause I
wish to read for the benefit of the House
continues in this way-

... every member entitled to vote
'who is present in person or by proxy
or by representative in the case of a
company or other body corporate shall
have one vote for each share of which
he or she or it is the holder provided
however that the said Charles Walter
Michael Court whilst he holds the
office of governing director and there-
after whilst he holds any shares of
whatever class in capital of the comn-
pany In his own right shall have such
number of votes (irrespective of the
number of shares held by him) as
shall be equal to eight times the
aggregate number of votes to which
the holders of all other shares shall
be entitled,

Now, Sir, it was my intention entrlier to
pause to allow the Premier or his Minis-
ters or back-benchers to voice by inter-
jection their disagreement with that pro-
position. The Premier said that he had
a nominal interest in a company called
Cherrita. It has been demonstrated that
that interest had by way of authority
eight times the combined powtr of all
Other sharcs in the company. Who will
rise in his or her place now and say that
was not misleading the H-ouse?

M'r Rushton, There Is no need to.
Mr Jamieson: Here he is again!
Mr B. T. BURKE: Mr Speaker, it is as

plain as the nose on your face that the
nominal shareholding held by Sir Charles
Court, then the Leader of the Opposition,
was not a nominal shareholding at all: it
was a life governor's share which gave
him absolute control over the company
and was in no way nominal.

On the 24th October, 1972, at page 4306
of Hansard, the member for Mt. Hawthorn
asked the Attorney-General whether he
would table for three days the Registrar
of Companies' file for Cherrita Pty. Ltd.
so that any misundzrstanding may be re-
moved. The then Leader of the Opposi-
tion had said he was a nominal share-
holder, atnd the member for Mt. Hawthorn
asked for the production of the file to
prove the point.

Mr Young: He could have got it from
the Companies Office for a $1 search fee.

Mr B. T. BURKE: What is the Point?
Mr Young: That is right, what is the

point? Finish the sentence.
Mr B. T. BURKE: It is immaterial

whethocr it costs $1 or 10c.

Mr Young: It is a Public document; you
could go to the Companies Office and have
it searched.

Mr B. T. BURKE: So what? On the next
day, the 25th October, 1972, at page 4381
of Mansard, the following comment of the
then Attorney-General is recorded-

Yesterday I was asked by the mem-
ber for Mt. Hawthorn whether I would
table the file from the Companies
Office relating to Cherrita Pty. Ltd.
I advised I would check on the avail-
ability of the file and, having regard
for any inconvenience caused to the
Companies Office, I would endeavour
to make a copy available in the
Chamber this afternoon.

In view of the possible interest of
members of the community in general
and also of members of Parliament.
I now have a certified copy of the file
signed by the Deputy Registrar of
Companies, which I am prepared to
table.

The file was tabled to clear up the uncer-
tain]ty. Juat two days later-not a week or
a fortnight, but just two days-on Friday,
the 27th October-two writs were issued
out of the Supreme Court of Western
Australia, the plaintiff in each of them
being Charles Walter Michael Court.

The SPEAKER: The member has 24
minutes remaining.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Both writs were issued
jusL Iwo days after the fie was tabled. One
of the writs was subsequently withdrawn,
and subsequent attempts by members to
discuss the contents and the matters to
which the writs related were met with
replies from the then Speaker to the effect
that because the writs were So all-embrac-
Ing discussion and debate could not pro-
ceed.

Now we have the situation In which the
ngtzrieved party-the plaintiff who wants
so badly to clear his name-Is prepared to
allow the writs to lie for four years. Is that
the action of a man who wants to clear his
name? Why does the Premier not do some-
thing about the matter? It is his name that
is being impugned.

Quite simply, the fact of the matter is
this: irrevocably Intertwined with any
other allegations about capita] manipula-
tion Is the financial gymnastics cf the
Premier, which led him to say that a share
with eight times the authority Of all other
shares combined was a nominal interest
In a company. Intertwined with the allega-
tions made by the member for Ascot is
this claim by the Premier.

We say the claim as It was made then
amounted to misleading this House of
Parliament. In fact, we say more, but as a
result of your good offices, Mr Speaker, we
use the word "misled". My proposition is
that on two counts the amendment must
be carried. Firstly it must be carried be-
cause it is irretrievably Intertwined with
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the nature of the allegations of the mem-
ber for Ascot. Secondly, it must be carried
because the prospect that the Premier, as
the then Leader of the opposition, misled
the House is far more serious than the
allegations made by the member for Ascot.

The Premier cannot deny that he said
he had a nominal shareholding, whereas
that shareholding had eight times the
authority of the combined authority of all
other shares.

MRt SKIDMORE (Swan) (9.39 p.m.]: I
wish to discuss several matters in support-
Ing the adjusted amendment which uses
the word "misled" instead of the words
"lied to"; a proposition I support with a
great deal of reluctance. We on this side
have tried to show we have some concern
for the fact that the sub judice rule will
have an effect on investigations made by a
Select Committee of this House. However,
before going on with that I wish to refer
to some remarks made by interjection in
respect of the length of time the sub judice
rule has been applied In certain Instances.

In his concluding remarks, the member
for Balga made it quite clear that any
man of sincerity would wish to clear his
name as quickly as possible of any allega-
tions made against him, and would take
steps to ensure the case came on and the
matter resolved. But the Premier has sat
on a writ for some four years without
bothering to have the matter determined.

The Deputy Premier suggested that the
member for Ascot had used the same tech-
nique to prevent open discussion in this
House on a certain matter. The Premier
has sat on his writ for 48 months, which
is considerably longer than the six weeks
involved in the member for Ascot's case,
and I believe it is unreasonable to sug-
gest that the two cases are alike in char-
acter. In fact, to make such a suggestion
certainly would amount to misleading this
House and could not in any manner be
termed a fair comparison under British
Justice. The member for Ascot acted with
alacrity to move his writ and to have
the matter resolved.

Sir Charles Court: Do You know the
circumstances of that Particular case?

Mr SKIDMORE: No: I was going to say
that I did not believe it was relevant, but I
would be accused by members opposite of
not wanting to hear about it.

Sir Charles Court: It would be interest-
ing for you to hear the facts.

Mr SKIDMORE: That may be so; it
could also be of interest to get into the
guts of the Profumo case, or the Pre-
mier's case.

Sir Charles Court; I will be very pleased
to let you see all of it, with the greatest
of Pleasure. That is what is worrying you
people-I am prepared to tell you every-
thing.

Mr SKIDMORE: The sub judice rule is
one which greatly concerns me, it states
that when a matter is before a court,
the People involved have a right not to be
prejudged in this House, whether it in-
volves a breach of the law, criminal pro-
ceedings or proceedings for defamation. I
believe that is right and proper; in certain
circumstances, it is a valid rule which is
necessary for the protection of the rights
of the people.

However, I cannot subscribe to the sug-
gestion that the sub iudice rule does not
apply equally in respect of the delib era-
tions of a Select Committee appointed to
inquire into allegations in respect of cer-
tain Ministers of the Government; I be-
lieve it could be said to apply in that
case. If a member of Parliament found
himself in the hot seat in front of that
committee-as the Premier would fid
himself-and did not wish to answer cer-
tain questions in order to avoid implica-
tions that he had sticky fingers or was a
manipulator of capital he could invoke
the sub ludice rule.

Sir Charles Court: The Premier has no
inhibitions about answering the questions
of a Select Committee; you should set
your facts right.

Mr SKIDMORE: The Premier Is the
most persistent person I have ever known,
and I must admire him for that.

Sir Charles Court: I am just telling you
the facts.

Mr SKIDMORE: I am more interested
in hearing the facts about the Premier's
case now.

Mr Jamieson: When he reads what the
Minister for Education had to say he
might be concerned,

Mr SKIDMORE: if the Premier were
not so touchy on this subject-

Sir Charles Court: The Premier is not
touchy; he is just trying to put you right.

Ur SKIDMORE: Well, for goodness
sake, let the Premier just shut up for a
minute and listen to what I have to say.
.Sir Charles Court: I am Just trying to

put you right, and stop you going off at
a tangent,

Mr SKIDMORE: The Premier has no
idea what I am trying to say.

Mr Mensaros: That is for sure!
Mr SKIDMORE: Whenever a member

on this side is half way through putting
his argument, and members opposite can-
not see the wood for the trees, they laugh
and joke in order to hide their ignorance.
I suggest to members opposite that they
listen and learn. As I say. a member of
Parliament could appear before the Select
Committee and choose not to answer Its
questions, on the ground that the matter
was affected by the sub iufice rule.

I believe the obligations imposed by the
sub %udice rule do not disappear once a
member leaves the Precincts of Parlia-
ment House. It could easily be that I am
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wrong, but if I am right, the sub ludice
rule could be invoked during the delibera-
tions of the committee.

It has been suggested that if the mrem-
ber for Ascot went before the Select Com-
mittee and decided not to answer ques-
tions in order to back up his allegations
he would by implication be declaring him-
self guilty. The committee may then re-
Port that in Its considered opinion, the
member for Ascot was guilty of a mis-
demeaniour, and had misled the House,
and that his allegations against certain
Ministers were unfounded. The same situa-
tion could apply to any Ministers who
refused to answer questions.

However, I do not believe it would apply
to the Premier, because he would invoke
the sub indite rule and say, "I do not
nave to answer the question." For that
reason alone, I am unable to subscribe
to the proposition that the Premier will
appear before the Select Committee and
answer Its questions in a fair and un-
fettered way.

But let us assume he lays his entire
financial life before the Select Committee.
When the report came back to this House,
it would be immediately suggested to the
Speaker that the matter could not be
introduced because of the sub judite rule.

Sir Charles Court: it has nothing to
do with it.

Mr SKIDMORE: Whether the Premier
likes it or not, the rule must have some
application.

Sir Charles Court: You are completely
wrong.

Mr SKIDJMORE: Let the Premier stand
and show me where I am wrong.

Sir Charles Court: I have.

Mr SKIDMORE: Let the Premier tell
me where It Is laid down that the House
Is permitted to debate the report of a
Select Committee if the report in the
normal course of events would be subject
to the sub indite rule. I say quite cate-
gorically that Mr Speaker could rule any
such debate out of order because of the
sub indite rule.

Sir Charles Court: That is not before
the Select Committee.

Mr SKIDMORE: That might be so.
Sir Charles Court: Financial affairs are

the things in question and I have made
it clear on behalf of myself and all Min-
isters that if the member for Ascot goes
before the Select Committee and makes
these specific allegations, answers will be
given and they can come back to this
House-nothing to do with the sub judice
rule.

Mr Bertram: That is not your preroga-
tive.

Sir Charles Court: It is the committee's
prerogative.

Mr Bertram: It is not.

Sir Charles Court: It has nothing to do
with the sub indtce rule.

Mr SKIDMORE: It is now suggested by
the Premier that in a magical way we
can get rid of the sub indite rule. Let us
be quite honest with ourselves. Let us
not try to mislead the people any longer.
Let us try not to be misled by the Prem-
ier's last remark that the questions and
answers he may give to the committee
could be reported to this House if they
come under the sub iudite rule. If one were
to adopt the Premier's attitude, I am at
liberty at this moment to talk about those
issues which are at present sub ludice.
There is nothing at all to prevent my doing
that.

Sir Charles Court: No, no, no.
Mr SKIDMORE: Oh, no. no, no, no.

The Premier does not want to admit any-
thing. He is the only guy in this country
who knows anything at all!i le is the
supreme being I

Mr Shalders: Come on!t
Sir Charles Court: I would not compete

with the member for Swan.
Mr Sibson: Now we have heard the lot.
Sir Charles Court: I would not compete

with the shadow Minister for everything.
Mr SKIDMORE: I have not said a

thing, Mr Speaker!I
Mr Old: That is right.
Mr SKIDMORE: I am waiting for the

interjections to cease. I was saying that
in his sheer egotism the Premier, along
with all his little pussycats behind him,
denigrates me. because I said that he ap-
pears to be the supreme being, by bestow-
ing that accolade upon me. I accept it
in good grace. I am the supreme being!
The Premier is now only the second
supreme being!1

Mr old: You are the greatest!
Mr SKIDMORE: I have been called

that before, but the previous accolade
was better than being called the greatest.

I was trying to expound the theory that
if certain matters which are sub iudice
are perchance dealt with by the Select
Committee because of the probing by
members on this side of the House who
will sit on that committee, the committee
may deliberate on them. I do not quarrel
with that; that may be right.

The committee's report would then come
back here. We would then have a report
before this House which would say, in
essence, that the Premier's actions which
were sub indice have been questioned and
found to be substantiated. I believe this
House must then immediately reject that
report for the very reason that we would
be entering the realm of the sub indite
rule. That is the point we were trying
to make.

Having, I hope, got that message
through to members of the Government,
it then becomes apparent that we must
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have some form of protection to ensure
that this will be a wide and open inquiry,
that there will not be any running for
cover by any Minister or the Premier, and
that there will not be a smoke screen
in the eyes of the Premier.

The Premier suggested that this amend-
ment was merely a smoke screen. I inform
the Premier and Government members
that I do not look upon it as a smoke
screen. I look upon it as an enlightenment
of purpose and as a means of obtaining the
truth. In no other way could I be sure
that the Select Committee would deal in
full and in an impartial way with all the
things that can be said.

I would certainly have preferred to see
the retention of the words "lied to the
Legislative Assembly" in that amendment.
Having most reluctantly put my point of
view about the inclusion of the word
"mislead", the Premier should front up
so that he in turn is subject to the search-
ing inquiry. We are all concerned, in
the Interests of justice, that the Premier
does not rely on the smoke screen of the
sub judice rule when the report comes
back to this place, because no doubt a
Government member will immediately
challenge the report on the b~sis of the
argument I have already advanced.

Sir Charles Court: They could not.
Mr SKIDMORE: All right. We will just

see what happens, because I believe it
could happen. That is my opinion, but all
I get from the Premier is that it could
not happen, without any argument as to
why it could not happen. If the Premier
wants to be pigheaded and say It could
not happen, that is his prerogative.

Mr Shalders: A minority report would
show whether it had happened or not.

Mr SKIDMORE: A minority report
could not be accepted.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: It is sub judice under
the rules of the House.

Mr SKIDMORE: The interjection by
the member for Murray clearly illustrates
that if a minority report contained issues
which were sub ludice this House must
refrain from hearing them because it has
already determined so to do. It was a
ridiculous assumption to make and is cer-
tainly not based on fact because such a
report would certainly infringe the Stand-
ing Orders of this House. I do not wish
to see the Standing Orders of this House
abused in that way. I believe the Pre-
mier has to front up to the fact that
on the 14th September he certainly misled
this Legislative Assembly.

MR JAMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of
the Oppcsltion) 19.58 p.m.]: I do not want
to take up a great deal of time at present,
but there are some comments I should like
to make In view of what the Premier has
said. One comment arises out of what he
said about articles of association. Many
years ago when the Premier was Minister

for Railways I found it necessary to take
him to task for being involved in a com-
pany or for being an attorney associated
with activities of a company called either
Ledger Investments or Ross Investments.

Sir Charles Court: Not as attorney; as
a trustee.

Mr JAMIESON: The Premier had one
share and had power to-

Sir Charles Court: A trustee for grand-
children with no benefit in it.

Mr JAMIESON: I argued at that time
that the Premier had the right to do the
best for the people-

Sir Charles Court: No beneficial interest.

Mr JAMIESON: The firm was looking
after it and I would find it very hard to
swallow-

Sir Charles Court: It was Purely a
trusteeship.

Mr JAMIESON: If the Premier had not
done his best he would have been culpable
whether or not he had a beneficial interest.
Of course at that time he was a Minister
of the Crown letting contracts for the
Railways Department which were going to
this particular place. That is going a long
way back, but I merely wanted to point
out this matter because the Premier always
used to tell me that I should read the
articles of association. The articles of
asscciation of Cherrita became a sort of
bible for a while and we got to know
more about the company than the family
which owns it.

Sir Charles Court: There were enough
searches being made.

Mr JAMIESON: We got our own copies.
This Is the first occasion this matter has
been aired since the whole sordid thing
came up many moons ago. I thank the
Premier for the opportunity; it has been
delightful. However, that is beside the
point.

One of the aspects was that if at any
time during the life of the person con-
cerned, he wanted control to be taken
from him, he knew it would be given back
to him. He could fly away, and come back;
and control would be returned to him.
These are the matters complained of in
nominal shareholding.

Another aspect associated with this
question was that the Premier had the
right to determine the allocation of the
profits of the company and to whom the
money should be paid. He had that right
even though he had only a nominal share.
Despite all this he had sole control to
invest the money or to pay the money to
himself or anybody he liked. That was the
nominal interest the Premier had, to
which we raise a great deal of objection.
We think it should be inquired into.

That is not the only matter which came
to my notice. At that time there were
many financial projects with which the

3934



[Thursday. 11 November, 1976] 3935

Premier was involved that seemed to be
quite undesirable, and It was stupid for a
person in public life to be associated with
them. Because of that I became very con-
cerned. I do not wish to ride anybody for
the actions he takes, but when he becomes
financially stupid while he holds office in
Government he should be watched to en-
sure that everything is in order.

The motion stipulates no time limit for
this action, and certainly the statement
made by the member for Ascot seems to
indicate no time limit either. It refers to
the parliamentary career, and that goes
back a long time. The Premier is, I think,
the longest serving Minister in the Gov-
ernment, and he was elected way back on
the 14th February, 1953, to which date the
scope of the inquiry could extend. Some
people placed in a similar position could,
through the manipulation of finance,
gain wealth, and this can he proved very
easily. The way in which the manipulation
of wealth occurred might be found to be
undesirable, if the occurrences are brought
to the surface. I think this inquiry will
bring many of those occurrences to the
surface.

Many of those happenings are not
covered by the sub judice rule, but some
aspects such as specific libel claims are.
Th-re are other financial deals which
have reference to the inquiry. I will make
mry file available to the Select Committee.
It contains references to many events,
since the time of the taking out of the
writ, and all this information will be made
available to the commtee

No doubt after the Inquiry the people
will be able to sit back In their Places with
their backs straight. The inquiry will re-
veal whether the action they took was
right and proper, in view of their positions
in Parliament.

There were many People, including some
who are now Ministers, going around and
saying all sorts of things. That will be
featured in the inquiry, and they could
be examined to bring these matters to thq
surface. I hope they will Participate in
this inquiry to determine how much rele-
vance there is in the matters raised.

This is a long-standing question and we
have endeavoured to air it for a long time.
Failure to do so was not through lack of
endeavour. Delays have been occasioned
by the Premier. The last inquiry made
from the office of the Leader of the Op-
rosition to the Supreme Court brought
forth the comment that no action had
been taken for some time; and that ap-
proach to the Supreme Court was made
about a month to six weeks ago. The
advice was that it was up to the complain-
ant to take action for the case to be court
listed.

Sir Charles Court: He has told his solici-
tors to do something about this.

Mr JAMIESON: That is a change. Bob
A nsley is a past master in getting people
out of difficulties. Every second word that
came out was Plainly the hand of Bob
Ainsley. I know what he was aiming at.
and that is his job. Surely we are niot
elected here to exist on and to escape
from legalismis.

I suggest it is right and proper that
there should be some inquiry as to whether
the information given on the 14th 5cr'-
tember, 1972, was in accordance with fact.
To this extent I think the amendment, as
allowed by you, Mr Speaker, will bring
forth some information to the public to
which they are entitled. It will quiten
down many of the existing disturbing
problems.

I have been set upon by my own people
a number of times for not being severe
enough on the Premier, arising from the
information they obtained in this field.

Sir Charles Court: Why did they not do
something about it?

Mr JAMIESON: It was not possible to
ta*-e action all this time.

Sir Charles Court: From what you are
saying that has nothing to do with the
case before the court. If you say that they
had the information why did they not
ria-c it public?

Mdr JAMIESON: It is tied to the original
case. The people who have come forward
on various Issues have prodded me to
make statements on this case. My reply
to them invariably was that a sub judice
s-ituation existed. The matter has been
rais'cd by me. If anyone cares to look at
th ,Hansardf records they will see that
regularly each year I asked questions of
the Speaker as to the situation, and
whether the matter was open for debate.
On occasions the Speaker got tired of my
ask'ng such questions, and he did not
want to answcr them. He did that at
periodical intervals.

The SPEAKER: We have spoken about
this in my office.

Mr JAMIESON: Not as often as I would
lhave liked. I made sure the Speaker knew
the position, and that the writ was in
existence. Because of that It Is very good
to see the amendment being moved. It is
a~reed that we should have an investiga-
tVcn to clear a lot of the air.

MR DAVIES (Victoria Park) f 10.08
p.m.]: I support the amendment, as
amended by you, Mr Sneaker. I do not
argue with the detail; all that the amend-
ment is doing is to embellish the Govern-
ment's motion, and suggesting some con-
cern is felt by members on this side of
the House to ensure that no specific aspect
can be excluded. That is all the amend-
ment seeks to achieve.

We are taking this course because we do
not trust the Government; quite frankly
that is the reason. We do not trust the
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Government, because its track record on The Royal Commission indicated there
Select Committees, Royal Commissions,
and other forms of inquiry Is quite appall-
ing. I have only to refer to the attitude
of the Government towards an inquiry
into the existence of prostitution in this
city.

Before the last election the then Deputy
Leader of the Opposition said there would
be a frank and full inquiry into prostitu-
tion. Then subsequently Cabinet said
there would be no inquiry. When the
Government was pushed to the edge of the
precipice it said there would be an inquiry;
then it announced the terms of the inquiry.

At the time I think I sat down and wrote
out the findings of the Royal Commission,
because I knew exactly what they would
be. They were set in accordance with the
evidence that would be Permitted to be
adduced. There was only one result which
could come out of the Royal Commission,
and it was a shocking result. The finding
was that the police were certainly closing
their eyes to the breaking of the law, but
they were closing their eyes in a satisfac-
tory manner. That was how the position
relating to prostitution was dealt with.
The firm commitment given by the then
Deputy Leader of the Opposition in the
policy speech, which was printed in the
newspaper, was reneged upon.

It can be realised why we do not trust
the Government over the Laverton inquiry
because it refused to make known or let
Parliament know what were the findings
of Magistrate Syddall. We do not know
to this day why the Government will not
do that. We believe Parliament is the
proper place to debate such a matter, but
we cannot debate something of which we
have no knowledge.

Mr O'Connor: You have the Royal Com-
mission's report.

Mr DAVIES: I am talking about Syd-
dali's report.

Mr O'Connor: You got the Royal Com-
mission's report, which is the overriding
one.

Mr DAVIES: There are factors in Syd-
dell's report which should be brought to
the notice of Parliament.

Mr O'Connor: How do you know? More
leaking information?

Mr DAVIES: I have known for months
what is in the report because of people
who distrust the Government and who are
concerned for the people of Western Aus-
tralia because the Government is -with-
holding information which should be made
public. They have some real concern for
the people, concern which the Government
has never displayed during its three years
of office, and that is the shameful thing
about this Government-it uses commis-
sions and inquiries to hide behind.

were plenty of grounds for complaint.
Mr O'Connor: Not about perjury, which

was the complaint.
Mr DAVIES: Taylor did not come out

of it too cleanly. He was criticised about
the way he went down and apparently
there were officers who deliberately lied
at the time. What about one of the Min-
ister's senior officers going to Laverton?

m~e Premier just told the Minister to
be quiet, but we know plenty of these
things. We know what happened in regard
to the tUgle inquiry. We also know that
some briefs were altered by direction of
the Police Department in regard to the
Laverton position and that Is a disgusting
thing. These are the very reasons we do
not trust this Government and these are
the very reasons we do not trust the
Premier when he says that the Select
Committee can inquire into anything re-
garding him. Then he asks what the
committee will have to inquire into re-
garding his association with Cherrita be-
cause he does not own one share in it. We
do not care what he owns now. What we
are concerned about is that he misled the
House-

Sir Charles Court: I did not.

Mr DAVIES: -on the 14th September,
1972, in a cleverly worded statement. He
took members of Parliament to be fools.
He did not think they would check up to
find out the strength of his actual hold-
ing. He led us to believe he was full of
virtue. He had one share, but nowhere
in his statement did he suggest the power
that share gave him. That is why we do
not trust him or the Government.

All this amendment is doing is em-
bellishing the motion I support, but it is
saying that because of the Government's
track record we now want to be specific
about this one item. If the Government
is dinkum, and everything members oppo-
site have said tonight is true, the Gov-
ernment will agree to the amendment.
That is why I support it.

Amendment Put and a division taken
with the following result-

Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Air B. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Car'
Mr Davies

Mr Blaikie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadour
Mr Cleer
Mr Laurance
Mr M4cPhaflln
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovich

Ayes-iS
Ur Haxryy
Mr Jamnleson
Mr Skcidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr M~oller

(Teller)

Noes-21
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Ruehton'
Mr Shalders
Mr Sibson
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr clarko

(Teller)
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Ayes
Mr May
Mr Mclver
Mr T. D. Evants
Mr Harmanl
Mr T. EL JUNe
Mr Fletcher
Mr E. D. LEvans

Pailm

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

Noes
P. V. Jones
Sodeman
Crane
Watt
Stephens
Grayden
You=g

Amendment thus negatived.

Dlebate (on motion) Resumed
MR A. R. TONKIN (Morley) L10.17

P.m.]: We very much regret that it has
been decided by the Government to stifle
this Procedure to make it a full inquiry
because despite any assurance the Premier
might like to give, that assurance is not
his to give. It cannot be that he can
unilaterally decide that matters which are
sub judice will be looked into by the Select
Committee. So we have no doubt that
when the Select Committee meets and we
try to look into certain aspects of the
Premier's financial dealings, we will not
be able to do so, or report to the House
on the matter. Although the Premier
might like to reply to certain questions it
would be a waste of time because unless
the interpretation of sub ludice is altered.
the committee will not be able to report
upon those matters.

Mr Speaker, I might add that I do not
agree that your interpretation of the sub
ludice rule is the only interpretation that
can be made, and I want to make one or
two points about that later on because
there is quite a deal of authority in Aus-
tralia and overseas which indicates that
the sub judlce rule can be interpreted
quite differently.

I would like to say of the substantive
motion moved by the member for IKala-
munda that this situation should never
have come to the House.

If the Government had accepted the
move by the Opposition to introduce a
Bill requiring the disclosure of financial
interests of members of Parliament there
would have been no need for the appoint-
ment of a Select Committee. Not only do
we need to have clean hands as members
of Parliament, we have to show unmis-
takably to the public that our hands are
clean.

We on this side of the House believe
that the tremendous privileges given to
members of Parliament-the privilege of
being able to make laws-requires from us
a scrupulousness that is not required of
People who are not members of Parlia-
ment. We are in a special position to
make the law, which one million-odd
souls In Western Australia have to obey,
but which they do not have the right to
make. So. those People must have con-
fidence in the laws which we make and
be confident that they are in the interests
of the general public, and not in the in-
terests of ourselves or the interests of un-
known others we serve.

(131)

The Opposition felt, in accordance with
the very high traditions and procedures
of the House of Commons, that we should
have legislation requiring the disclosure
of the financial interests of members of
Parliament and, accordingly, we intro-
duced a Bill. The Government saw fit to
vote against that Bill, to a man and to
a woman.

We then witnessed the establishment of
a committee which was to have inquired
on nonpartisan lines into this question,
and once again we saw the Liberal Party
and Country Party members of that com-
mittee vote against a motion moved by
myself which would have required legis-
lation to be prepared for presentation to
this House.

On two occasions we have seen, quite
clearly, the Government parties refuse to
agree to the proposition that we should
open up our pockets and our hands to the
public. Therefore, if comments are made
such as those made by the member for
Ascot the other night, and other mem-
bers on other occasions, the Government
has itself to blame. The Government has
the remedy; it could have shown it was
above suspicion and above any accusation
which might be levelled at it. The Gov-
ernment chose not to take that way out,
and not to adopt a procedure which has
been adopted in the House of Commons.

We often claim 'we believe in the West-
minster system of government, and those
who claim it most seem to be the con-
servatives. Yet, this House in many ways
fails far short of the very wonderful
tradition of the mother of Parliaments.
The matter we are debating is just one
aspect.

We have witnessed tonight threats
against the member for Ascot from the
Minister for Labour and Industry. The
Minister Indicated that the member for
Ascot had better have legal representa-
tion because he would need It. A remark
such as that makes us wonder whether this
inquiry will be the kind of judicial in-
quiry It should be, or a witch hunt. We
wonder whether or not the inquiry will
search for the truth.

In moving this motion the member
for Kalamunda, when speaking of the
Ministers, said that if they were found
guilty of the charges made by the mem-
ber for Ascot what they did was entirely
up to them. We submit it Is not entirely
up to them at all; it should be up to this
Parliament.

Mr O'Neil: That is right.
Mr A. R. TONKIN4: The Westminster

system should be followed, and the House
should deal with the Ministers who have
traduced the standards which should be
followed by members of Parliament. So
we disagree with the spokesman for the
Government when he says it is entirely
up to the Ministers as to what they should
do if they are found guilty.
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Mr O'Neil: The member said that the
Minister would have to consider his posi-
tion. I think someone interjected and
asked what that meant, and the answer
was that it would be up to the member,
meaning the Minister. This is a standard
line of action. That is a perfectly regular
parliamentary expression.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: It is possible there
Is a difference of interpretation.

Mr O'Nell: The explanation followed the
interjection.

Mr A. R,. TONKIN: The point we would
like to make clear is that there should be
a very high standard set in this House,
and it should be Parliament which decides
what should happen as a Consequence of
such an inquiry.

Mr O'Neil: It will.
Mr A. R. T1ONKIN: We heard the mem-

ber for Kalamunda say that a full judicial
inquiry was impracticable in the circum-
stances. He did not go on to indicate, as
far as I am aware, why it was impractic-
able in the circumstances.

It is wrong to say that we will have a
Judicial inquiry in the form of a Select
Committee. This place has been described
as the highest court in the land. If that
is meant to mean this Is, In fact, a Judic-
ial place in which we judge evidence and
decide accordingly then, of course, that is
nonsense. This is a political forum; there
is no question about that. We have seen
the opposition object to proposals put
forward by the Government, but they have
received scant attention. We believe that
had there been a Judicial approach they
would have received a lot more attention.
So, we must not try to kid ourselves or
delude ourselves that we are some kind
of judicial court and we are as Impartial
as Judges are supposed to be. In fact,
we are not.

This is a poltical forum and there are
many examples of Select Committees and
other committees acting in political ways.
So, do not let us Imagine that whatever
the Select Committee decides will be fair
enough. The Select Committee will have
a majority of Government members, al-
though that is not necessarily required.
There is no reason the Opposition should
not have an equal number of members on
the Select Committee, although I do not
believe that will be the case.

So, the Select Committee will probably
have a majority of Government members.
That immediately detracts from its quasi
judicial nature. The member for Kala-
munda also referred to the fact that he
wanted to see a speedy inquiry-over in
a few days. How one could investigate the
kind of allegations which will be made
about ministers, in a few days-matters
of great substance and great complexty-
Is beyond my comprehension.

We are very Concerned, and that was
the reason for the amendment to the
motion. We reject the idea of a political

exercise-a cover-up and a whitewash job.
We do accept the idea of a Select Com-
mittee-we embrace the idea delightedly
-but we must try to Insist that it will be
a genuine inquiry. If It is, then certainly
it will not be over in a few days.

The Premier said the Government would
commit an offence if witnesses were har-
assed. We know what happened to certain
People who made allegations to the Gov-
ernment with respect to the Drug Squad.
Those people put their faith in their inem-
bers of Parliament and asked for an in-
quiry, but they very soon found that the
Police were knocking on their doors. Those
people have been harassed, and the power
of the State has been used against them.
They thought there would be a clean-up.

Mr Davies: They were the ones who got
cleaned up!

Mr A. R. TONKIN: The force of the
Government has been used to harass those
people. it seems the member for Toodyay
knows a great deal.

Pr Nanovich: I know more than you do.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: That is a matter of

opinion. As a matter of fact, the member
might like to rise to his feet and tell us
exactly what he does know.

Obviously on that occasion the full
force of the State was used against in-
dividuals who felt that by coming to
members of Parliament they would get
a fair hearing and that there would be
an attempt to find out what was really
going on. Instead, the full force of the
State has been thrown against them. They
have been harassed, intimidated, and im-
properly dealt with.

Mr Davies: Did any other members of
the Government do that?

Mr A. R. TONKIN. For sure there are
other members. Perhaps this is not the
time to deal with that. I think we could
deal with that at a later time.

Mr O'Connor: Go ahead.
Mr Grewar: Tell us.
Mr Bertram: The Minister is interested.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: The Minister knows

who they are and the members concerned
know who they are, but I am concerned
that these people be not harassed and in-
timidated any further, as Is likely to occur
if further comments are made.

Therefore, the assurances of the Pie-
mier that the Government would be com-
mitting an offence If it did harass witnesses
is so much nonsense, in our opinion. There
is nothing to stop the people being visited
by various strong-arm merchants and
harassed if they dare to say what they
know, because we are clearly becoming
more and more a police State.

Mr Davies: Can 1 just ask you if they
thought they had the support of the mnem-
bers of Parliament?
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Mr A. R. TONKIN: Yes. They came in
good faith. As a matter of fact some of
them were members of the Liberal Party
and others were strong Liberal supporters.
They came in good faith and thought their
allegations and grievances would be pro-
perly investigated.

Mr Nanovich: They got a hearing in
good faith, too.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: The next thing they
knew their files had been handed over to
the police, and we know what happened-
police breaking into lawyers' offices and
seizing files-

Mr O'Connor: They knew they were
going to the police, and some of them
were criminals who had records in the
Eastern States.

Mr Bertram: They were fraternising
with Government members, too.

Mr O'Connor: And Opposition members,
Mr A. R. TONKIN: The fact that they

have criminal records does not mean they
are in the wrong every time they open
their mouths.

Mr O'Connor: Nor in the right.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: The fact is, instead

of having their grievances investigated
they were intimidated; worse than in-
timidated-that is a very mild ward. But
we are not surprised at such a larrikin
element in the Government. What we are
concerned about is that these witnesses
will not be intimidated in the same way.
When the Premier says the Government
would be committing an offence, I wonder
whether he would like to spell out what
offence the Government would be com-
mitting; because we are very concerned
that there is a great deal of evidence
about, I believe, with respect to at least
a couple of Ministers, and the only way
in which this is going to come out and
justice is really going to be done is for
people to be able to come forward know-
ing that they will not be immediately
victimised and knocked around by in-terrogation. That, we believe, is an es-
sential part of this whole motion.

I want to advise that I wish to move
an amendment to the motion to indicate
that we want a genuine inquiry made,
and this of course is not a smoke screen.
it does not derogate from the powers of
the Select Committee In any way. It is
an attempt to ensure the committee has
full powers.

Amendment to Motion
I move an amendment-

That the following passage be
added to the motion:

Furthermore, such a Select
Committee shall have power to
deal with the business and finan-
cial dealings of the Premier, not-
withstanding any court proceed-
ings now pending.

That Is to make it clear that we wish to
have a complete inquiry and that there
shall be no impediment to such a com-
plete inquiry that any sub judice rule may
contain.

I would like to quote Professor Geoffrey
Sawer. His remarks are not to be con-
strued as an attack upon yourself, Mr
Speaker. I do not believe Professor Sawer
meant to attack you, and I certainly do
not mean to: but these are the comments
made by this Person who Is regarded as
Australia's leading constitutional lawyer-

Presiding officers are generally in-
adequately equipped to deal with such
issues as sub judice. This has led to
cases where matters of public im-
portance are not debated in Parlia-
mient because presiding officers are too
strict.

As I said previously, I do not believe the
sub judice rule of our Parliament neces-
sarily prevents an investigation into the
Premier's business dealings but it has been
so interpreted, and in order that it will
not be so interpreted by a Select Com-
mittee of the House or by the House when
the Select Committee reports to it, we
want to ensure and make it Quite clear
that there will be a. provision for adequate
investigation. To continue with Professor
Sawer's opinion-

It is perfectly open to Parliaments
to comment on pending oases before
law courts. Presiding officers are too
inflexible.

That is his opinion. The sub ludice rule
was put there for a purpose-to prevent a
Parliament from debating an issue which
might be in the law court the next day or
the next week, and affecting the judgment.
But it is an impertinence for us to sug-
gest we can affect the judgment of judges.
After all, they will have before them
learned counsel and many witnesses who
will try to affect their judgment, yet they
will still be able to come down with a
reasonably impartial judgment In most
cases. So what we say In Parliament will
not affect them.

The sub jttdice rule is not to protect
judges from our influence but to protect
juries, and the fact is no-one here can
remember the last time a defamation case
was heard by a jury in Australia. It is
quite clear that defamation cases are heard
and decided by judges. Professor Sawer
goes on to say-

It has long been recognised by the
High Court that the intention of the
contempt of court provision was not
to stifle debate on matters of public
Importance.

We believe debate has been stifled here. I
have already commented that the Lord
Chief Justice of the United Kingdom has
said-

it is wrong to stifle comment on
public issues by issuing a writ.
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He went on to say -
I regard that an abuse of the law of

contempt of court.
In evidence to the House of Commons
Select Committee on Procedure in relation
to matters sub ludie, a report from which
I have already quoted, the Attorney-
General of Britain and other witnesses
gave the opinion that it was unlikely that
a judge would be prejudiced by questions
or debate In Parliament on a matter before
the court. That Is substantiated by the
previous comment that this rule was meant
to prevent the undue influence of juries
rather than the undue influence of judges.
The House of Commons Select Committee
made a recommendation and I wonder why
we cannot adopt this idea. My amend-
ment does in fact suggest we copy this
Idea or adhere to it, and I wonder how
many people here would say, "No, we are
in a much better position to decide on this
matter than a Select Committee of the
House of Commons."

This is the opinion of the House of
Commons, and I think it is a very good
guide. if we depart from It, we should
have very cogent reasons for so departing.
The House of Commons Select Committee
said-

Sub judice should apply only to
matters before Criminal Courts,
Courts Martial, and proceedings for
defamation in Civil Courts because
the latter are normally tried by Jury.

The only civil cases suggested for inclusion
by this Select Committee were those in-
volving defamation, and only then because
such css are usually tried by jury in
Great Britain. We know that is not the
case here and that such matters are de-
cided by judges, so therefore, If applied
to Australian conditions, it would suggest
that defamation matters should not be
subject to the sub indict rule.

Further on the committee referred to
factors that should Influence a Speaker's
interpretation of the sub ludice rule. The
report reads-

The first such consideration is the
fundamental responsibility of Parlia-
ment to be the supreme inquest of the
nation with the overall responsibility
to discuss anything it likes.

That is what this Parliament has been
prevented from being-the supreme in-
quest of the nation, the supreme forum.
We have allowed this Parliament to be
stifled on a matter in order to protect one
person, instead of being able to debate a
subject which Is obviously of great conse-
quence to the State because the probity
of its chief Minister should be beyond
doubt. We want to see to It that the
Probity of the chief Minister is beyond
doubt and that question should be decided
one Way or the other. It will not be de-
cided if this Select Committee is prevented

from investigating the matter as this
H-ouse has been prevented from investigat-
ing the matter.

As I said before, the idea that any Min-
ister should be able to avoid answering
to this House for any statement made in
the House is insupportable. it undermines
the Westminster system; it undermines
our system.

The House of Commons has declined to
recognise any paramountcy in the courts
or other judicial tribunals. I believe we
should take a leaf out of the book of the
House of Commons in that respect.

The Premier has said he is prepared to
answer any question. That does not mean
that the Premier, by answering questions,
can empower the Select Committee to re-
port upon matters that have been decided
by you, Sir, to be sub indice; so if we
are to have an unfettered inspection of
all the Ministers' financial affairs, which
the Premier has professed to want, we
have to see to It that the Select Commit-
tee has the power and the right to do
this, and that there will be no legal or
other impediment to the full exercise of
that right because of the way in which
the sub judice rule has been interpreted
in this place.

It is necessry for the House to agree
to the amendment I have moved so that
it shall be quite clear that the financial
dealings of every Minister can be investi-
gated. I do not believe that a Select Com-
mittee of this House should be a farce.
Whoever has the numbers in this place
will d"cide the vote, hut what will not be
decided by the numbers in this place is
the attitude of the public and the way
in which the public perceives such an
inquiry.

If the public perceives that the chief
Minister of this place is immune from
part of the investigation by that Select
Committee-whether or not his other 12
ministers are fully open to the Investiga-
tion of the Select Committee-then the
public will perceive, and accurately per-
ceive, that this is a farcical situation.

Parliament is likely to be brought Into
disrepute because of many historical
events that are occurring at the present
time. Do we in this House want to acceler-
ate this kind of development? Do we want
to encourage this tendency? Do we want
the peonle of Perth and elsewhere in Aus-
tralia to say, "Look at the farce of that
Parliament in Western Australia. It has
agreed to a Select Committee to inquire
into the financial dealings of its Ministers,
but the Premier of the State has a writ
pending in the Supreme Court and because
a ruling has been made that certain
matters are sub ludice, the Select Com-
mittee will be prevented from reporting
on those matters."

I believe we all, as members of this
Parliament, have something to lose if that
Is the attitude engendered abroad. As I
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said before, we must not only have clean
bands but also show quite unmnistakenly
that we have clean hands. It is not good
enough for us to be people of probity; we
have to be seen quite clearly by the comn-
munity, to be people of probity.

The motion before the House is not the
doing of the Opposition. If our previous
Bill had been accepted by the House.
there would have been no need for such a
Select Committee of inquiry. However, as
there Is a need, let us make sure it is a
genuine committee of inquiry and not Just
a whitewash job brought Into the House
by a Government which is desperate for
political acclaim just before a general
election.

MR BERTRAM (Mt. Hawthorn) [10.38
pm.): I second the amendment which
is a very meritorious one, and one which I
think will suit the convenience of the
Premier. I imagine, therefore, that it will
be supported by the Premier, and therefore
by the Government.

The Premier mentioned early this
evening that the writ in the Supreme
Court in respect of which he is the plain-
tiff will be completed in due course. I
believe that writ is one of two, and either
one or other of these writs, or both of
them, were issued on or about the 27th
October, 1972-if my recollection is cor-
rect-which was only two days after the
file of the Companies Office was tabled
here.

So, Sir, you will see that the Opposition
is concerned because It has already been
denied any discussion on certain matters
for over four years. We have also heard
the expression of Professor Sawer where
he is on record as having said that Speak-
ers tend to interpret the sub ludice rule
rather too strictly. So the public of West-
ern Australia have been denied the op-
portunity to discuss a certain matter for
over four Years.

In England the parents of children
affected by the thalidomide drug tragedy
were denied the opportunity to have their
case put in the Parliament on that ques-
tion for many years--it may have been a
decade-until the House of Commons
found a way around the matter. I think
a Select Committee was appointed, and
probably it was the report of that Select
Committee which the member for Morley
has been quoting this evening. There-
fore, Sir, you will appreciate the concern
of the Opposition regarding the invoking
of the sub ittdice rule in a Select Com-
mittee situation is thoroughly justified.

The Premier, for his part, earlier in the
piece would not commit himself regarding
the effect of the sub ludice rule on the
Select Committee, but subsequently said
that if the member for Ascot were to
raise certain facts before the committee
he and other Ministers would answer the

cases submitted. But if the sub Judice
rule applies to the Select Committee, the
Position is that the offer so put by the
Premier is a nullity. It is not his preroga-
tive to open up or carve away the sub
judice rule.

If that rule extends to the Select Com-
mittee then the moment the member for
Ascot opens his mouth the members of
the committee will say, "I am sorry,
Mr Bryce, we cannot listen to you."
Whereupon the member for Ascot will say,
"The Premier has said that when I have
done this, that, and the other, he will do
something else." The Select Committee will
say, "That Is very good but it does not
bind us at all. He is not the law here;
the Standing Orders are. We are duty
bound to see that the sub Judice rule is
not transgressed," That is what the Op-
Position Is afraid the Select Committee
will say, and it is what we think it may
well be entitled to say.

For all those reasons, the Opposition
wants to take no risk. It will accommodate
the Premier's position. Obviously he wants
to go before the Select Committee, and it
is for that reason he did not move the
initial motion. Here is his opportunity to
clear away any obstacle and to manifest
to the world at large that his expressed
intention Is valid and of substance and
that he Intends to act upon it.

For those reasons, I am pleased to sup-
Port the amendment.

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [10.55
pm.]: During his speech the member for
Morley said he thought this place should
not be a farce. I submit to him and to the
House that the Opposition tonight is fast
making this Place a farce. We are now
into our seventh hour of this debate on a
subject that is supposed to have the sup-
port of both sides of the House.

Mr Jamieson: We want it to be fair and
above board.

Mr Ridge: As long as it suits you.
Mr THOMPSON: The Leader of the

Opposition wants it to be fair and above
board; he wants to debate this issue until
the wee hours of the morning.

Mr Jamieson: We take the same atti-
tude: as long as it suits you.

Mr THOMPSON: He wants to keep
Hansard and the rest of the staff here In-
definitely just to stretch the Point. I do
not accept the amendment for the reasons
expressed earlier.

Mr Bertram: What are the reasons?

MR BRYCE (Ascot) [10.56 p.m.): It has
become apparent that the member for
Kalamunda who will play the role of
chairman of this Select Committee has in-
dicated the Government is not Prepared
to be dinkum.
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Sir Charles Court: Too dinkum for you
people.

Mr BRYCE: He is not prepared to give
an undertaking to the Chamber and to
the people interested in this matter that
there will be a Do-holds-barred inquiry.
He cannot give an undertaking unless this
amendment is supported by the Chamber,
because the Premier has no Power or auth-
ority to make the promises he has made.

Sir Charles Court: I have. If I am asked
specflc questions about my affairs. I have
to answer them.

Mr BRYCE: It would not be surprising
if this House were not prepared to accept
his promise, because no man In recent
political history has made more promises
than this Premier has failed to keep. It
is a long list. We can see that obviously
the moment we get close to touching a
nerve somebody will suggest that, aftr
all, it is too close to the sub iudice con-
dition.

The sub judicc rule is open to inter-
pretation. That, Mr Speaker, has been
your diffl2ulty over the last three years
and it was Speaker Norton's difficulty be-
fore you. I am sure you will appreciate
better than anyone that the whole vague
question of what is and what is not
bordering on sub italice is open to inter-
prcetion. That power of interpretation
will ultimately be given to the Select Com-
mittee, which will be required to rule on
the issue; because in the Premier's own
words the committee will be an extension
of this Patrliament. As the sub Muie rule
applies to this Parliament. so it will apply
to the deliberat ions of the committee.

Neither the majority report nor the
mine rity report-if such Is necessary-that
will K- brought down could touch upon
this questohn if It has already been classi-
fled as sub judice. So it is obvious the
Government is not dinkum; and one won-
ders Just how dinkum it expects everyone
else to be.

Amendment Put and a division taken
with the following result-

Mr Barnett
Mir S3teman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B3. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies

Mr Blalkie
Sir Charles Court
Mir Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mdrs Craig
rLr Pflour
Air Grewar
Mr Laurancs
Mir McPbarlln
Mir Mensaros
Mr HanoiLet

Ayes-is
Mr Hartrey
Mr Jamieson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mir J. T. Tonkin
Mr Moiler

Noes-2i
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Netil
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
Ur Shaldere
Mr Sibson
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Clarko

Ares
Mr May
Mir Meiver
Mr T. D. Evans
Mr Hlarmans
Mir T. H. Jones
Mr Fletcher
Mr H, D. Evans

Amendment thus

pairs
Noes

Mir P. V. Jones
Mr Sodeman
Mr Crane
Mdr Watt
Mr Stephens
Mr Orayden
Ur Young

negatived.

Debate (on motion) Resumed
MR CARR (Oeraldton) [11.02 P.m.]:

This evening the Opposition has made it
very clear it Is not opposed to a compre-
hensive and thorough inquiry into the
matter of members' interests. I wish to
make it clear I also welcome such an
inquiry.

The member for Kalamunda commented
a few moments ago that this had been a
very long debate for a motion on which
both Opposition and Government were
supposedly in agreement. It is becoming
increasingly evident to me that we are not
both supporting the same thing. It Is
becoming quite evident that while the
Opposition is fully in support of a com-
prehensive, detailed and thorough investi-
gation of the matters before the House,
the Government Is not at all interested
in such an investigation.

It appears to me the Government wants
to have a quick five-minute white wash of
one particular accusation made by the
member for Ascot, and is not prepared to
go any further with the matter. That is
why this debate has become so protracted.
Obviously, there is a very clear difference
between the points of view of the Govern-
ment and the Opposition.

If this committee is to be effective It is
important that it has all the information
before it which could possibly be relevant
to the inquiry. If it is to arrive at any sort
of informed judgment, It must be thorough
and detailed and inquire into all matters
concerning the business interests of all
Ministers. If It does not do this, it has no
real chance of confirming the accusations
made by the member for Ascot, or of
clearing the Ministers from the accusa-
tions directed against one or all of them.

It is very important to the Opposition
that this committee should not be merely
a cover-up and a whitewash. We want a
full inquiry which, of course, will require
a considerable amount of time.

As well as the Government attempting
to conduct a quick Inquiry, it is avoiding
any reference to the Premier in the terms
of reference of the committee. The inquiry
will concern only the 12 Ministers; only
they will be able to be called before the
committee.

I1 wish to comment on some of the points
raised by the Premier. He said he is pre-
pared to answer specific accusations.
However, the point is that specific accusa-
tions cannot be made against the Premier
because some of these matters are affected
by the sub ludie rule.
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Sir Charles Court: That Is rot! Why do
you keep repeating an untruth?

Mr Bertram: Why did you not support
the last amendment?

Mr CARR: The Premier suggested that
the matters covered by his writ did not
relate to the matters raised by the member
for Ascot. I do not know what was in the
mind of the member for Ascot, and
whether or not he was referring to those
matters when he made his accusations the
other night.

Mr L.aurance: Why do you not ask 12dm?
Mr CARR: But let us consider that the

member for Ascot may have been refer-
ring to those matters. If that is the case,
the entire issue could not be raised.

Mr Laurance: Could not you ask the
member for Ascot, and get some basis for
your argument?

Mr CARRh: The Premier made consider-
able play on the fact that he owns no
shares at present: 1 believe that to be the
case.

Mr Laurance: Are these the accusations
of the member for Ascot?

Mr CARR: The accusations of the
member for Ascot may not relate only to
the present.

Mr Laurance: Are these the accusations?
Mr CARR: We do not presume that the

member for Ascot was referring only to
the present. A check of the transcript will
show the honourable member used the
wiords "during their parliamentary
careers".

Sir Charles Court: All right; let him
make specific allegations.

Mr CAR-R: We want a thorough inquiry,
with no exemptions from that inquiry.

Sir Charles Court: You just want to go
on a muck rake.

Mr CARR: I suggest that the debate
before the House should include the whole
question of members' pecuniary interests.
The Opposition's position on this matter
is very clear: We want a full disclosure
of the interests of all ministers. Person-
ally I would go a step further and include
all members: In addition, I believe that
Ministers and members should not even
own shares of any description. However
my party's view generally is that we sup-
port the full disclosure of Ministers'
interests.

The Government, of course, is not any-
where near as open as that on this matter.
An all-party committee to inquire Into
members' pecuniary interests has been
wrecked because Government members
were not even prepared to go to first base
on the matter, and consider the question
of the disclosure of members' interests. I
could say I wonder why, but I would not
really be telling the truth, because I have
a fair idea; I suspected something was

being hidden, and that suspicion has been
strengthened by the attitude adopted here
tonight.

Mr Bryce: Be careful; we will have
another committee of inquiry in a moment.

Mr CARR: That is a possibility. An
accusation was made the other night
concerning Government Ministers, and
the Government moved to appoint a
Select Committee to inquire into the
accusation. The Opposition said, "Fair
eno ugh, that needs inquiring Into. We
would like to inquire Into the whole issue."
But the Government is not prepared to do
that; it wants an inquiry only on its own
terms.

Sir Charles Court: No, we want an
inquiry into the allegation made. If you
want to start something else, start it as
a separate issue.

Mr CARR: Apart from the Government's
desire to have a five minute whitewash of
this issue, and apart from the fact that
the Premier seems to be excluded from the
terms of reference of the inquiry, the
Opposition also is concerned that there will
be no real protection for the witnesses
appearing before the committee.

I wonder, as the member for Warren
wondered some hours ag-o whether this is
the real reason the Government seeks to
appoint a Select Committee, and not a
Royal Commission. if we established a
Royal Commission to inquire into this
matter, we would be able to offer full
protection to the witnesses appearing
before that inquiry. To support that com-
ment, I quote section 20 of the Royal
Commissions Act. It states--

20. A statement or disclosure made
by a witness in answer to any ques-
tion put to him by a Commission or
any of the Commissioners shall not
(except in proceedings for ani offence
against this Act) be admissible in
evidence against him In any civil or
criminal proceedings in any Court In
this State.

I would hope that similar protection will
be afforded witnesses appearing before
the Select Committee, the appointment of
which we are debating here tonight.

I believe the motion before the House
Is not strong enough in that it does not
offer that protection. I propose to
strengthen it by moving ani amendment
which will give protection to witnesses.

Amendment to Motion
I move an amendment-

Add the following words-
Furthermore any person giving

evidence to the Select Committee
will be granted full immunity
from any prosecution or civil
action of any kind.

Mr O'Connor: Irrespective of what lie
they might tell?
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Mr CARR: That is not true. The
amendment I have moved is in line with
the Royal Commissions Act. A further
section of the Royal Commissions Act
provides for penalties for people who lie
to aL Royal Commission. So the point
raised by the Minister, for which I thank
him, is not valid.

Mr O'Connor: What happened to the
civil liberties People on the last one?

Mr CARR: I am very pleased to hear
the Minister joining the debate. After I
resume my seat perhaps we will have a
little more participation in this debate by
Government members. The reason I have
moved this amendment is that it is quite
possible there may be People who have
innocently become aware of certain in-
formation, and if those people should
bring that information before the inquiry
they would not be Protected. Public
servants may be called before the inquiry
merely because they happen to work in
the department in which they do work.
What protection are we going to offer to
those People if this amendment Is not
carried?

We should think of the position in
which these public servants could find
themselv 25. Are they going to be loyal to
the Government and refuse to disclose
information that may be available to them.
because it might harm the Government?
Or do they tell what they know at the
risk that the Government may take some
action to impede their career opportuni-
ties? They may be charged under some
Public Service regulation for disclosing
information from within the department.
Are we going to allow that sort of thing?
I should hope not.

MY guess really is that a Person faced
with this sort of dilemma would in many
cases simply be scared off. Such a person
would refuse to give evidence on the
ground that he could be acting to the
detriment of his career. We are faced
with the danger that people who could
assist the Inquiry may simply be scared
off because of that situation. To avoid
such a situation I have moved the amend-
ment which I read earlier in my remarks.

MR B. T. BURKE (Balga) [11.12 pin]:
I wish to second the amendment and in
so doing to trace the steps that this de-
bate has taken since it commenced much
earlier this evening. Members will re-
call that this amendment is just the
last in a series so far moved by the
Opposition to demonstrate that the Gov-
ernment is not serious in Its assertion
that it wants a nonpartisan and unbiased
Select Committee.

We began by attempting to illustrate
to the House that if it is worth while to
investigate allegations made by the mem-
ber for Ascot, it is so much more worth
while to investigate allegations made about
the Premier. Of course, that failed to

find favour with the Government and
we saw the Government unite to defeat
that amendment.

Subsequently we moved to ensure that
matters regarded as sub judice by your
predecessors, Mr Speaker, could be de-
bated, inquired into, and reported upon
by the Select Committee. Despite assur-
ances from the Premier that he had noth-
ing to hide and that anything he was asked
about would result in his being there
to answer a query, we find the Premier
failing to support the proposition that
matters previously considered to be sub
judice should be available to be inquired
into. It was a sham. The Premier could
not have, and did not have, the authority
to promise to talk about, to provide in-
formation about, and to allow the Select
Committee to inquire into and report upon,
matters which have been considered by
your predecessors and yourself. Mr Speaker,
to be sub judice.

The Premier was indulging in a sham.
He was indulging in showmanship, be-
cause he does not make the Standing
Orders that govern debate in this House
and the inquiries and reports which are
the province of Select Committees which
hie says are an extension of this House.
It is not withi his ability to say that he
will transgress Standing Orders by dis-
cussing matters that are sub judice. If
any proof is needed that the Premier
realises this, it is his refusal to support
the amendment that would have enabled
him to honour his commitments to this
House. He failed to support the proposi -
tion contained in our amendment and,
therefore, labelled his previous perform-
ance as nothing but a sham.

This present amendment is the latest
In a series that will show that the Govern-
ment is not sincere in its efforts to ap-
point a Select Committee to inquire into
allegations made by the member for Ascot.
We say that to ensure witnesses are pre-
pared to come forward and, having come
forward, are protected, the same sort of
immunity with regard to Royal Commis-
sions should be extended to witnesses
called before this Select Committee.

The Minister for Police interjected to
the effect that witnesses would be able
to perjure themselves without fear of
retribution. Of course that was ably
proved to be quite wrong by the member
for Ueraldton. Penalties are provided in
the Royal Commissions Act and those
penalties would be as applicable to wit-
nesses who appear before the Select Com-
mittee under the terms of this amend-
ment as they are to witnesses before Royal
Commissions.

What has the Government got to bile?
Why will it not give immunity to these
witnesses? Why will it not encourage
them to come forward? Perhaps the
Premier can enlighten us.
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Sir Charles Court: It is already covered.
Have you not read Standing Order 394?

Mr B. T, BURKE: If it is already covered
perhaps the Premier will be prepared to
support the amendment and make the
protection quite definite. But of course
he will not. The position is not already
covered. There is a stark difference be-
tween the sorts of protection afforded to
people testifying before various kinds of
inquiries. It was an attempt by the Pre-
mier to throw up a smoke screen which
the Premier is so fond of accusing the
Opposition of indulging in.

It is not true to say that witnesses
before this Select Committee will enjoy
the same privileges as those who appear
before a Royal Commission. The proposi-
tion we are putting forward is that on
this occasion, when a committee will be
inquiring into something of an acutely
Political nature, there should at least be
an attempt to remove any bias that is in-
herent in politics by providing protection
for witnesses. I ask again: What has the
Government got to hide?

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [11.18
p.m.]: This latest amendment simply
highlights the lack of sincerity on the part
of the Opposition to have the original
motion to set up a Select Committee con-
sidered and passed. The member for
Geraldton ought to be aware that the
protection his amendment seeks to pro-
vide is already covered by Standing Order
394 of this House. For that reason I ask
members of the House to vote against it.

Amendment put and a division taken
with the following result--

Ayes-iS
Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies

Mr Blalktle
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyfle
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadour
Mr GrewMr
Mr Laurance
Mr McPharif
Mr Mensame
Mr Nanovich

Ayes
Mr May
Mr Mc~ver
Mr T. 0. EvaS
Mr Harman
Mr T. H. Jon
Mr Fletcher
Mr BL 1). Evans

Mr Hartrey
Mr Jaumieson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkia
Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr Moller

(Teller)

Noes 21
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
Mr Sbalders
Mr ilbsn
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Clarko

Pairs
Noes

Mr P. V, Jones
Mr Sodemen
Mr Crane
Mr Watt
Mr Stephens
Mr Orayden
Mr Young

Amendment thus negatived.

Dlebate (on motion) Resumed
MR DARNETT (Rockingham) 111.22

p.m.): I am anxious to get this matter
over and done with. However, I would ap-
preciate a small amount of latitude from
you, Mr Speaker, before I begin, to enable
me to deal with something which hap-
pened during the division, and to which I
take exception.

In the division the member for Gascoyne
sat in my seat on this side and extended
to me the discourtesy of picking up a
piece of paper on my desk and reading it!
I sincerely believe that is not the sort of
behaviour one would expect from a mem-
ber of Parliament. I extend him the
courtesy when I am on his side of the
House of not going through his papers,
and I hope he will do the same to me.

Sir Charles Court: Do you always
observe that rule when you sit on this
side of the House? You did not on one
occasion.

Mr BARNETT: I thank the Speaker for
his latitude and will now return to the
motion. The position has developed to
such a stage that it is very obvious this
Government does not want a full and open
inquiry. The member for Oeraldton has
said he believes it will be a whitewash: I
believe that Is the Government's intention
also. However, it has come a great cropper.
The Government thought It would have a
quick and snap vote on the appointment
of a Select Committee which would bring
down its report to Parliament next Tues-
day, to Indicate that nothing untoward
has been done and therefore this is a very
good Government.

Far be it from me to go over ground
that has already been covered time and
time again tonight. I will merely direct
my comments to a few aspects that I
believe have been left out, apart from the
fact that the Premier has been ducking
and weaving all night, which be is used to
doing, and refusing a full, open, and com-
plete Inquiry.

I think it is pertinent for me at this
stage to mention what has already been
mentioned by several other speakers, I feel
it is my duty to repeat it, The
Premier obviously refuses to remove the
writ which has been discussed so many
times.

Sir Charles Court: It is not for me to
remove it. The court does that.

(Teller) Mr Bertram: The court does what?

Mr BARNETT: Is the Premier telling me
that he cannot remove the writ?

Sir Charles Court: Why should I remove
the writ when somebody has committed
an offence? The court will remove the
writ.

Mr BARNETT,' Is it the Premier's
intention to Proceed with the writ?
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Sir Charles Court: Of course, it is. I
gave Instructions at the start and again
since then, and the writ is proceeding.
You will get a shack when the case is
heard.

.Mr BARNETT: It was issued four years
ago.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the honiour-
able member resume his seat? As members
will appreciate there has been consider-
able discussion this evening about a matter
which is sub jzufice. I permitted it,
because the subject at the time I permitted
it allowed debate. However, debate on this
amendment does not allow the matter
to be discussed in the sense in which the
member for Rockingham is expressing his
views.

Mr EARNETT: Thank ycu, Mr Speaker.
I will endeavour to relate my comments to
the matter before the Chair. If the Premier
thinks I will get a shock, I tell him here
and now that when he plugs in and tunes
into this society he will get the biggest
shock of his life.

Tnime and time again since I have been a
member of the Parliament I have beard
among the Public, rumours directed not
only at the Premier and the Ministers sur-
rounding him, but also at other members
of Parliament. So, it is for this reason and
this reason alone that I welcome with open
arm the appointment of a Select Commit-
tee that will Investigate properly the
rumours that have been flying around the
State for so long, and doing so much harm
to many politicians, and to all alike.

Sir Charles Court: Started by whom?
Mr BARNETT: I did not issue any writs.

I feel this is the time when we can have
a look at the matter through a Select
Committee. We on this side of the House
have moved several amendments to make
this a full and complete inquiry so as to
give us a correct and proper result which
1 am sure the Select Committee will come
down with.

I have one suggestion to make which
has not been made tonight. If members
opposite want a full, complete, and open
inquiry-I am sure they Eal do, and if any
member opposite does not want one he
will tell me now-they should accept the
amendment which I now move to the
motion.

Amendment to Motion
I move an amnendment--

That the following passage be added
to the motion-

That notwithstanding any
Standing orders to the contrary,
all proceedings of the Select Com-
mittee be public proceedings
unless any witness desire to be
heard in camera.

Mr Blaikie: You should read the Stand-
ing Orders.

Mr BARNEfl: The honourable member
should hold on for a minute. From. his
interjection he assumes this matter is
covered by the Standing Orders. In that
case he will no doubt Vote for the amend-
ment.

Sir Charles Court: The Select Committee
will decide it.

Mr B. T. Burke: More secrecy!
Mr BARNETT., I do not think there is

much point in pursuing Lhis matter
further. I will resume my seat shortly. I
conclude by saying that I most certainly
have nothing to hide; and any member
of this House who has nothing to hide
can do nothing else but vote for the
amendment, Anybody who votes against
the amendment appears to have something
to hide.

MR BRYCE (Ascot) 111.29 p.m.]: I
second the amendment. It would be very
cold comfort to every member of this
House to accept the thesis that was put
to us by the Premier; that is. the Select
Committee will decide whether it be a
public or private Inquiry. With the Prem-
ier giving instructions the way he does,
what chance will there be of any matter
of substance being discussed publicly if he
does not want it to be?

it has been alleged this committee is
drawn from a lopsided Parliament and will
act on the directions of the Premier be-
cause he will exercise that influence
through the three members he will ap-
point to it and they will have a majority
say. There is no doubt in anyone's mind
that when the Premier decides that some-
thing will not be discussed in public it will
not be heard If it is left to the committee.

Therefore I have pleasure in supporting
the amendment.

MR A. R. TONKIN (Morley) [11.31
P.m.]: very briefly I wish to say it is
absolutely crucial that we do not have
anything swept under the carpet and that
the people know what is going on In this
State, We do not believe there should be
any secret Inquiries. We know how the
Government established a secret Inquiry
by the MRPA into the extensions to the
Swinana Freeway.

This has been a Government of secrecy.
The opposition just wants to go on record
as being In favour of open government
and an open Inquiry. If there is anything
to hide, then of course there will be a
closed Inquiry. If the Government does not
want a proper Inquiry it will be secret.
The whole point about a secret Inquiry
Is that it enables matters to be hidden
and the public not only has a right to
know that a proper inquiry has occurred,
but to be able to see clearly that a proper
Inquiry has occurred. In other words, not
only must iustice be done, but justice
must be seen to be done. It is the same
point all over again-the same Philosophy
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the Opposition has that It is not good
enough for our hands to be clean: they
must be seen to be clean.

MR THOMPSON (Kalarnunda) L11.32
p.m.): In the time I have been a member
of this Parliament I have seen a number
of Select Committees established. The.
member for Mt. Marshall served as chair-
man of one on which the member for Mor-
ley was a member. Countless others have
been held. The member for Ascot and I
served on one to inquire into homosexual-
ity In this State. Never before have I known
members of the opposition to find so many
deficiencies in the provisions we have in
cur Standing Orders-

Mr Jamleson: They were not Inquiring
into members of Parliament.

Mr Bertram: Didn't you listen to the
member for Melville?

Mr THOMPSON: -which deal with the
establishment and conduct of Select Com-
mittees. I believe those Standing Orders
for the conduct of Select Committees are
quite sound and adequate and will serve
the purposes which I am sure the ineif-
ber for Ascot would welcome to have
served in the consideration of the allega-
tions he has made.

Therefore I ask the House to vote
against the amendment.

MR DAVIES (Victoria Park) [11.33
p.m I: If in rejecting the amendment the
Government is doing so from fear of what
kind of evidence might be given by its
members before the Select Committee, I
want to point out that it cuts both ways.
The public will have full access to what-
ever might be said by witnesses on this
side o f the House, so there Is no saving
grace for anyone.

The other substantial difference between
this and any other Select Cominitee will
be that this will be a committee of parlia-
mentarians Inquiring into parliamen-
tarians. That Is the significant difference.
The public have to know that nothing is
being cooked up; nothing is being with-
held from them; and there are no secrets
before the committee which are not made
known to the Public because the findings
of that commitee could be all the public
ever know about the work the committee
does and that work might last for several
weeks from what we have heard here
tonight. There are all kinds of things
which can come Out as a result of the
committee.

I believe that although it is Pointed out
that there Is some Immunity under Stand-
ing Order 394, there is no such Standing
order which indicates to me that the
Select Committee can or cannot hold Its
Inquiry in public and for the reason I have
Just enunciated-that is. that it is a
Committee of parliamentarians Inquiring
into their own-it must be held In pubic.
The public must be able to assess the

meaning of the various matters which
come before the committee and how those
matters relate to the community at large.

All kinds of things could be said which
may prompt members of the public to
come forward and give other evidence
which may be helpful to the Committee;
and this is what we want. We want to
clear up any rumours once and for all.

There are things which make me won-
der about this Government. I was alarmed
Indeed to read recently that one account-
ant in Perth (D. J. Levy) was given
exemption from prosecution. Apart from
the reasons which were printed in the
paper I have not been able to read any
other reasons for It. Of course, had the
Press not given such full details of the
whole cae, we might have still been in
the dark about it.

I want to get back to the point I was
making. I have not been able to read the
answers to the questions asked by the
member for Mt. Hawthorn because the
Votes and Proceedings have not reached
Parliament, but I will be looking at them
very closely. I am alarmed that a Govern-
ment of its own initiative sh-ould give to
this man immunity from prosecution
because I am reminded his name received
a mention 12 months ago in this House as
being associated with a prominent member
of the Liberal Party in connection with a
brothel known as Paul Adrian Pty. Ltd.
This same name of D. J. Levy has been
mentioned twice, and on both occasions
closely associated with the Government,
and yet the Government is extending him
some privilege on this last occasion. It
makes me wonder what is going on.

These Items are coming to notice only
by accident because someone has a goad
memory or the name strikes a chord in
someone's mind. That is why the proceed-
ings of the committee must be held in
public so that if there is any association,
or any matter has been overlooked, then
any person who may want to put things
right can come forward. Even if such a
person does not appear as a witness at
least he can make known. what informa-
tion he has either to this side of the
House or the other side of the House
because a public appearance means every-
one Is in public, both those for and those
against.

MR SKIDMORE (Swan) 111.38 p.m.]: I
support the amendment. I understood the
member for Kalarnnda to say that the
Standing Orders relating to Select Com-
mittees covered the situation and that they
may at all times be held in public.

Mr Thompson; I did not say that.
Mr SKIDMORE: The member for Kala-

mutnda did not?
Mr Thompson: No. I said that the

Standing Orders are adequate to cater for
the conduct of a Select Committee.
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Mr SKIDMORE: When we study the
Standing Orders we realise why we want
the amendment accepted. It is so that at
all times the proceedings of the Select
committee will be public. Standing Order
371 reads-

When a Committee is examining
witnesses, strangers may be admitted,
but shall be excluded at the request
of any Member, or at the discretion
of the Chairman of the Committee.
and shall always be excluded when
the Committee is deliberating.

So there Is an exclusion of the public.
They are not able to be present when the
committee is deliberating. By this ex-
clusion the committee Is not at all times
open to the public. We want it to be open
to the public at all times.

I do not understand why the members
of the public should be excluded when the
committee Is making its deliberations.
Why should not such deliberations be
subject to the scrutiny of the public, for
whatever they are worth? I do not place
a great deal of credence on that point of
view, but I do want to refer to the obvious
disparity between this Select Committee
and others. This Select Committee will
be inquiring into allegations made by one
of our members, allegations which have
offended the Ministers and the Premier on
the grounds that they feel It is wrong
they should be challenged as being mani-
pulators of capital.

Apparently the Government has taken
strong exception to the proposal. I
thought Government members would have
been proud to be peers in a capitalist
system of making a quick buck. I thought
they would be Proud of their ability to
become rich.

Mr Sibson: You are all twisted up.

Mr SKIDMORE: I do not think the
amendment will upset anyone. I wonder
whether we could expect a fair deal from
the committee which is to be set up so
that the member for Ascot can justify the
allegations he has supposedly made, and
which were of such an offensive nature
to Ministers of the Crown. I wonder how
long it would be before the chairman of
the committee, or any other member of
the committee, objected to strangers being
present. I suggest that would happen
more frcquently than anticipated. The
guillotine could be applied and strangers
kept out.

I support the amendment. I certainly
do not believe Standing Order 371 will
provide any protection to those who may
be called upon to speak- Nothing makes
a person more truthful, or more unafraid
to sneak, than the fact that he is under
public scrutiny.

We enjoy the privilege of being able to
say many things without the possibility of
having to face litigation. Members of a

Committee Open to the public gaze-
knowing that any misuse of their privileges
would be broadcast far and wide-would
think twice about being dlshonst. 'The
amendment now under discussion would
ensure that witnesses were honest. I
support the amendment.

MR MOILER (Mundaring) 111.42 p.m.J:
The comments of the mover of the motion,
and the Premier have demonstrated that
they are prepared to adopt a double stan-
dard. To demonstrate the double stendard
and the hypocrisy of the mover of the
mbtion, I will quote his words as follows-

I have no doubt this motion will
have the full support of both sides
of the House, because we have a situa-
tion in which a member on one side
has made allegations about people on
the other side ..

As a result of amendments moved from
this side of the House, further allegations
have been made and we consider those
further allegations should be considered
by the Select Committee. However, the
mover of the motion would not support
our moves.

He also said-
A member may state whatever hie

thinks in debate in Parliament, how-
ever offensive it may be to the feelings
or injurious to the characters of indi-
viduals ..

He further said-
This freedom of speech, however,

brings with it a very sombre responsi-
bility: the responsibility to act fairly.

Surely the amendments which have been
put forward have been extremely fair.
However, the mover of the motion who will
possibly be the Chairnan of the Select
Committee has demonstrated he Is not
prepared to be fair, so what chance has
the Select Committee of bringing down a
fair decision, unless that decision is
reached under the gaze of the public.

The mover of the motion saw fit to
talk about responsibility, and the privi-
leges of this House, but to demonstrate
his double standard I will refer members
back to a debate which appears in Hansard
of the 23rd May, 1973. When the mover
of the motion was in Opposition, at that
time, he took advantage of every oppor-
tunity to spruik. He saw nothing wrong
in naming a 20-year-old youth. The youth
had been dealt with by the courts, but
the member for Kalamunda saw nothing
wrong in using his parliamentary privi-
lege to name the Youth, and criticise him
at length. That occurred on Wednesday,
the 23rd May, 1973. Tonight the same
member has said we should be Jealous of
the way we use our privilege in this House.

The Government is quite prepared to
appoint a select committee, but Is not
prepared to enlarge the powers of that
committee. The ruover of the motion, and
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the Premier, are always ready to accept
double standards when they are to their
benefit, but they refuse to accept the pro-
posal that the Select Committee should
hold its hearing in the full gaze of the
Public. I support the amendment.

Amendment put and a division taken
with the following result-

Ayes-iS
Barnett
Batensan
Bertram
Bryce
B. T. Burke
T. J. Burke
Can
Davies

Mr Blaikie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr Dladoufr
Mr Groer
Mr I,auranes
Mr MePharlin
Mr MensaroS
Mr Nanovich

Ayes
Mr May
Mr Mclvi?
Mr T1. D. Evans
Mr Harman
Mr T. Hf. Jonesl
Mr Fletcher
Mr H. D. Evas

Mr Hartrey
Mr .amteson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A& R. Tonkin
Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr Molter

Noes-21
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushtonl
Mr Shalders
Mr 511b105
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Clarko

pairs
HOS

Mr P. V. Jones
Mr 5odemuaf
Mr Crane
Mr Watt
Mr Stelphens
Mr Grayden
Mrt young

Amendment thus negatived.

Debate (on motion) Resumed

MR TAYLOR (Cockburn) [11.52 p.m.]:
This debate has not Yet run its course.
We would not be a responsible opposition
If we did not take this motion as far as
we are able so that every aspect of the
Government's intention and every possibil-
ity that may eventuate from the motion
is in the record and that subsequently,
whatever may be the outcome of the com-
mittee of inquiry, the record will be there
to be referred to from time to time and
from year to year and the Justice of that
committee and its findings, and the actions
which may come from It, may be ex-
amined.

We had an excellent example this even-
ing when, because of the length of stay in
this House and the exceptional memoryi
of the member for Melville, a matter
which occurred many years ago was able
to be once more revived In this House to
play a part In directing the attention of
members to just what may happen. His
point was very clear; that is, at one stage
a motion was moved by this House with
respect to a man who, without doubt,
would be considered to have the highest
integrity of any member In this Cham-
ber, at least in the opinion of the general
Public, which Impugned his honesty. So
It is salutary to be reminded tonight that
this, the highest court in the State, can
do such things.

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

The reason the Opposition takes this
opportunity tonight-and It will continue
to do so until the matter Is very clear-
is the enormity of the possibility of this
motion. In one sense we will be creating
history In this State, and not necessarily
of the right order. Certainly the only
earlier Instance which has been mentioned
of a member of Parliament having a state-
ment or alleged statement made about
him examined was brought about indirectly
because the statement was allegedly made
by individuals, although it was aimed at a
member of Parliament.

This Is the first time such a matter has
come before the Chamber in this wyay,
through a statement made by a member
across the House. The matter is to be
covered In a very simple way, according to
the Government-merely by moving a five-
line motion which, under the Standing
Orders which have been mentioned by mny
colleagues on this side, would give a
three-two membership situation and must
be limited in a very formal way which
may not afford the member who made the
statement the Opportunity to Present the
matters he wants to present.

My experience is more limited than
Yours, Mr Speaker, but I can well recall
an experience of mine where I had the
temerity to suggest to the then members
of the Opposition that because they did
not debate a matter they were not inter-
ested in it. I was reminded on several oc-
casions subsequently that I should not have
said that, and they were right. You 1ill
recall, Mr Speaker, the number of Bills I
had to handle on Prices and other matters.
when members of the Opposition of the
day made very sure, firstly, that I under-
stood what I thought I was talking about,
and secondly, that they could say sub-
sequently, whatever action eventuated from
that legislation, the matter was referred to
in Mansard and everybody knew Where
they were going.

That is what the Opposition is doing
tonight. It was suggested by the member
for Scarborough a few nights ago during
a debate on another matter that I was
Playing Politics when I attempted to ques-
tion a minister with respect to his leg-
islation.

Mr Davies: What do we Play here?
Mr TAYLOR: The member for Victoria

Park encourages me. The Opposition has
a function and that function is to ensure
as best It is able that no injustice Is done,
that no legislation passes without being
very clear, and that the Institution of
Parliament is just that-a Parliament-
and works, so that people see Very clearly
that justice is done in the legislation pre-
sented and the action taken. This has been
covered by a number of speakers and I will
dwell on It, too.

That Is why we question matters in
Opposition; that is why the Government
questioned matters when it was in
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opposition: and that is why tonight we whatever it will be. That Is not lair;
are taking It from point to point so that
the Government knows very well, and
posterity knows very well, from reading
Hansard, what happened in this particular
matter.

I am surprised that the Government so
far has painted itself half-way into a cor-
ner. If the Government has confidence , I
cannot see why it has not allowed any of
the amendments which have been moved,
particularly the last two. To say one
should rely on the Standing Orders as
they are is fallacious, T think. If the Gov-
ernment is sure of its case there is no
point whatsoever in disregarding at least
the last two amendments-I would say all
of them, but at least the last two. There Is
no reason at all and no reason was given.

Whatever the outcome of this committee
of inquiry might be-and bearing in mind
the Opposition Is supporting it-there will
be some doubts. That is regrettable, but
there it is. It is already in the record. It
could be suggested that, whichever way
the answer comes out, it may not have
been a fair inquiry. That is not good for
the Government and it is not good for the
Parliament. This matter is tremendously
important; it is historical.

A suggestion was made by interjection-
I hope it is not correct but certainly It was
made by a member of the Government as
an interjection-that there could be dire
consequences with respect to a member if
his allegations were not substantiated-to
the extent, I think, of forfeiting his seat.

Mr O'Neil: It was not an interjection.
It was a quotation from a case which
occurred in 1900 contained in the Intro-
ductory speech of the member for
Kalamunda.

Mr TAYLOR: I am indebted to the
Deputy Premier for saying that the com-
ment was made. The reverse must apply-

Mr Thompson: The same point was
made by the member for Kalamunda.

Mr TAYLOR: That only adds emphasis
to the point I was making: we are talking
about a very important matter.

Mr Bertram: Hear, hear!
Mr O'Neil: We are all aware of It.
Mr TAYLOR: I am sorry that the

Deputy Premier interjects in that way
because if the Government's case were
stronger, perhaps better arguments should
have been made.

Mr O'Neil: You indicated you were
aware of the fact we had made the point
patently clear.

Mr TAYLOR: That it was Important?
Mr O'Neil: I simply said we are aware

of It.
Mr TAYLOR: I am impressing It on the

Deputy Premier. I am saying that the
Government, by its actions on the divi-
sions, has limited the value of the result,

either to the Ministers concerned, or to
the member concerned. The impartiality
of what the committee does should be
placed well beyond doubt. My colleagues
on this side have attempted time and time
again to ensure that the committee has
the necessary flexibility in its activities.
Standing Order 359 says--

An instruction to a Select Com-
mittee extends or restricts the order of
reference.

It is certainly within the power of the
Parliament on a matter of such import-
ance-and It has been agreed all around
that it Is a matter of importance-that It
should look a little more carefully at Its
Standing Orders before members agree to
such a suggestion.

I want to cover one other matter which
I think the House should consider. My
colleagues have mentioned over and aver
again that this committee which is to
investigate members on the Government
side will have a majority of Government
members, and this, in Itself, may lead the
public at least to feel reluctant to accept
the outcome of the inquiry.

Mr O'Neil: Is not that traditionally the
case? It is not necessarily so, but tradition-
ally it is the case.

Mr TAYLOR: I suggest it is, but is not
that all the more reason that members
opposite, with some experience, should try
to eliminate any possibility of doubt?

Mr O'Neil: It has not been considered
necessary on any other occasion.

Mr TAYLOR: To my knowledge there
has been no situation where a Select Com-
mittee composed of three members from
one side of the House and two members
from the other side sat In Judgment on
the colleagues of the majorities' members.
I cannot recall such a situation.

Mr O'Neil: There is provision for a
minority report from the other two
members.

Mr TAYLOR: That does not answer the
point.

Mr O'Neil: All the things you want are
available under the existing Standing
Orders.

Mr Jamieson: You have not read them.

Mr TAYLOR: For example, a Select
Committee may be composed of more than
five members.

Mr O'Neil: That is right.

Mr. TAYLOR: Then why not let us have
more than five members: why not make it
six? Let us make It an even number.

Mr O'Neil: You understand the reason
for the uneven number-the chairman has
a. casting vote only.

Mr TAYLOR: I will try to cover that
one too. Would the Government agree to
a majority of members of the opposition?



[Thursday. 11 November. 1976] 3951

Mr O'Neil: It is the member for Kala-
munda's motion.

Mr TAYLOR: Under our Standing
Orders the motion could be amended to
give us a majority.

Mr O'Neil: The Constitution has never
been criticised In the past.

Mr Bertram: This is different from the
average Select Committee-it is a set-up
job.

Mr TAYLOR: The House has divided
on a few amendments which we believe
would have helped the functioning of the
Select Committee. I would like to move
an amendment to this motion which, in a
very limited way, would allow for the
proper Presentation of the material before
the committee. I am mindful that Standing
Order 361 makes the following point-

In all Select Committees two shall
form a quorum to take evidence, and
three to pass resolutions.

So two members may form a quorum to
take evidence under our Standing Orders.
Standing Order 361 reads--

Whenever it may be necessary the
House may give a Committee Power to
send for persons, papers, and records.

With five members on this committee. I
feel it would be of value if any two of
those members, rather than a majority,
had the Power to call witnesses. In one
standing committee of which I am aware.
invariably the calling of witnesses was
decided on a consensus of opinion. I can
recall at leastlone Instance where the com-
mittee agreed to call a witness to give
evidence even though only one member
had suggested such action, and other
members may not have seen the validity
of such evidence at the time. Normally
the committee would decide itself whether
one member, two members, or a majority
would need to decide what witnesses would
be called.

I make the Point again because it is
such an important and vital one. It seems
to me that although this is a traditional
arrangement within a committee, such
decisions should not be left to the majority
of members. Bearing that in mind Standing
Order 361 makes the point that any two
members shall form a quorum.

Amenzdment to Motion
I move an amendment-

To add to the motion the following
words:

witnesses may be called before the
proposed select committee by the
agreement of two or more com-
mittee members.

I believe that the passing of this amend-
ment would allow the elimination of doubt
as to whether all matters pertinent to the
investigation will be available for the com-
mittee to investigate.

Mr BARNETTr: I second the motion.

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [12.06
am.]: The amendment proposed by the
member for Cockburn is another in a
series of amendments moved by the Op-
position. A few of these amendments
have been attempts to modify procedures
laid down under our Standing Orders
for the conduct of a Select Committee.
I state quite emphatically that the Stand-
ing orders make provision for the con-
duct of an inquiry that will give the mem-
ber for Ascot every opportunity to sub-
stantiate the allegations he has made.
I detect that the amendment moved by
the member for Cockburn is intended to
give power to two members of the opposi-
tion to call witnesses.

Mr Bertram: Two members of the Op-
position? That is not what the amend-
ment says.

Mr THOMPSON: Any two members.
Mr Bertram: Oh, is that what it means?
Mr THOMPSON: Yes, we all know what

he means.
Mr Jamieson: You only want to bring

forward the witnesses You want. That is
nice, that is.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr THOMPSON: I state again that the

provisions of our Standing Orders are
quite adequate to handle the situation,
and I ask the House to vote against the
amendment.

MR .JAMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of
the Opposition) (12.08 am.): The provi-
sions of the Standing Orders are not ade-
quate. If the attitude adopted by the
member for Kalamunda is the attitude
that will be adopted by the committee,
we can see exactly what will happen.

Mr Bertram: We certainly can.
Mr JAMIESON: We want to know where

we are going on this Issue. If the Select
Committee is only going to hear evidence
from witnesses suggested by the member
for Kalamunda, we know what will hap-
pen. It is no good waving the book at
me-there is no provision in the Standing
Orders. If the majority of members of
the committee determine that a witness
will not be called, the witness will not be
called, and the Government will have the
majority.

Mr Thompson: You are prejudging the
situation.

Mr JAMIESON: We want to know the
people who can be called before the Select
Committee. We can see the protection
now. Three members will seek to call
the member for Ascot but of course, none
of the Ministers will be called because
there is not a majority to call them.
This is a nice how-do-you-do! We see
the chickens coming home to roost now.
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Mr O'Neil: The Premier has given an
unequivocal guarantee.

Mr JAMIESON: if the Ministers are
called.

Mr Bertram: You don't like this.
Mr B3. T1. Burke: A nominal assurancel
Mr JAMIESON: The Premier gave the

assurance if the witnesses are called. How
can the Ministers be called in the situa-
tion we will have?

Mr O'Neil: You are ducking out from
under. You just did not want this in-
quiry but you are not game to vote
against it.

Mr JAMIESON: Of course we want it.
It is a pity the Deputy Premier has
only a boat, and nothing to be examined.
Perhaps we could look to see when he last
painted the boat.

Mr O'Neil: You are not game to vote
against it. You will do everything you can
to score.

Mr JAMIESON: We want to do every-
thing we can to ensure that It is a fair
and proper Select Committee and not one
that Is loaded, onesided, or directed by the
whims and desires of the chairman-be-
cause I have been on a Royal Commission
with him and I know he does not pay
much attention to them, anyway. Half
the time we found It bard to get him to
pay much attention to It.

Mr Bertram: The subject matter was a
bit beyond him.

Mr JAMIESON: The only thing in his
favour was that he started off convinced
in one direction, and finished up convinced
the other way. I do not know what the
witnesses did to him!

Mr Thompson: What fairer chairman
could you have?

Mr JAMIESON: I am not too sure about
that. There was unanimity in the final
report of that commission, but we cannot
be sure that will happen again. As a 4mat-
ter of fact, It was probably a rare oc-
casion.

We have made it clear that we want
the Select Committee to be a lair and
just one and we have not got that assur-
ance, despite what the Premier said, be-
cause we do not know whether certain
people can be called. It is all very well
for the Premier to say the Ministers will
answer If they are called, but if they are
not called what guarantee have we that
the committee will be fair and just?

The amendment moved by the member
for Cockburn Is justified and should be
supported by members if they are at all
Interested In justice and bringing out the
facts.

MR B. T. BURKE (Balga) 1 12.12 a.m 1:
Although the time is late, there is a voice
In the back of my mind which says,
"Speak three hours more" -

Mr Bertram: Can you turn It off ?

Mr B. T. BURKE: -because this is a
very important matter. Unlike some menm-
bers I do not feel the animosity towards
the member for Kalamunda that seems to
be evident, because It is not his fault. It
has become patently clear that the debacle
into which the Government has plunged
tonight had its inspiraton In the mind of
the Deputy Premier who, like St. Paul, was
riding an elephant along the countryside
when he was struck by a bolt of lightning.
That bolt of lightning sent him to the
Premier, who Instructed his Ministers that
they had agreed to have this inquiry. Then
the luckless member for Kalamunda hap-
pened by and had thrust into his hand
a Prepared speech, together with an In-
struction to wear his best sut-

Mr Skidmore: And a new tie.
Mr B. T. BURKE: -because there was

a fair chance he would get some publicity
that might involve a photograph.

Mr Jamieson: Disappointment reigns
supreme.

The SPEAKER: I trust the member will
relate this to the amendment?

Mr B. T. BURKE: I will, Sir. The inem-
ber for Kalamunda simply spoke the writ-
ten word that had been hastily thrust into
his hand: and, to property sum up the
attitude that permeated through the Gov-
ernment after the hatching of this m)aster
operation, he attempted to close the debate
after the first speaker from the Opposi-
tion concluded his contribution. I hope
his judgment on that occasion does not
reflect the judgment he will exercise
throughout the remainder of this opera-
tion, because If It does I am afraid we will
find the Select Committee will sit for
weeks, and perhaps months.

Mr O'Neil: You don't want It to get
started.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Rumble, rumble,
rumble!

Mr O'Neil: The most intelligent words
you have spoken.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Humble, rumble,
rumble 1

Mr Clarko: It Is better than your normal
moronic drivel.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Oh! We now have
the member for barko who, on the last
occasion he spoke on his feet, was speak-
Ing about Alsatians. and was afraid to
cross the border.

Ms Clarko: Can't you come Up with
something a bit better than that?

Mr B. T, BURKE: Perhaps his interest
in that subject was provoked by the fact
that he had already crossed the border
and been caught.

L:t us revert to what Is the essential
seriousness of this matter. We have tried
to impress upon the Government that we
see in this committee a committee different
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in nature from the Select Committees
which have gone before. It has been ably
pointed out that this Select Committee
will be a committee of members to in-
quire into other members and Ministers.

Now, there is a very fundamental differ-
ence in that proposition when we compare
it to the proposition contained in the
reasons for setting up previous Select
Committees that have been referred to.

The amendment before the Chair Is the
last one we have moved so far to show
our concern that the difference be re-
flected In efforts to ensure there is no bias
in the operation of the Select Committee.
We have moved to bring before the com-
mittee the claim we make that the Pre-
mier mised the House. We say that his
misleading of the House was irretrievably
entwined in his manipulation of capital,
and that matter should go before the
Select Committee. If the statements of
the member for Ascot are so diabolically
serious as to warrant a Select Committee,
then certainly the allegation we make
about the Premier misleading the House
also requires investigation by a Select
Committee. The Government refused to
allow us to include that in the terms of
reference.

We then tried to ensure that the sub
iudiee rule, which has Prevented us on
other occasions from discussing matters
Pertaining to the Premier's business deal-
ings would not be invoked as far as the
operations of the Select Committee were
concerned. Despite the Premyier's under-
taking to appear before the committee to
answer any charge-an undertaking he
did not have the authority to give or to
fulfil-

Mr Davies: Provided he Is invited.
Mr B. T. BURKE:. -that is so-we saw

him oppose the motion that would give
confirmation to his assurance and give
him authority to honour it.

Mr O'Connor: What has this to do with
the amendment before us?

Mr B- T. BURKE: I am saying the
amendment before us Is the final one of
the series aimed at achieving the whole
Intention sought to be achieved.

Mr O'Connor: You have not spoken to
that amendment yet.

Mr Bertram: He has spoken to it with
great eloquence and skill.

Mr B. T. BURKE: The morning is still
Young, and we will accommodate the Min-
ster's desire in a moment.

So we move past those two rejections by
the Government. The next thing we tried
to do was to ensure that witnesses are
given immunity. We said that the Stand-
ing Orders apply to Select Committees and
that while Perhaps the Standing Orders
are adequate in respect of those inquiries
which concern matters other than the
one which is the subject of this Select

Committee, we do not believe the ima-
munity given to witnesses in this situation
is sufficient. Again the Government said,
"No".

We are now trying to ensure that any
two members of the Select Committee
would be permitted to call witnesses before
the committee. We were told by the mem-
ber for Kalarnunda a short time ago that
this will not be allowed. Why will it not
be allowed? Does the member for Kale-
munda, who will be the chairman of the
Select Committee, intend to refuse to
allow members of the Opposition, because
they are in the minority, to select
witnesses from whomsoever they want to
call? Is that what he is saying?

If it Is not what he is saying, then let
him vote for this amendment and verify
his position. Of course he will not.

We also sought by way of another
amendment to ensure that all bearings
would be public, because we have nothing
to hide. The member for Ascot is on
record, and he does not want to hide any-
thing He seconded that amendment.
On the other hand, the Premier refuses to
allow public hearings. Why? Has he
-something to hide?

The interjections of the Deputy Premier
all had the thrust of trying to indicate fhe
Opposition opposed the Select Committee,
and was trying to wriggle out from under.
What we have endeavoured to say is this:
Firstly, this Select Committee will inquire
into something quite different from those
issues: which were the subjects of previous
Select Committees, and because of that,
additional safeguards are needed. In every
case, we have tried to show those safe-
guards will not militate in favour of one
party or the other, but will work to pro-
duce the desired and unchallengeable
results that all members should want. At
every turn, the Government has said, "No,
no, no, no." The Government does not want
the allegations to see the light of day. It
does not want a full open, public inquiry
with members of the committee having
equal authority and with all witnesses
being granted Immunity.

Mr Davies: It is in line with their track
record.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Notwithstanding
that, the Opposition looks forward eagerly
to this Select Committee. We do not know
what will come forward; all sorts of things
have been hinted at and spoken of. But
we can promise members that the inquiry
will have our full support unless the
obvious bias shown by the Government
in this Chamber tonight is carried through
into actions expressed by its representat-
ives on the committee. If that is the case,
the whole world will know.

In conclusion, let me say this: The Gov-
ernment has one last opportunity to
demonstrate its good faith by saying it will
allow any two members of the proposed
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Select Committee to agree to call witnesses
before the committee. If it fails to agree
to that proposal, It will merely confirm its
determination to ensure the inquiry is as
biased, as partisan, and as unfair as it
can make it.

Amendment put and a division taken
with the following result-

Mr Barnett
Mr Baseman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Canr
M~r Davies

Mr Blaike
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadaur
Mr Orewar
Mr IAuYrflnC
Mr McPharltn
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovicli

Ayes
Mr May
Mr Metvor
Mr T. D. Evans
Mr Tram&"
M4r T. R. Jon
Mr Pletcher
Mr H. D. Z7=0s

Ayes-iS5
Mr Haflney
Mr Jamnleson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mir J. T. Tonkin
Mr Moiler

(Teller)

Nloes-22
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Nel
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
Mr Shalders
Mr Slbson
Mr Thompson.
Mr Tubby

Pairs
Noes

Mr P. V. Jones
Mr Sademan
Mr Crane
Mr Watt
Mr Stephens
Mr Grayden
Mr Youndg

Amendment thus negatived.

Debate (on motion) Resumed
Question put and passed.

Appointment of Select Committee
MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [12.26

a.m.]I: I move-
That the following members be

appointed to serve on the Select Com-
mittee, together with the mover-the
Member for Gascoyne (Mr Laurance).
the Member for Mt. Marshall (Mr
McPbarlin), the Member for Balga
(Mr B. T. Burke) and the Member for
Morley (Mr A. H.. Tonkin).

Amendment to Motion
MR JIAMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of

the Opposition) [12.27 a.m.l: I move an
amendment-

That the Member for Mt. Hawthorn
(Mr Bertram) be added as a sixth
member of the Select Committee.

As I indicated earlier, It Is too close to
an election for any political party to take
risks in regard to a Select Committee such
as this, where this is liable to be a lopsided
activity. It is true that members can bring
down a minority report, but this situation
is too dangerous to tolerate at this point.

The sincerity of the Government's
attitude towards this Inquiry will be
gauged by the way it votes on my pro-
posal. r suggest that to make things look

reasonable, fair, and tidy, the Government
should not object to my amendment.
Standing order 351 states-

All Select Committees shall, unless
the House shall otherwise direct con-
sist of five members whereof one shall
be the Mover.

I have moved my amendment in accord-
ance with that Standing Order. It is essen-
tial we get fair play on this committee. The
Government has refused to agree to any of
our amnendments to widen the scope of the
committee, and I hope it does not con-
tinue in this vein by denying us the right
to have equal representation on the com-
mittee.

This is a very different type of commit-
tee from the ones we have had before; we
have never had a committee like this
since the Legislative Assembly came into
existence. Previous committees which in-
quired into members' activities were for-
mulated somewhat differently; certainly
they were not run in the way proposed
for this committee. I suggest in all
fairness both to the Government and to
the Opposition that the Government
should be prepared to go along with this
move and provide for equal representa-
tion on the committee. Then we will
know that the report produced by the
committee after full deliberation on the
matters brought before it would be a fair
and proper report, not one which has
been written on a party political basis.

Of course, there is some political bias
on most Select Committees, but this com-
mittee goes a lot further than mere bias
because it is completely divided before
it starts due to the issues involved.
Naturally, the Government members will
be seeking to protect their Ministers which,
I suppose, is not unreasonable; in addition.
our side will be endeavouring to) Protect
the interests of the Opposition which,
again, is not unreasonable.

We have a division to start with. This
committee will not be like a committee
which inquires into matters such as the
dairy industry, the sheep Industry or
potatoes where there is a degree of un-
animity before the start of the committee
on some aspects of the committee's opera-
tions. I cannot see any common ground
at the start of this committee. There not
being any common round, the only way
to create a situation In which some equal-
ity can prevail Is for both sides of the
political spectrum to be represented
evenly on the Select Committee.

The SPEAKER: Is there a seconder?
Mr B. T. BURKE: I second the amend-

ment.

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) (12.31
a.m.]: After what I Interpreted to be
somewhat flattering remarks made by the
member for Balga, I am a little hurt by
what the Leader of the Opposition has
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just said. He has prejudged the committee.
He said that there has not been a com-
mittee of this type previously and he is
anticipating something that probably will
not happen. in fact, I would say It will
not happen. The committee will be lair
and will give an opportunity to the mem-
ber for Ascot to sustain the allegations
he has made,

I do not know how the Leader of the
Opposition can complain that the corn-
nmittee will be lopsided. There will be a
chairman and two members from the
Opposition and two members of the Gov-
ernment,

Mr Jamieson: You must believe in
fairies. It's getting close to Christmas.

Mr B. T. Burke: Don't you wish you
didn't have a good seat.

Mr THOMPSON: Two members from
the Government and two members from
the Opposition.

Mr Barnett: With the chairman from
the Government?

Mr A. R, Tonkin: Aren't you from the
Government?

Mr THOMPSON: I believe the Leader
of the Opposition should just sit back and
wait to see what happens.

Mr Jamieson: And then shut the door?
Mr THOMPSON: The experience he

will gain from this matter will enable him
on future occasions to make up his mind
whether he wants to move a motion sim-
ilar to this one. I have nothing against
the member for Mt. Hawthorn. I think he
Is a charming fellow. However, I must de-
dine the generous offer of the member for
Mt. Hawthorn to assist in this matter.

Amendment put and a division taken
with the following result-

Ayes-IS.
Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mdr B. T, Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies

Mr Blaikie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coynle
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadour

Mr Orewar
Mr Laurenlce
Mr MePharlin
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovich

Ayes
My May
Mr McIver
Mr T. D. Evans
Mr Harman
Mr T. El. Jones
Mr Pletcher
Mr H. D. Evans

Mr Hartrey
Mr Jamieson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr Moller

(Teller)
Noes--21

Mr O'Coannor
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
r Shalders

Mr Sibson
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Clarko

faire
Noes

Mr P. V. Jones
Mr Sodeman
Mr Crane
Mr Weatt
Mr Stephens
Mr Orayden
Mr Young

Amendment thus negatived.
Question put and passed.

lovember, 19761 3955

MR THOMPSON (Kalamunda) [12.35
am.): I move-

That the Committee have power to
call for persons and papers, to sit on
days over which the House stands ad-
journed, to move from place to place,
and to report on Thursday, 18th
November, 1975.

The SPEAKER:, Is there a seconder to
the motion?

Sir CHARLES COURT: I second the
motion.

MR J.AMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of
the Opposition) 112.37 a.m.]: Now the Gov-
ernment would be joking! We see how
sincere the Premier is now. This is just
making tomfoolery out of the whole situa-
tion. Members of the Government are not
sincere, are not dinkumi and are running
away from their obligations. it is high
time the Government woke up to itself
and realised that it is supposed to be
running the State on behalf of the people
of Western Australia and not on its own
behalf. This is a disgusting and despicable
move on behalf of the Government.

Mr Clarko: How can you know?

Mr JAMIESON: The member would not
know. He has been asleep all night. Why
does he not go back to sleep? He is more
use to his electors when he is asleep. This
is a despicable move on the part of the
Government. It is one with which we will
not go along. More time than this must be
vwiU1. The committee mnust not be rushed.

It was, evident early this evening that this
might occur but I thought later that per-
haps I was wrong in my judgment. The
chairman has been telling us how he is
going to be independent and move away
from subservience to the Government and
then he moves this motion.

Mr O'Neil: You realise your last amend-
ment would have robbed him of a vote?

Mr JAMIESON: it would not have
robbed him of a vote.

Mr O'Neil: It would. All he gets is a
casting vote.

Mr JAMIESON: Nobody bothered to
argue about that.

Mr O'Neil: You thought we did not
know.

Mr JAMIESON: The Deputy Premier
(Teller) forgot to look at the Standing Orders. It

is typical of the Deputy Premier that when
everything is all over he finds some mis-
take. It is typical of him; he does it in-
cessntly. It is about time he woke up
and did a bit of work at the proper time,
which is when the debate is on and not
when it is over. I think I have made it
abundantly clear that we will not have a
bar of the early reporting of this com-
mittee.



We are already at the end of the present
w:!ek, and yet it is proposed that the Select
Committee shall report by the 18th
November which is next Thursday. There
is no need for this. The Premier knows
we will be sitting for another week after
the next week. By Uimiting the time he
would say, "You could not arrange a meet-
ing." The majority decision of the Select
Committee will declare that nobody turned
up and it could not do anything.

How would it be possible to set the
Ministers before the committee In that
time? The Premier and the Ministers have
commitments. Surely they do not have the
time set aside for such an inquiry.

I say this is a drunmned up procedure,
and it Is quite unnecessary to limit the
time. This shows that the sincerity of
the Premier does not exist, and he is back
to his knavish tricks again. There Is no
need for him to be involved In such stupi-
dity in arranging that the Select Com-
nmittee should report within a few days
after it is appointed.

MR A. R. TONKIN (Morley) (12.41
a.m.]-: it is quite clear that this motion is
intended to make this place more of a
farce than it already is. It successfully
adds to the fact that this place is be-
coming more and more of a toy Parlia-
ment.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the mem-
ber resume his seat? I object to the line
of discussion which the member for Mor-
ley Is taking In referring to this House
in such disparaging terms. This is not the
first occasion It has happened. I have
neglected to take any action so far, be-
cause I have been perhaps unusually toler-
ant in this matter. I would not like this
Parliament to be referred in the terms
used by the member for Morley. Hie Is
quite able to convey his feelings In par-
liamentary language, and his vocabulary
is adequate to enable him to do so. I ask
him not to do that again.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: How are we to
describe the motion that has just been
moved? The Select Committee will be re-
quired to report back to this House on
Thursday next. We have serious allegations
against at least two Minlsters--sierious
allegations that would bring down a Gov-
ernment in almost any other country in
the world.

It is Pretended that In those few cays
there will be Investigations and a report
to decide the probity of 12 Ministers, Fy
its attitude the Government has already
Protected the Premier, and the Premier's
financial affairs will not be able to be in-
vestigated.

Sir Charles Court: Don't talk rot!
Mr A. R.. TONKIN: That was why we

moved to make it clear that we should be
able to call witnesses in spite of oan in-
terpretation of the rule relating to matters
Which are sub ludice. Even allowing for

the fact that the Premier who is being more
privileged than the rest of his Cabinet is
immune from this investigation, there are
still very serious allegations against an-
other Minister, and quite a number of
witnesses, running to at least 20, may be
called.

Is it seriously contemplated that at least
a score of witnesses will be able to be
investigated in the time available? Pie
sumably Parliament will sit on Tuesday,
Wednesday, and Thursday of next week.
I as a member of the Select Committee
would be prepared to work at the %eelc-
end. What time does that leave? Only
Monday.

Mr Bertram: What about Mansard?
Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, quite

clearly I respect your concern at my dis-
paraging words about this Parliament
How much more are we to be concerned at
the contempt for this place exhibited by a
Goverrnent that brings In a motion of
this kind? This is similar to the con-
tempt shown to this place by the present
Premier when he misled the House in
September, 1972. Now we have the further
situation where the Premier gave notice
of a motion.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the mem-
ber resume his seat? I just picked up from
somewhere what I describe as half an
interjection. I do not know whether
Mansard has taken it down. The Mansard
reporter has Indicated nothing was picked
UP.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: Mansard has Leen
doing a very good Job.

Mr Skidmore, Be careful! There will
be an inquiry into the member for Balga.

Mr B. T. Burke: It does not matter.
The committee will meet for only 10 min-
utes.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: What a farce this
is! Gilbert and Sullivan would have a field
day if they were here.

Mr B. T. Burke: A kangaroo court.
Mr A. ft. TONKI: The Opposition

generally welcomes an inquiry into this
matter. We sought to make this inquiry
genuine by ensuring that the Premier
would not be immune, that the witnesses
would have some protection from harass-
ment and arrest, and that the public
would be able to know what was going on.

It has been said that we have obstructed
this motion. In fact, all that we have
done is to try to make the motion
stronger by ensuring there is a genuine
inquiry. Even if all the amendments we
moved had been carried and the Premier
Was not immune, and even if the witnesses
were to be protected, this motion
by the member for Kalamunda will make
the whole exercise a cynical and futile
gesture. It is the kind of gesture made
by little boys when they wish to show
contempt for someone or something.
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This Government is thumbing its nose
at the public and at Parliament. So. when
I made those disparaging remarks about
Parliament I was only expressing my con-
tempt for the people who treat this place
in such a way as to denigrate it and lower
it in the public's esteem.

Do we not realise that this motion will
be heard around the world? Do we not real-
Ise this will be written into the Parila-
tnentarian. and that the members of this
Parliament will hang their heads in shame
wherever they may go? Do we not realise
that members of this Parliament will be
described as the members from the West-
ern Australian Parliament where a six-
day inquiry into the probity of Ministers
was held?

Mr Bertram: It would not be six days.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: I do not know what

the period is. Other members can put their
own construction on the period. Even if
we say the period is six days that is still
obviously quite ludicrous. At times Select
Committees have been appointed and re-
quired to report back in the space of two
months.

I remember one such inquiry and it was
far too short, but Parliament was due to
rise and the matter was not of the nature
of the inquiry under discussion now. I
think the deadline was met.

We realise the Parliament is in its last
months. Therefore one could not expect a
date to be set six months ahead. It would
just not be possible because Parliament
would no longer exist. So we expected a
date to be set some time late In December.
If the Premier had been genuine, It is
quite possible for this Parliament to be
reconvened on the 23rd December or some
such date for the express Purpose of hav-
Ing the Select Committee submit its report.
That would be a difficult job, and I have
no doubt that genuine members of the
committee would have Indicated they had
not been able to conclude their delibera-
tions, that the report submitted was an
interim report, and that they recommended
the Select Committee should be converted
to an Honorary Royal Commission so that
it could continue even though Parliament
was prorogued. This is what we expected
and that would be a possible deadline al-
though it would be only five or six weeks.
The Premier is grinning his head off with
great glee.

Sir Charles Court: Not about you. I have
much more humorous things to amuse me.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: If there had been a
genuine desire then Parliament could have
been brought back for a half-day sitting so
that the committee could report to it.

We go on record quite clearly as express-
ing disgust with this motion. We object to
the humiliation that this motion places
upon all members of this House. It will be
a shameful day we will have to remember.
We will be held up to ridicule throughout

the world, especially, where the Westmin-
ster system is revered and regarded as a
worth-while human invention. Therefore
we are unable to agree to this motion in
any way.

If ever a motion exhibited once and for
all the cynicism of the Premier and the
contempt in which he holds this place and
the people, this motion certainly does.

Many people think it is a very high
honour to belong to a Parliament because
one is here to represent people and the
long suffering People of Western Aus-
tralia have had a cynical abuse of the
courts of this land because a writ has
been issued there in order to silence
discussion in this Place. We have had a
discussion today. Perhaps today will be our
brief day of glory. Just for once the Par-
liament of Western Australia did Ques-
tion this whole subject of the veracity of
the Government and, in particular, the
veracity of a Premier who has seriously
misled the House.

This day has not been very long because
it was brought to a close by a person
acting at the behest of the Premier and
no doubt anxious for promotion to Cabinet
as early as possible and therefore pre-
pared to do the Premier's dirty worR. Th'is
motion has been presented and so the day
started with a sincere belief on the part
of the Opposition that here was an op-
portunity to decide matters that the people
of Western Australia outside these walls
have been debating and discussing. The
people of Western Australia have been
able to discuss these matters which
we have not been permitted to discuss in
this House for somne years.

The People of Western Australia will
be told-we will see to that-about this
move today and about this inquiry which
will report back in less than a week. When
we allow for all the other pressures Upon
members' time and the fact that, as I
say, there are at least 20 witnesses in
my opinion in respect of one particular
person, and no doubt there could be more
with respect to others, then how Is it pos-
sible for us to do our job? It is just not
feasible.

The Leader of the Opposition has already
indicated that we cannot agree to this
kind of timetable. I suppose the com-
mittee will be lucky if it meets for half
an hour. At the outset when the mnem-
ber for Kalamunda indicated the com-
mittee would make a report in a couple
of days we thought he was exaggerating.

Mr Thompson: I did not say a couple
of days.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: We thought that he
already had the report written. We now
know the report has already been written.
Before that committee ever meets the
report Is decided.

Mr O'Neil: We do not even know the
allegation yet.



3958 [ASSEMBLY)

Mr A. R. TONKIN,: The Opposition tried
to give some credence to this sham by
being members of the Select Committee.
We see the Premier looking very pleased
with himself and very smug.

Sir Charles Court: Not at this hour of
the night.

Mr A. IL. TONKIN: This is the master-
stroke of his career. He believes he has
shown once again be is a great political
tactician.

Sir Charles Court: That will never be.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: We will see what

history says of this man and we will see
what the people of Western Australia say
of this ruse, because quite clearly this is
a ruse. This quite clearly shows that there
is no sincere intention on the part of the
Government to have an inquiry. This has
been an exercise by a Government facing
an election.

The Opposition is still willing to have
a decent inquiry into this whole subject.
but every member in this House who has
any honesty knows that It is just not
feasible that any kind of a report can be
brought down by next Thursday except a
report that has already been written and
which would be a whitewash-a Pure
whitewash-of the Ministers.

We oppose the motion and we oppose it
not so much in anger as in sorrow that
a Government, and a member of this
House-the member for Kalarnunda-who
might be thought to have some ambitions
in this place, should so besmirch it by such
a shameful motion.

Mr Davies: He has proved to be a
30-bits-of-silver man.

Mr A. R. TOINKIN: Unless there are
some members on the Government side
with honour to vote against the motion
with the Opposition, the whole of the Gov-
ernment will be part of this shameful,
shabby trick.

Mr Nanovich: If anyone is shabby it is
YOU.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr A. RL. TONKI: We see once again

that there is a great deal to choose between
the Government and the Opposition in
this place. People who do not follow
politics terribly closely sometimes wonder
whether there Is a great deal of difference
to choose between us. If ever we have
seen an illustration of a difference be-
tween a party of Principle and decency and
one that believes in the institution of
Parliament and a party which is none of
those things, we have seen such an illustra-
tion tonight.

Every member of the Government Is
tainted by this move; all of them whether
they are asleep, whether they are grinning,
or whether they are hanging their heads
in shame-as quite a few understandably
are. Every one of them is tainted unless
he quite clearly dissociates himself from

this shabby move as Part of a shameful
deal. The result of the shameful deal is
that this Government is not to be trusted

Allegations have been made against this
Government and the Premier said an in-
quiry would be held. The inquiry is to
be a sham and a cover-up so every member
of this Government who votes in favour
of the motion becomes part of that cover-
UP. His hands will not be clean , any more
than are those of the Ministers concerned.

I would welcome a committee of inquiry
into anyth Ing I have said. I would wel-
come a genuine committee of inquiry and
I hope I may live to see the day when
this Parliament has a genuine committe
system and when a genuine Select Com-
mittee can be appointed for the very pur-
pose the present one was allegedly ap-
pointed today. Members of the Govern-
ment are pretending to be asleep, and
hiding their heads in their hands.

Mr O'Neil: Who?
Mr A. R. TONKIN: Members of the

Government are truly ashamed of what
is happening. I wonder which members
opposite henceforth will be able to look at
themselves In the mirror.

Mr Nanovich: I would rather look In
the mirror than look at you.

Mr A. RL. TONKIN: I wonder how many
members opposite will be able to say that
they voted for a motion which provided
that a report into allegations against Min-
isters had to be made within six days.
Members opposite made sure that the In-
quiry had no teeth by knocking bark
amendment after amendment. This is the
coup de grace. A report will have to be
made within a few days. With the week-
end intervening, the committee will meet
for only one or two days.

We knew the inquiry was to be a sham.
and a put-up job. We now know the report
has already been decided. This Is the kind
of Government which this State has. This
Is the kind of political scene of which we
should all be ashamed.

SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-
Premier) (1.04 am.]: I would like to in-
form members, before they get too excited,
that there are a number of governing fac-
tors. First' of all, a Select Committee
can sit only while Parliament is In session.
The matter goes beyond that.

Mr Bertram: It can become a Royal
Commission.

Mr Jamnieson.* You are wrong Mgain, you
know.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I want to remind
members that it is quite competent for
the committee to report to the House and
request an extension of time. Standing
Order 357 states-

357. On the appointment of eviry
Conmnittee, a day shall be fixed for the
reporting of their proceedings to the
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House, and on such day the final
'report of the Committee shall be
brought up by the Chairman, unless
further time be moved for and granted:
Provided that it shall always be com-
petent for the Chairman to bring up
the report whensoever the Committee
bas concluded its proceedings.

Mr Bertram: That means a majority of
the committee.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The honourable
member will know that a Select Committee
has its life only as an extension of the
House.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: We know that.
Sir CHARLES COURT: If a Select Comn-

mittee wants to go beyond the sittings of
the House it requests the Government to
give It a commission from the Governor to
become an Honorary Royal Commission.
However, all the time it is a Select Com-
mittee it has to be at the will of the House.
Therefore, bearing in mind that this Par-
liament does not have a limitless life any-
way-regardless of what the Government
might think-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: More than six days?
Sir CHARLE S COURT: In view of th,

fact that we have to have some regard
for the practicality of the capacity of the
members of the committee-

Mr A. R. Tonk in: The majority, you
'mean.

The SPEAKER: Order! The member for
Mo1rley wE'S Uistened to in reasonable
silence. The Premier.

Sir CHARLES COURT: if the members
of the committee come along next Thurs-
day and state that they have deliberated
and made progress, but that they want an
extension of time, and Parliament is still
in session. it will then be considered.

It would be quite Irresponsible if we
did not fix a day which we knew was to be
within the Present sitting. BY that time
the Select Committee should have deliber-
ated. By that time-and it is not for me
to say-I would hope the member for
Ascot would have mnade his allegations
and spelt them out and given reasons and
justification for them. By that time the
Select Committee should have a fair idea
of what additional time it wanted beyond
next Thursday.

Mr Davies: I Suppose the Premier will
get a daily report.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I suggest this
procedure Is not unusual. I well remem-
ber-as will the member for Melville, when
he was the Deputy Premier in the Hawke
Government-a Select Committee being
set up to study the question whether and
how the private bus operators would be
brought into the mTlT. The present Leader
of the Opposition will remember the
occasion because lie was a supporter of the
then Government. Reference to Mansard

will show that a very short time was
allowed for the report to be made, and that
was for a very good reason. I do not think
the time allowed was as long as that now
proposed, but that Select Committee in-
quired into a mighty vital and complex
issue. If I remember correctly, the Hon. H.
E. Graham was Chairman of that Select
Committee.

Mr Davies: That accounts for it!

Sir CHARLES COURT: I recall that the
member for Blackwood, as he then was
(John Hearman), was also a member of
that Select Committee. That committee
had a very tight schedule because of the
limited life of the Parliament and the
urgency of the matter, and it had
to report back and make its recommenda-
tions so that Parliament could decide
whether it would proceed with legislation
which was much more complex than the
proposal now before us.

The fact is that the date is not as
unreasonable as it might appear. Parlia-
ment will still be in session and still in
charge of the situation. It will be quite
within the competence of Parliament.
under Standing Orders, to give an exten-
sion of time when I hope the chairman,
on behalf of the committee, will be able
to give this Parliament some factual in-
formation-some practical information-
based on the experience of the committee
up to that time, and an estimate of how
much additional time will be required.

MR SKIDMORE (Swan) [1.08 anm]: I
oppose the time schedule outlined because
I find the committee will be placed in an
unworkable situation. The stage for this
scene was set by the Government when
the member for Kalamunda moved his
motion. The member for Kalamunda had
open to him the option of accepting that
the member for Ascot referred to one
Minister only, or he referred to more than
one Minister. The motion presented by
the member for Kalamunda obviously
covers a Minister, or various Ministers.

The Premier has suggested we will have
plenty of time between now and the 18th
November, but If the committee were to
meet today (Friday), Saturday, Sunday,
and Monday, it would have only four days.

I suggest to members of this House it
May be true that the members of the com-
mittee would be very keen to sit on those
four days but I want to refer the commit-
tee to its own Standing Orders and the
requirements in accordance with those
Standing Orders. There has already been
a suggestion that there may be at least
20 witnesses Involving, as I understand it,
one or two Ministers, and I am not sure
that other Ministers will not become in-
volved when other witnesses are proceeded
with. So we have to advise the witnesses
how they will appear before the committee.
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Let us look at what the Standing Orders
provide, which Is what the Select Commit-
tee must do. Standing Order 368 states--

The Chairman of a Select Committee
shall direct the Clerk of the House to
summon the witnesses to be examined
before such Committee.

How are we to achieve that objective?
And I will say in fairness that Saturday
could be included as a working day for most
people. There is no compulsion ofl a private
citizen to appear before the committee,
although he may wish to, and I would not
expect it would be assumed that a private
citizen should give away his Sunday merely
to attend a Select Committee meeting. To
me as a citizen that would be untenable
and we must give consideration to the fact
that a citizen may wish to take his family
out, go to church, or do other things on a
Sunday. So I find it difficult to understand
how there Will be time to summon the wit-
nesses.

The Deputy Premier has had a look at
Standing Order 369, and I will come to it.

Mr O'Neil: And a lot more about not
being able to call witnesses before it, out-
of-pocket expenses, and so on. All, the
things you are saying are problems which
are catered for in the rules.

Mr SKIJDMORE: The Deputy Premier Is
so clever that he can get up and tell me
where they are catered for.

Mr Bertram: He is not permitted to.

Mr SKIDMORE: Standing Order 369
says-

If a Select Committee desires te
attendance of a Member as a witness,
the Chairman shall, in writing, request
him to attend;

Mr O'Neil: That is a member of parlia-
ment. There is another one that provides
for ordinary witnesses.

Mr SKIDMORE: Do not get uptight.
Does not the Deputy Premier think any
member of Parliament will be wanted as
a witness?

Mr O'Neil; You said the Clerk had to call
witnesses.

Mr SKIDMORE: The Deputy Premier is
getting a bit frustrated because he is in
difficulty.

Mr O'Neil: I suggest you sit down and
read it coldly and carefully.

Mr SKIDMORE: I am reading it coldly
and carefully. I am trying to explain to
members the impossibility of implementing
the desires of the committee established by
this Parliament which is to be impartial
in its deliberations, to ensure fairness will
be done, and to ensure the Opportunity will
be presented for a matter to be properly
debated, examined, and deliberated upon.
I say the timetable will not allow all the
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witnesses to be advised in time within the
days the committee will be sitting. Stand-
ing Order 369 continue--

...but should he refuse the Select
Committee shall take no further
action, except to report the matter to
the House.

I suggest to the chairman of the Select
Committee that if he wishes to summon
me to come on Sunday I feel it will be
within my rights as a member and a citizen
to say, "I am sorry, my Sundays are comn-
pnitted"-certainly not to go to church
but certainly to indulge in some other form
of activity on that day, as is the right of
anybody else.

When we have a look at that situation
particularly so far as the witnesses are
concerned, I wonder how the Clerk of the
House is going to summon them. There are
20 of them and they must all be sum-
moned. Perhaps the chairman of the
Select Committee will tell me how the
Clerk will summon them.

Mr Thompson: How do you know there
will be 20 witnesses?

Mr SKIDMORE: I said another member
had suggested there may be 20 witnesses.
How Is the Clerk of the House going to
do it? Is he going to get In his car after
the Select committee has met on Mon-
day and heard the allegations? Remem-
bering there will be 20 witnesses, the
Select Committee will shut down on Mon-
day because there will be nothing further
to do. Then It comes to Saturday-that is
today, of course. I do not know that the
Select Committee will be wanting to start
early today.

Mr Thompson: Today Is Friday.

Mr SKIDMORE: I am suggesting the
Select Committee could start today if it
can get some of its members to continue
on after we finish debating this particular
motion at about half past four.

Mr Bertram: Are we sitting today?

Mr SKIDMORE: I do not know.
Mr Bertram: I mean the House.
Mr O'Neil: Yes. It is sitting now-

today.
Mr SKIDMORE: But this is the con-

tinuation of yesterday's sitting. That Is
the way I look at it.

Mr Hartrey: I wish you would stop
continuing.

Mr SKIDMORE: I suppose that Is the
wish of many of us. Unless we want to
abrogate the right of witnesses to have
an opportunity to appear before the com-
mittee, how are they going to get there?
If the committee sits today it will hear
the allegations of the member for Ascot.

it has been indicated by a previous
speaker that some 20 witnesses are to be
contacted. There are no Instructions In
the Standing Orders as to how it Is to
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be done. I assume the Clerk will en-
deavour to use the most expedient method
of notification. I am not too sure what
It will be. I have no idea where these
witnesses are, nor does the Premier. It
could be that one, five, six, or more of
these witnesses are not even In the metro-
politan area.

Mr Bertram: They might not even
be in the country.

Mr SKIDMORE: They might be away
in the country. They could be almost any-
where. One or two or more of them could
even be overseas or over at Roitnest. I am
not being facetious. I think I am being per-
fectly fair in suggesting that neither I
nor the members of the Select Committee
know where these witnesses are. Each
of them has to be summoned and advised
he has to appear before the Select Conm-
mittee. I would say that would take the
Clerk all of Saturday and Sunday if he
is lucky enough to be able to get on to all
the 'witnesses to ensure they appear before
the committee. If that is considered un-
reasonable by members of the Select Com-
mittee, will they Please get up and say
so? Will they say, "We believe the Clerk
can get on to all these witnesses in one
day"? We know that will be impossible.
We know it would be Possible for some of
the witnesses to be contacted and to
appear on Sunday, shall we say, if the
committee were to sit on that day.

Let us assume in the interests of justice,
good conscience, and equity that we find
the key witness Is not available. Taking
witnesses out of sequence could create dis-
advantage to the subsequent results of the
Inquiry. That could easily happen for no
reason. What would be the result of that?
The mere fact that the prime witness is
not able to give his evidence-in-chief will
mean the committee's obvious Intentions
to be fair and impartial go overboard.

Frankly, I am of the opinion that I have
not over-exaggerated the difficulties in-
volved in contacting some 20 witnesses.
There could be more-I do not know. Some
members seem to be able to prejudge this
matter and have some knowledge of the
number of witnesses.

Let us assume all the witnesses can ap-
pear by Monday and the committee can sit
all day Monday. If it wished, I suppose
the committee could sit from 8.00 am.
until 12.00 midnight. I doubt very much
that it would do this. However, this pre-
supposes the fact that each and every wit-
ness would be prepared to attend on Mon-
day at the committee's behest at a time
chosen by the committee. Again we would
be pushing our luck-it appears impossible
for that to happen.

Inevitably it will be impossible for the
committee to be fair and unbiased in its
attention to its duty. I make this comment
having regard for the timetable set. No
doubt the date will require revision, and I

do not accept what the Premier said about
this question. I believe the wanner in
which the Government has debated the
subject tonight is clear evidence that it
was never the intention of the Gov-
ernment to allow the Select Committee to
operate properly. I cast no aspersions upon
the members of the committee, but I cer-
tainly east aspersions upon the members
of this place who set the timetable. Who Is
running the committee? There is no doubt
in my mind that the committee has been
determined and dictated to by the Premier.

Mr Bertram: Correct.
Mr SKIDMORE: The members of the

committee will need more time. All that
concerns the Premier is that he is able to
accomplish a whitewash job before the
House rises. He wants to get everyone off
the hook.

Let us look at the other side of the coin
-the Ministers who may be required to
present themselves at the inquiry. I hope
all Ministers concerned have kept their
appointment books free for Monday, and
I would like to feel that the ministry has
done this so as to expedite the work of
the committee. If not, the Ministers are
contemptuous of the committee because
the Premier has assured us that each and
every one of these people will be available.
The committee may wish to call the Min-
ister for Works because his evidence is vital
to the continuity of the case and he may
not be available. The work of the commit-
tee would have to stop.

Mr O'Neil: I would Imagine if I were
called before such a committee that would
be given Priority. The only thing that
would limit my attendance would be if I
were out of the State.

Mr SKIDMORE: That is the point I
make. Unless the Ministers have kept their
engagement books free, it may well be that
one Minister is in Carnarvon, one In Ger-
a-ldton, one in Albany, one in Northarn,
and one in the metropolitan area. Un-
questionably this is just a charade, a ploy
on the part of the Premier. This committee
will be burdened with its inability to per-
form Its duties in a proper manner to en-
able it to reach an equitable decision in
the time allotted. I have no doubt at all
that an extension of time will be sought.
Of course, we know if this committee
wishes to continue after the House has
risen and during the lifetime of the Par-
liament, it will be necessary to convert the
committee into a Royal Commission. That
is one thing the Premier does not want to
happen, because it will achieve the objec-
tives that we on this side of the House
have been endeavouring to achieve with
amendments. A Royal Commission would
give protection and ensure a fair and equit-
able decision on the issue. For that reason
alone the Premier set a timetable without
taking Into account the impossibility of its
implementation.
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I oppose the motion on the ground that
it is impossible. The time limit is unfair,
and certainly it will not give the committee
dignity or, indeed, any help at all. The
committee's decision must be biased-and
I do not mean any reflection against the
committee members-because it will be
unable to do its job properly.

MR DAVIES (Victoria Park) [1.26 a.m.]:
Although I have not been able to find a
copy of the motion moved by the member
for Kalamunda, I believe It is the motion
usually moved at this stage of the
appointment of a Select Committee. How-
ever, the motion sets the l8th November
as the date by which the committee is to
report.

We go along with the main content of
the motion, but we cannot go along with
the time limit. As pointed out by the
member for Swan, the sheer logistics of
the matter make it physically Impossible
for the committee to do a reasonable job.

In setting this date I believe the Premier
has highlighted his insincerity In regard
to the whole question. He says that a
Select Committee of this type is not un-
usual. I would like everyone to remember
what the Premier has instructed his mem-
bers to vote against tonight. We wanted
greater representation on the committee,
a public inquiry, and various other aspects
which we felt would help the committee to
arrive at a true decision.

Mr Jamieson.- It is a Pity the Deputy
Premier has left the Chamber; this would
be of interest to him.

Mr DAVIES: None of our amendments
was accepted.

It was quite a shock when the member
for Kalamunda moved this motion. We
did not dream for one minute that the
Premier would have the audacity or
temerity to suggest that the committee
could do its work within this very short
period. When the Premier rose to sup-
port the member for Kalamunda he quoted
as a precedent something that had hap-
pened when the legislation to effect the
Metropolitan Transport Trust amalgama-
tion was being considered in 1957.

Mr ,Jamieson: He Is not very Interested
now.

Mr Taylor: He should listen to this.
Mr Jamieson: It Is his very point.
Mr DAVIES: One of the things that

my previous party leader taught me Is
never to take for granted what someone
on the opposite side says. it Is wise to
check up on certain matters, because Past
speeches are all there in Mansard for us
to look at. Having learnt that lesson and
learnt it well, I1 checked up on this Select
Committee to which the Premier ref erred.

Mr Bertram: Can you give us a refer-
ence?

Mr DAVIES: This appears on page 2241
of Mansard of the 15th October, 1957.
The motion to appoint this particular
Select Committee was moved by the then
Minister for Transport (the Hon. H. E.
Graham) and it provided that the com-
mittee would have the Power to call for
persons and papers, to sit on days over
which the House stands adjourned, and to
report on the 12th November, 1957,

That motion was carried In this House
on the 15th October, 1957. and the com-
mittee was required to report on the 12th
November, 1957. That is quite different
from the impression conveyed to us by
the Premier. The Premier did preface his
remarks by saying, "As far as I1 rem em-
ber', and of course with advancing years
our memories fail-we all know that.
Perhaps we must make the excuse of his
advancing years because that committee
did not have to report back to Parliament
within a week or 10 days of its establish-
ment.

Sir Charles Court. That was my under-
standing; I am sorry I didn't check it.

Mr DAVIES: I want to tell the House
there was almost one month allowed for
that very important committee to report,
A couple of other interesting facts emerge
from this. Earlier this evening we tried
to get a more balanced representation on
the committee. Indeed, the Deputy Pre-
mnier took us to task-sitting in his seat,
as is his wont, rather than standing and
making a, speech-for allegedly robbing
the chairman of his casting vote. I want
to point out to members that the members
of the Select Committee in 1957, appointed
by a Labor Government, comprised the
Hon. 11. E. Graham (Chairman); Mr
Lapham, a Labor member of Parliament:
Mr Hearman, as the Premier reminded us
earlier, who was a Liberal member: and
Mr Owen, who was a Country Party mem-
ber. It looks as though the present Gov-
ernment parties had a balance and that
we might have been In the minority at
times.

Mr Jamieson: We had a majority Gov-
ernment with a minority on the Select
Committee.

Mr DAVIES: On that committee the
Labor Party had Mr Lapham, and the
mover of the motion. Mr Graham. There
was no casting vote on that occasion. we
could have stacked the committee in any
way we wanted to at that time, but we
played the game fairly. There was still
some fairness in government in those days.
That is completely different from the
attitude adopted by the Government to-
night.

You might also remember, Sir, that this
evening we moved an amendment to eni-
able the proceedings to be made public,
and that amendment was opposed by the
Government. What happened on the 15th
October, 1957? The present Premier wanted
the hearings to be public. He said he
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realised at times there were some matters
which could be confidential, and he thought
it was all right to invite strangers into the
meeting, but the committee could not
invite the Press. As far as he was con-
cerned, the Press should be there.

That shows how the attitudes have
changed since 1957-19 years ago almost
to the day. The Premier tonight finds
that is completely unacceptable.

He misled the House in respect of the
time allowed for that committee to report,
but we can put that down to his memory.
He could at least have checked this. He
could have done what I did and walked
outside the Chamber and picked up a
volume of Mansard and reported accurately
to the House instead of having us believe
that under a Labor Government a com-
mittee was given only a week to report.

The Premier would not extend to us
tonight the privileges that we extended
to the opposition on that occasion. He
would not allow us extra representation:
he is keeping a bias on the committee
which has already received its instructions
on the manner in which it will report,
and when It will report. The Premier
even refused to allow the Press in, al-
though in 1957 he wanted that. How things
change! How this highlights the insin-
cerity of the Premier, and how It sub-
stantiates our mistrust of the Government
and the Premier!

The story Is here in Hansard for him
to see, and it Is a disgusting state of
affairs if his memory is good enough on
this occasion-

Mr Mensaros: Did your Government
accept those things at that time?

Mr DAVIES: I was not in government
at the time. However, we did not have
a majority on the committee; we gave the
then Opposition a month, and the only
thing the Minister said at the time was
that if the Select Committee wanted the
Press to attend it would have to go back
to the House for approval. But the Min-
ister can read all this for himself; let him
do his own research. He will find our
Government was fairer, more reasonable.
and more genuine than the present Gov-
ernment is.

As I said earlier, the sheer logistics do
not allow for any reasonable report to be
brought down in such a short period. When
the member for Kalamunda received his
instructions he was aware, as he has al-
ready said. that we would support the
motion. He probably thought the motion
would be Passed by 4.30 p.m. on Thursday
afternoon and that we would have a meet-
ing of the Select Cnmmlttee this morning
(Friday). But now one day has been com-
pletely lost.

I am sure Saturday and Sunday will not
provide any opportunities fnr the com-
mittee to meet. On Monday there is a
Cabinet meeting; on Tuesday there are

party meetings, and also Parliament re-
sumes sitting; and on Wednesday Par-
liament sits again. The report will take
at least a day or so to write and have
typed. Therefore, the logistics of the
exercise make it completely impossible.

The Premier says the committee could
come back to Farliament and that it would
be given more time. I do not believe the
committee should have to work under that
kind of Pressure. If the Premier is hoping
that Parliament will rise on Thursday
of next week, as many People have sug-
gested, then I think he has been here long
enough to know that with the state of the
notice paper we will be here after next
Thursday. As far as I am concerned,
I will sit here until Christmas if the Gov-
ernment wants to debate this fully.

Also, if we want to give this committee
time to consider in greater detail the work
it has to do, surely the Parliament could
adjourn for a week or two if it runs out
of business, and then we could come back
later and air the matter thoroughly. Per-
haps the Premier thinks that will be too
close to the election for his liking. Per-
haps he does not want the matter debated
at that time; perhaps the quicker it Is
out of the way the better it is for him.

Surely the longer he sits here tonight
the more he realises the colossal mistake
he has made. He must be losing some of
his punch, because this Is probably the
greatest blunder he has made since I have
been in this place, and the further it goes,
the greater the blunder will be.

As the member for Swan said, the Min-
isters will have to hold themselves ready to
go at the behest of the Chairman of the
Select Committee. I know he will have to
be fairly circumspect in his requests, be-
cause he is still hoping for some promotion
within the party. He will find he will not
be allowed tboss the people around.

Mr Young: That is pretty rude, but It
is not untypical.

Mr Jamieson: Like Your speeches, they
are rare but not untypical.

Mr DAVIES: We have to face facts, and
if the facts hurt it is just too bad.

We thought that during the debate
this evening someone on the Govern-
ment side might see something that
would make him worry a bit, and that he
would see the light. However, as I have
said, all the things for which we have
asked have been reasonable, and they are
all things which were asked for some 19
Years ago. The facts concerning that occa-
sion were misrepresented to us tonight by
the Premier who was hoping we would not
wake up to it.

It is compnletely unreasonable that any
members of Parliament who are effectively
representing their electorates, effectively
attending to legislation before the Parlia-
ment, and effectively and properly attend-
ing the meetings they are required to
attend, should have to make themselves
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available at all times during the next six
days--which has been effectively reduced
to two days, and should be extended to a
much longer Period.

I know that the Minister for Fuel and
Energy could be called off to Japan at any
old moment. In fact, there was a rumour
going around earlier this week that he
might leave for Japan on Friday or Satur-
day. The Premier raises his eyebrows. Is
he going?

Sir Charles Court: I am intrigued.
Mr DAVIES: The way the Premier raised

his eyebrows, I thought he was agreeing.
He is becoming fairly easy to read by his
facial expressions: I thought It was an
indication we may have been on to some-
thing. All the Ministers could be called
away. In fact, apart from those who are
asleep at present, and will not know what
is going on unless we tell them-

Mr O'Connor: To which Minister are
you referring?

Mr DAVIES: The Minister for Town
Planning.

Mr O'Connor: What about some of your
colleagues behind you?

M~r DAVIES: They do not have to go
along to the committee as witnesses: it
will be the Ministers who will be the wit-
nesses. I cannot tell members which Min-
isters it will be, or whether it will be only
one or two Ministers. I wish I could
help members in that respect, but I can-
not. The Ministers who are away tonight
will have to be told to stand by. One of
the Ministers is in Canberra; he might
not be back before the weekend.

The fact remains this is a completely
unreasonable motion. If the Government
cannot see It is unreasonable, it cannot
count or it does not know what is involved
or its members are failing to carry out
their duties. The insincerity of the Premier
has been highlighted many times during
the several hours of debate since this
afternoon, but It has not been spotlighted
with greater Intensity than when he tried
to tell us some humbug story about what
happened back in 1957. He completely
misled the Parliament.

MR CLARKO (Karrinyup) 11.42 a.m.]:
I move-

That the House do now divide.
Motion Put and a division taken.

Remiarks during Division
Mr B. T1. Burke: Couldn't You take it

any more?
Sir Charles Court: You have had a fair

go: the debate has gone two hours longer
than we planned.

Mr Jamieson: After the Premier misled
the House again!

Mr B. T. Burke: You stumbled into more
than you bargained for tonight.

The SPEAKER: Order! Let there be a
little more decorum.

Mr Jamieson: You have misled the
House. You thought you had something.
but You completely misled the House.

Sir Charles Court: If you had listened.
you would know that I said the member
for Victoria Park was right.

Mr Davies: You could have looked it up
before and not misled US. A month Is
quite different from what You led us to
believe.

Result of Division
Division resulted as follows-

Mr Blaikie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs ai
Dr Dadour
Mr Laurance
Mr McPbaflin
Mr Mensarce
Mr Nanovich

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

Barnett
Ba temn 
Bertram
Bryce
B. T'. Burke
Tr. J. Burke
Carr

Ayes
P. V. Jone
Sodeman
Crane
Watt
Btephems
Grayden
Grewar
Sibson

Ayes-20
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Nel
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushton
Mr Shaders
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby

Mr Young
Mr Clarke

(Teller)
Noes- 14

Mr Davies
Mr Haytrey
Mr Jamnieson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tronkin
Mr Moll1er

(TeCll")
Pairs

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

Noes
May
Mclver
T. D). Evans
Harman
T. H. Jones
Fletcher
H. D. Evans
J. T. Tonkin

Motion thus passed.
The SPEAKER: The question now is-

That the motion be agreed to.

Question put and a division taken with
the following result-

Mr Blalkie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr fladour
Mr lAuranees
Mr McPharlln
Mr Mensaros,
Mr Nanovich

Mir Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertramn
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr Carr

Ayes
Mr P. V. J0044
Mr Sodeinan
Mr Crane
Mr Watt
Mr Stephens
Mr Graydon,
Mir Orewar
Mr Sibson

Ayes-20
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mr O'Nel
Mr Rid
Mr Eunton
Mr Shalders
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Young
Mr Clarko

(Tellecr)
Noes-14

Mr Davies
Mr Hartrey
Mr Jamieson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr Moiler

(Teller)
Palrs

Noes
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

May
Mclver
T. Di. Evans
Hlarnan
T. 9. Jones
Fletcher
R. D. Evans
J. T. Tonkin

Question thus passed.
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Several members Interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! I have been try-

ing to get some order. I have been unable
to ascertain the reason for the hilarity. It
was probably quite funny but when I call
for order I expect there to be order. I do
not want the member for Balga coming in
at the last moment and trying to carry on.

Mr Bryce: Could I have the opportunity
to point out to you what the hilarity was
about?

The SPEAKER: Will the member sit
down. Why Is he rising to his feet?

Mr Bryce: Mr Speaker, you said you did
not understand the joke.

The SPEAKER: If the member for Ascot
wants to be funny In that respect I wvill
deal with him in the appropriate fashion.

Point of Order
Mir B. T. BURKE: I raise a point of

order. Under the Standing Orders and the
terms of the motion which was moved to
set up a Select Committee, It is not com-
petent for the commitee to meet on days
when this House sits. We have now been
handed a note saying that the first meeting
of this committee Is 10 O'clock today. Mr
Speaker, could you please clarify for me
whether this is not a contravention of
Standing Orders which say that the com-
mittee shall not meet on those days that
the House sits?

The SPEAKER: The committee Is able
to sit on this day.

Dissent from Speaker's Ruling
Mr B. T. BURKE: I move-

That the House dissent from the
Speaker's ruling.

The Standing Orders show quite clearly
that the Select Committee which has re-
sulted from the absurd deliberations of this
House tonight shall not meet on those days
when this House sits. It may be argued
that this House sits on Tuesday, Wednes-
day, and Thursday, but I would put to
you, Mr Speaker, and to the House that we
are now sitting on Friday, the 12th Nov-
ember, and that it is not competent for this
Select Committee to meet on the 12th
November when that is a day on which the
House is sitting. However, the point I
want to make in support of my proposition
is that if ever there was a kangaroo court,
then it is the court that has been set up
tonight under the terms of this Select
Committee.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the mem-
ber resume his seat? I shall not permit
him to speak In such a fashion. He has
raised a Point of order and I shall not
permit him to make a second reading
speech about what has been done. I ad-
vise the member for Balga and the House
that it has been traditional for as long as
this House has been operating that the day
of sitting, as far as we are concerned, is

still Thursday and that will be shown in
the Votes and Proceedings. There is
nothing to prevent the calling of a meet-
ing of the committee at this time, whether
or not the member approves of this.

Mr B. T. BURKE: I intend to continue
with my motion to dissent from your rul-
ing, Mr Speaker.

The SPEAKER: I call the member for
Balga.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Mr Speaker, it may
be your opinion that traditionally the day
of sitting is Thursday. It Is my opinion
that the day of sitting is now Friday. the
12th November. It seems obvious to me
that it is no longer Thursday but Friday
and if this sort of proposition is carried
to its logical conclusion we may well find
that this House is actually sitting past the
time at which this Select Committee Is due
to meet. What sort of absurd proposition
would It be if the Select Committee has
been called to meet while the House is
actually In session? Mr Speaker, that Is
the effect of your ruling.

Mr BRYCE: I support the motion moved
by the member for Balga to dissent from
the Speaker's ruling on the grounds of
Standing Order 304 which clearly spells
out that no Select Committee may sit
during the sittings of the Assembly unless
leave has been granted by the House.
No leave has been granted by the House.

Mr Young: It says, "Sittings of the
Assembly." Read it properly.

Mr BRYCE:
trouble we find
people in the
conned.

This is precisely the
ourselves In because the
Parliament have been

Mr Young: Come on!
Mr BRYCE: If ever this Oovernment

deserves to be censured, it Is now.
The SPEAKER: Order! I want to ad-

vise the member, as I advised the member
for Baiga, that he cannot debate what
he is trying to debate. He must stick to
the disagreement with my ruling.

Mir BRYCE: I have indicated the basis
of the Standing Order. I have no inten-
tion of dragging that out any longer. I
think it is as plain as a pikestaff that
today is Friday, that today is a sitting
day and it Is totally inappropriate for this
Nazi style of Justice to prevail. It would
be one of the greatest outrages of all time.
This place resembles an outpost of the
funny farm. When the newly appointed
members of the Select Committee drop ai
note Into the hands of members at this
stage, how can the people outside this
Chamber regard us with anything but of
the greatest contempt?

Mr SKIDMORE: I want to try to be a
little more objective in my objection to
the Interpretation the Speaker has placed
upon the matter. As I understand It, the
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ruling is that Standing Order 364 and
practice and precedent say that this day.
as far as sitting time is concerned, is
Thursday. I have spoken very briefly to
the member for Boulder-Dundas In an
effort to recall decisions which have made
the position clear at law, although I am
not suggesting that that law must apply
to this House. I am of the opinion that
on previous occasions In industrial courts
it has been established at law that days
finish at midnight. It is quite true that
Thursday finished at midnight and Friday
started at that fraction of a second after
12. When one looks at Standing Order
364 one observes that it does not say that
a Select Committee cannot sit on sitting
days, but what it does say Is -

and may sit on those days over
which the Assembly Is adjourned;,

No mention is made In that Standing
Order of days of sitting. But it says that
a Select Committee may sit on days when
the House Is adjourned.

Mr O'Neil: it cannot sit while the H-ouse
Is sitting.

Mr SKIDMORE: It says-
*... and may sit on those days over
which the Assembly Is adjourned-

Mr O'Neil*: Keep going.
Mr SKIDMORE. It continues-

-but no Select Committee may sit
during sittings of the Assembly unless
leave Is granted by the House.

Mr O'Neil. It is debarred from sitting
only while we are here.

Mr SKIDMORE: I propound my
thoughts with honesty and sincerity,
whether or not members oppesite or the
Speaker accept them.

I simply say that the intent of Standing
Order 364 is to Provide that the days on
which this House is adjourned are those
days on which the committee may sit.
This House is now sitting on Friday; that
means that once the Houses rises it Is
assumed It Is no longer sitting, and we
may have a sitting of the Select Commit-
tee.

Mr Jamieson: The House has already
sat on that day. The interpretation Is
very clear. I think the Clerks are wrong
on this one.

Mr SKIDMORE: I do not care what
members, who have been here for Years.
wish to put to me. I am firmly convinced
In my mind that what I say is correct,
and that I1 am entitled to disagree with
the Speaker's ruling based on the sincere
belief that I am right. Having said that
I shall not labour the point further.

I have made my point, and the Govern-
ment understands it. I consider that what
I have said is correct. I fall to see how
it can he construed that Standing Order
364 can be so mutilated In its Intent, as

a matter of convenience, to substantiate
that we are able to sit on those days.
merely because the House has risen at any
given time. it will result in this: On any
sitting day we would be faced with the
possibility of being able to have a sittingy
of the committee.

Surely it is not unreasonable that there
should be a restriction, but what has been
put forward by the Government and by
members who have been here a long time
is that there is no restriction.

Mr O'Connor: There is a restriction.
Several members interjected.
Mr SKIDMORE: I suppose whichever

way we look at this I cannot convince
some members. The longer that members
opposite interrupt me the more Pig-headed
I get. If they want me to sit down they
should remain silent. I am one of those
who will not be sat down by interjections
in this House. I do not mind If I stay
here all night and sit tomorrow, to ensure
that the Select Committee does not sit.

Mr Clarko: When you say "tomorrow"
which day do you mean?

Mr SKIDMORE: I mean the next day,
Saturday. I know it is now Friday, even
though some members say it is Thursday.
I have endeavoured to put my point of
view to members. Obviously it will not be
accepted, but I shall not lose any sleep
over that. I would merely conclude my re-
marks by saying-

Mr B. T. Burke: You should not.
Mr SKIDMORE: I shall not allow the

members to prompt me, and they seem to
have stopped interjecting. I say in all sin-
cerity that I believe the construction I
have placed on Standing Order 364-wblist
it may not be in line with the written word
-in that manner is fair and just to the
members of the committee and this House.

Mr HARTREY: I have said repeatedly
in this House, and I say it once more, that
the right way to interpret the words of the
Statute is In their plain, ordinary gram-
matical meaning. If there is any doubt at
all a very good way is to look at the pur-
pose or object of the Stqtute or the par-
ticular provision being considered.

The object and reason that a Select
Committee ought not to sit whilst the
House is sitting is that members of the
Select Committee are members of the
House, and it would be impossible for them
to be in both places at once. Their first
duty is to attend the sittings of this House,
and therefore they ought not to sit on
the committee during the sittings of the
Assembly.

This is what Standing Order 364 pro-
vides. it states that a Select Committee
may adjourn from time to time, and by
order of the Assembly move from place to
place. it is given power to travel from
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place to place by the motion that has been
passed, The Standing Order provides fur-
ther that a Select Committee may sit on
those days over which the Assembly Is
adjourned, but no Select Committee may
sit during the sittings of the Assembly,
except by leave of the House.

Mr Speaker, your ruling is perfectly cor-
rect. I am sick and tired of members dis-
agreeing with you.

Mr JAMIESON: Despite the opinion of
the member for Boulder-Dundas I must
insist on disagreeing with your ruling, Mr
Speaker.

Mr Nanovich interjected.
Mr JAMIESON: The honourable member

can go home any time he wants to. Sitting
days are defined very clearly In the Inter-
pretation Act. It states that used with
reference to either House of Parliament
it means the days on which the House
actually sits. I know that you, Mr Speaker.
are relying on another Standing Order,
different from the one quoted, for your
interpretation. I suggest that applies only
in connection with days on which a Select
Committee is given some sort of permis-
sion. Even when permission is granted a
Select Committee must be made aware
when Parliament is about to be convened;
therefore we need the other Standing
Order.

It seems more than strange to me that
this sort of action has to be taken by the
Government which tries to indicate that it
is dinkumi on this issue. Surely even if
the Select Committee is pressed for time,
it could delay the sittings until Monday
next before starting to take evidence. The
proposal that has been put forward will
only create Problems and discredit the
Chairman of the Select Committee.

Mr Young: Do you have to continue this
charade?

Mr JAMIESON: The tiny little boy
should go home.

Mr Young: You are being so stupid.
Mr JA.MIESON: Go home. The honour-

able member should hide under a bush,
where he has been for weeks. If he does
that nobody will miss him. It is very clear
that the situation has been provoked in a
way that it should not have been. if you,
Mr Speaker, had knowledge of what was
going on you would have advised against
it.

Mr Young: That is a nice thing to say.
Mr JAMIESON: The honourable member

is not being very nice.
Mr Young: That is a delightful thing to

say about the Speaker.
Mr JAM IESON, I say the Speaker would

have advised against it. In view of what
has taken place earlier tonight I say this
has only provoked the situation.

Question (dissent from Speaker's ruling)
put and a division taken with the follow-
ing result-

Mr Barnlett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr.B. T. Burke
Mr T, J. Burke
Mr Carr

Mr Blalkie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Dr Dadour
Mr flartrey
Mr Laurance
Mr Mopharlin
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovich

Ayes
Mr May
Mr McIver
Mr T. V. Evans
Mr Harman
Mr T. H. Jones
Mr. Pletcher
Mr H. D. Evans
Mr JT. T. Tonkin

Ayes 13
Mr Davies
Mr Jamileson
Mr Skidmore
Mr Taylor
Mr A. R. Tornkin
Mr Moller

(TallErl

Noes--21
Mr O'Connor
Mr Old
Mir O'Nel
Mr Ridge
Mr Rushiton
Mr Shaldera
Mr Thompson
Mr Tubby
Mr Young
Mr Clarko

(Teller,

Pairs
Noes

Mr P. V. Jones
Mr Sodeman
Mr Crane
Mr Watt
Mr Stephens
Mr Grayden
Mr Grewer
Mr Sibeon

Question thus negatived.

PARLIAMENTARY SUPERANNUATION
ACT AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-

Treasurer) [2.12 a.m.]: I move-
That the Bill be now read a second

time.
Members will recall that last year a num-
ber of improvements were made to the
parliamentary superannuation scheme In
line with benefits applying In other par-
Ilamentary schemes In Australia.

At the time, the question of payment
of pensions to widowers of female members
of Parliament was raised.

I have had the matter researched at the
proper level and have been advised that
as the Act stands, benefits payable to
widows do not automatically flow to
widowers.

One of the more important provisions
of the Bill before members therefore Is to
Provide for reversionary benefits for
widowers.

Female members contribute to the
scheme on the same basis as male members
and it is therefore logical that reversionary
benefits, which now apply to widows of
male members, should apply equally to
widowers of female members.

The introduction of such a measure
would bring the Western Australian scheme
into line with other parliamentary schemes
in Australia where a widower's benefit,
identical to that applicable to widows, is a
common feature.

it is proposed therefore that the Act be
amended to enable the reversionary bene-
fits which are now payable to the surviving

3967



3988 ASSEMBLY]

spouse of a male member to apply equally
to the surviving spouse of a female
member.

It is also proposed to suitably amend the
Act to ensure that children's allowances
now payable under the Act apply equally
to the dependent children of male and
female members.

The Bill also contains a proposal to lift
the level of the minimum benefit payable
to a widow on the death of her husband.

At present, on the death of a former
member who was In receipt of a pension,
his widow is entitled to receive a pension
equal to five-eighths of his entitlement.

Where a serving member dies after con-
tributing to the fund for no less than
seven years his widow is eligible to receive
a pension equal to five-eighths of the
amount that would have been Payable to
the member had he retired on the date of
his death.

In the circumstances of a member dying
prior to having served seven years, the
widow's pension Is calculated as though he
had served for seven Years as an ordinary
memnber.

On this basis the minimum pension pay-
able to a widow Is five-eighths of a seven
year member's entitlement or 23.75 per
cent of the basic parliamentary salary.

This level of minimum pension Is low
compared with tke minimum benefit ap-
plying in other similar schemes.

For example, in New South Wales,
Queensland, and Tasmania the minimum
rate of pension for a widow is 40 Per cent
of the basic salary payable to a member
at the date the pension emerges.

It is proposed to lift the minimum
benefit payable to a widow under the pre-
sent Act to 35 per cent of a member's basic
salary at the date of his death. This
represents a Pension calculated on the
basis that the member served a minimum
of 16 years as an ordinary member.

While this would be less than the mini-
mum payable in the States mentioned
earlier, the difference is not unreasonable
havint regard to the differing rates of
contribution which apply. Members in
New South Wales and Queensland con-
tribute Ili per cent of salary, those in
Tasmania 12 per cent compared with 10
per cent for members In Western Aus-
tralia.

It is proposed that the revised minimum
benefit should also apply to existing widows
and the Bill contains an appropriate clause
to raise those pensions to the new mini-
mum where applicable, with effect on and
from the first pension day in January.
1977.

Members will appreciate of course that
should the provisions proposed earlier in
relation to widowers' benefits be adopted,
the minimum reversionary benefit would
automatically flow to the widower of a
female member or former member.

The Bill proposes one further amend-
ment. The principal Act now provides that
the pension payable to a widow of a former
member who married prior to his retire-
ment, ceases upon her remarriage if she
has not attained the age of 55 years at
the date of remarriage.

Restoration of the pension can then
occur only if she ceases to be married or
can demonstrate financial hardship.

However, if such a widow remarries after
she has attained the age of 55 years, pay-
ment of the pension is not affected. There
is therefore an anomaly between the rights
of a widow who remarries prior to reach-
!rig the age of 55 years and one who re-
marries after attaining age 55.

For this reason it is proposed to amend
the existing provisions to provide that
when a. remarried widow attains 55 Years,
her previously terminated pension be re-
instated, irrespective of her marital status.

As mentioned previously, should the pro-
posal relating to widowers' pensions be
adopted, a widower In receipt of a pension
would also have his pension reinstated on
attaining age 55 If it were lost earlier due
to remarriage.

I am sure members will agree that the
proposed changes to the scheme are
realistic and desirable.

I commend the Bill to members.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

Jamieson (Leader of the Opposition).

ACTS AMENDMENT (JUDICIAL
SALARIES AND PENSIONS) BILL

Second Reading

SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-
Treasurer) [2.18 am.], I move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

This short Bill is necessary to provide for
alteration to the method of determining
pensions payable to judges consequent
upon a recent recommendation of the
Salaries and Allowances Tribunal to pay
judges an annual allowance to cover the
expenses of office.

Prior to the 1st November, 1976, judges
in this State were not paid allowances in
addition to salary although such allow-
ances have been paid for some time in
other States.

A retired judge who has attained 60
years of age and has served for 10 years
or more receives a pension equal to 50
per cent of salary at the date of retire-
ment. However, as the Act now stands.
any annual allowance paid would not be
taken into account when determining the
pension payable on retirement.

In Victoria, the pension allowance of a
judge is 50 per cent of his salary and
allowance at the date of retirement. The
New South Wales practice is to exclude
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allowances from the determination of pen-
sion but to pay a Pension equal to 60
Per cent of salary only.

It is considered appropriate to regard
an annual allowance as salary for the
purpose of determining pension on retire-
ment and the Bill therefore provides that
an allowance of an annual nature pay-
able to a Judge shall be taken Into
account when calculating the pension pay-
able.

Consistent with the changes already
Proposed to the Parliamentary Super-
annuation Act to provide for widowers'
benefits, it is proposed that the Judges'
Salaries and Pensions Act be amended to
Provide a similar provision under that
Act.

Although no female has as yet been
appointed to the judiciary In Western
Australia, that situation could change in
the future and it is appropriate that pro-
vision be made for the payment of widower
pension benefits on tne death of a female
judge or a former judge.

Under the existing provisions of the
principal Act, a pension payable to the
widow of a former judge, where their
marriage took place before his retirement,
ceases upon her remarriage if she has not
then attained the age of 55 years.

The pension is reinstated during any
period after such remarriage when the
widow is not a party to an existing mar-
riage or can demon-strate financial hard-
ship. However, payment of the pension is
not affected where remarriage occurs after
the widow has attained the age of 55 years.

As Is the case under the parliamentary
scheme it is considered that the widow
who remarries prior to reaching the age
of 55 years and consequently loses her
pension, is dealt with rather harshly in
comparison with the widow who remarries
after attaining the age of 55.

It is proposed therefore that the existing
provisions be amended to provide that
when the remarried widow of a judge at-
tains 55 years of age, and her pension has
been previously terminated due to remar-
riage, it will be reinstated on attaining
that age irrespective of her marital status.

Part 11 of the Bill proposes amendments
to the Solcitor- General Act to provide for
allowances now payable to judges to be
extended to the Solicitor-General.

When the Solicitor-General Act was
passed in 1950, it was agreed that the
Solicitor-General would be Paid the same
salary as a puisne judge of the Supreme
Court but that allowanices and other con-
ditions of service would be as provided in
the Public Service Act.

In view of the decision to pay puisne
judges an annual allowance, It would now
seem appropriate to pay the same allow-
ance to the Solicitor-General. This is also
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the practice in Victoria where the remun-
eration attached to the office of Solicitor-
General is the same as for a puisne judge.

The Bill therefore provides for the
Solicitor-General to be paid the same al-
lowances, including travelling allowance, as
are paid to a puisne judge but that entitle-
ments for leave and other conditions of
service shall be as Provided in the Public
Service Act.

I commend the Bill to honourable mem-
bers.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr
Jamieson (Leader of the opposition).

SUPERANNUJATION AND FAMLY
BENEFITS ACT AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
SIR CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-

Treasurer) [2.23 a.m.]: I move-
That the Bill be now read a second

time.
Members will recall that the Superannua-
tion and Family Benefits Act was amended
last year for the purpose of overcoming
the problem created by the unduly high
contributions which older members of the
fund were required to meet In order to
maintain their full pension entitlement.

While the measure was intended as an
interim one, pending further review of
the scheme, I am able to say it has been
highly effective in achieving its purpose.

In the long term it is probable that
contributions based on a percentage of
salary will offer the only permanent solu-
tion to the unduly high contribution costs
at later ages.

However, the Superannuation Board P nd
the Treasury have recommended that
consideration to any change in the basic
contributions structure of the scheme
should be deferred, at least until the full
implications of the proposed Common-
wealth national superannuation scheme
are known.

Nevertheless, there have been a number
of proposed -amendments put forward to
which the Government has agreed. The
proposals are contained In the Bill before
the House and, in summary, seek to-

(1) Extend the investment powers of
the Superannuation Board to en-
able it to invest in property.

(2) Distribute the surplus in the fund
as at the 30th June, 1974. The
method to be used is the same as
that -applied to the surplus at the
30th June, 1964 and 1069, respec-
tively.

(3) Provide for a system of limited
benefits for employees who, be-
cause of impaired health, are not
currently permitted to join the
fund.
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(4) Revise existing arrangements re-
garding medical examinations re-
quired under the Act.

(5) Provide for accrued Interest to be
added to personal contributions
refunded on resignation.

(6) Extend the period necessary to
qualify for the full Government
share of pension, from 20 to 30
years.

(7) Reduce from 10 to seven years
the minimum period necessary to
qualify for membership of the
f und.

(8) Provide that In calculating the
amount of a restricted pension
due to short service, that the
period of service be calculated in
months rather than years.

(9) Provide for a widow's pension,
terminated on her remarriage
prior to her attaining the age of
55 years, to be restored to her
on attaining that age irrespective
of marital status.

(10) Provide for widows to commute
a proportion of their pension
irrespective of the age at which
their pensions become payable.

(11) Provide for improved child allow-
ances.

(12) Provide for the valuation of the
fund to be carried out on a tri-
ennial basis.

(13) Correct certain deficiencies in the
scheme.

It will be seen from the foregoing summary
that the proposed changes are extensive
and if honourable members will bear with
me I will explain each of the proposals
more fully.

Extension of Board's Investment Powers:
Under existing legislation the Superannua-
tion Board is not permitted to invest in
property generally. A special single purpose
provision in 1964 was necessary to permit
the board to purchase land and build the
existing Superannuation Building.

It is now proposed to broaden the board's
investment powers to permit it to invest
in property. Such Investments would have
the effect of increasing the earning rate
of the fund which in turn would enable
future increased benefits to be financed
from the fund rather than from Consoli-
dated Revenue. There are, for example, a
number of additional benefits proposed in
the IBil which, if adopted, will be financed
entirety from the fund and at no cost to
the Government.

It Is envisaged that the power to acquire
property would also enable the board to
provide additional office accommodation
for Government employees on a basis
mutually acceptable to the board and the
Government. It Is iikely that the provi-
sion of such accommodation would involve
the board leasing Crown land and it is

therefore proposed to permit the board to
acquire and deal in property, either free-
hold or leasehold.

As is the case with all other investments,
the board would not be permitted to make
property investments without the prior
consent of the Treasurer.

Distribution of Surplus: A preliminary
estimate of the surplus generated In the
fund as at the 30th June, 1974, Is $16
million. Ths is close to 13 per cent of the
liability for existing and future pensions
which approximated $126 million at valu-
atlon date.

I know members will be aware of the fact
that these funds are revalued periodically,
and usually provide a surplus. In the case
of Federal funds, they have been fairly
high. This one Is quite large, even though
it is a State fund.

The amount of the surplus would be
more than sufficient to provide an increase
of l0c per fortnight for each unit held on
that date, the same increase which was ap-
plied to units held at each of the two pre-
vious quinquennial valuations in 1964 and
1969 respectively.

It is therefore proposed that an increase
of 10c be applied to all units held at valua-
tion date, the 30th June, 1974. Former
contributors in retirement will receive an
increase of 10e for each unit held at that
date and supplementation will take effect
from the first pension date next year.
Widows' pensions will also be appropriately
adjusted at that time.

An entitlement of ic Per unit will be
credited to serving employees who were
contributors to the fund at the 30th June,
1974. which they will receive on retire-
muent.

Limited Benefits: Under existing provi-
sions of the Act employees who are able
to meet the required medical standard
and who are otherwise eligible, are per-
mitted to join the fund. However, the
Act provides no cover for those with im-
paired lives.

All other State funds and that of the
Commonwealth have some form of limited
benefits for such persons and it is pro-
posed that a similar practice be adoptcd
in this State.

it Is proposed therefore that the super-
annuation scheme be extended to speci-
fically cater for-

(a) those who, for medical reasons,
are not acceptable as first-class
assurance risks; and

(b) those who, because their health
is so impaired, are deemed to be
uninsurable.

For thlose in the firstmentioned category,
it is proposzed that-

(i) where death or invalidity occurs in
the first three years of c.ontri-
butory service, due to a condition
existing but wilfully undisclosed
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on entry to the fund, the benefit
will be a refund of contributions
plus interest;

k it) where death or invalidity occuirs
in the first three Years of con-
tributory service, due to a condi-
tion either disclosed or unknown
on entry to the fund, the benefit
will be three and a half times
Primary contributions plus in-
terest. However, where the board
is of the opinion, upon receipt of
medical advice or other informa-
tion, that the cause of death or
invalidity was unrelated to the
medical condition imposing the
restricted benefit, full benefits will
be payable;

(tit) where death or invalidity occurs
in the fourth Year of contributory
service that the pension payable
will be 40 per cent of full benefits,
progressively increasing by 6 per
cent for each subsequent Year of
contributory service to 100 per
cent of full benefits after 13 years;

Qiv) upon the attainment of 60 years
normal age retirement benefits
will apply.

To cater for those who have uninsurable
lives, it is proposed to suitably extend the
provisions of the Provident Account. A
standard contribution rate of 5 per cent
of salary is proposed and the benefit pay-
able on death or invalidity prior to retire-
ment will be three and a half times con-
tributions plus interest. Normal age reti-
rement benefits, applicable to full benefit
contributors, would be available on retire-
ment at any age after the attainment of
60 years.

It is also proposed that provision be
made to permit a limited benefit contri-
butor, whether In category (a) or (b), to
transfer to a higher benefit scale on the
production of satisfactory medical evidence
of improved health.

Revised medical Arrangements: At pre-
sent. intending members to the fund or
existing members wishing to take up
neglected units, are able to have appro-
priate medical examinations undertaken by
any medical practitioner of their choice.
Experience has shown that this practice
has led to a wide variation in medical
standards for entry to the fund and for
the purchase of neglected units.

To ensure uniformity of medi~cal stan-
dards, it is proposed that as soon as the
necessary arrangements can be made, ex-
pected to be early 1977. all medical exami-
nations required by the board will be un-
dertaken by one of a panel of medical
practitioners nominated by the board upon
the recommendation of Its medical con-
sultant. Each member of the panel will be
advised regularly by the medical consultant
regarding medical standards.

It is proposed that the panel will be
comprised of medical Practitioners do-
miciled at various locations throughout the

State to ensure minimum inconvenience to
members and prospective members of the
fund.

In addition to providing uniform medical
standards, the foregoing arrangements will
complement the introduction of the system
of limited benefits.

Interest Component on Registration: At
present where a member of the fund
resigns from the service he or she receives
a refund of Personal contributions made
to the fund. It is now Proposed that
accrued interest at a rate determined by
the board from time to time be added to
the amount of those contributions and
the additional cost Incurred be borne by
the fund.

Qualifying Period for Full State Benefits:
In 1967, the minimum pariod of aggregate
service required to attrat the full Gov-
ernment share of pension was extended
from 10 Years to 20 years. All new en-
trants to the service after the 28th De-
cember, 1967, must serve 20 years before
becoming entitled to the full Government
share of pension.

New entrants after that date, unable to
give the required minimum service, re-
ceive a proportional adjustment to that
share of the Pension. For example, where
such an employee is able to give, say, 15
Years service before retirement, it is
reduced to 15/20ths or 75 per cent of the
full share.

With the single exception of New South
Wales, no other Public Service scheme in
Australia provides a full Government-fin-
anced pension for less than 30 years'
service.

The minimum period of service to ob-
tain the full benefit in the Commonwealth
scheme, and in Victoria and South Austra-
lia, is 30 Years. Comparable benefits are
available in Tasmania and Queensland
only after 40 years' service.

It is considered that the benefit payable
in this State in regard to this important
aspect of the pension should be brought
into line with that applying generally in
other funds similar to our own.

It is therefore proposed that the mini-
mum qualifying Period for full State
benefits be increased to 30 years for new
entrants to the service after the 1st Janu-
ary, 1977.

Accordingly, where such an employee is
able to give 15 years service before retire-
ment, the Government share of the pen-
sion would be reduced to 15/3Oths or 50
IPer cent of the full State component of
pension.

After 20 years' service 20/30ths or 66.67
Per cent of the full component would
apply.

AS members will be aware, membership
of the superannuation scheme is not com-
pulsory for many State employees. For
this reason there are employees currently
in service who have not, as Yet, joined the
fund. I would stress that such employees.
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who may elect at some future time to join
the fund, would be required to giva only
20 years' aggregate service for full bene-
fits, as the new provision relates only to
those who Join the service of the State
after the date of assent to this Bill.

Minimum Service to Qualify for Pension:
At present a contributor to the fund must
be able to serve a. minimum period of 10
years with the State to become entitled
to any pension on retirement. It is sug-
gested that this period is too long and that
a pension, appropriately reduced for
limited service, be payable after a period
of 7 years.

Members will appreciate that the pro-
posed minimum period corresponds to that
which applies under the Parliamentary
Superannuation Scheme before pension
becomes payable.

The measure will enable existing and
future employees who are able to give at
least seven years' service to join the fund
and receive a portion of the full pension
on retirement.

Calculation of Restricted Pension: Under
the provisions of the Act relating to
restriction of the pension due to short
service, credit is given for completed years;
only. This discriminates against a person
who serves, say, 12 years and 11 months,
and is consequently credited with only 12
years' service.

It is therefore proposed to appropriately
amend the Act to provide for service to be
calculated in months rather than years
and so remove the anomaly.

Widows' Pensions: Under existing legis-
lation where marriage occurs prior to retire-
ment a pension equal to 22/S5ths of the
husband's entitlement becomes Payable to
his widcw on his death. If the widow
remarries and is then under 55 years of
age her pension is terminated. If the
widow had attained the age of 55 at the
time of the remarriage the pension would
continue.

In line with the recently proposed
changes to the Parliamentary Superan-
nuation Act, it is proposed to appropriately
amend the Act to provide that where the
widow's pension is terminated on her re-
marriage prior to her attaining the age
of 55 years, it be restored on her attain-
ing that age, regardless of her then
marital status.

Where marriage occurs after retirement,
a standard widow's Pension is payable to
the widow on the death of her husband,
provided she has attained the age of 55
years. Where the widow has not attained
the age of 55 years at the time of her
husband's death, she becomes entitled to
the pension on attaining that age.

Again in line with corresponding pro-
posals in the parliamentary scheme It is
Proposed that the Pension payable to a
widow, where marriage occurs after the
retirement of the former member, be ter-
minated on her remarriage at any time.

Commutation of Widow's Benefit: Under
existing legislation a widow is not per-
mitted to commute any part of her pen-
sion unless or until she has attained the
age of 60 years. Experience has shown
that in a number of instances where the
widow has not attained that age, access
to a lump sum would have been a very
real benefit.

It is therefore proposed that the provi-
sion disallowing commutation prior to the
age of 60 years be relaxed and that widows
be Permitted to commute up to 25 per cent
of the fund's share of their pensions at any
age they become widowed, provided that
an election to do so is made within six
months of the husband's death.

Revision of Child Allowance: Under the
existing legislation the child allowance
payable to children of deceased members
is $8 per week per child. This rate has
applied from January, 1971, and it is now
proposed to increase the amount to $12
per week per child and that the Increased
cost so Imposed be borne by the fund.

The minimum benefit currently payable
to a "double orphan" Is $10 per week in-
creasing commensurate with the unit-
holding of the contributing parent. It is
proposed that the minimum benefit pay-
able to a "double orphan" be increased to
$20 per week and that the increased lia-
bility be borne by the fund.

Triennial Valuations: The Act currently
requires an actuarial investigation of
the state and sufficiency of the fund to be
carried out at five-year Intervals.

Rapid growth and changes in economic
circumstances have led other public service
superannuation funds to carry out trien-
nial valuations and the recent introduc-
tion of computer systems would permit us
to follow this trend.

It is proposed that the Act be suitably
amended to reduce the period between
valuations from five to three years.

Miscellaneous: As I indicated earlier the
Bill also proposes to correct certain defici-
encies in the scheme. I shall deal with each
of them briefly.

Lump Sum Payable on Retrenchment:
Under existing legislation, where an em-
ployee is retrenched after at least 10 years'
service, he or she receives a lump sum
benefit equal to three and a half times per-
sonal contributions which have been paid
into the fund. Subsidisatlon by the State
therefore amounts to two and a half times
those contributions.

It was never intended that the State
should be required to pay a retrenchment
benefit in respect of contributions paid
in advance at the date of termination of
service nor in respect of contributions
made in excess of the primary unit entitle-
ment level which in effect constitute re-
serve units to be taken up at some future
date.
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it is therefore proposed that the Act be
appropriately amended to ensure that on
retrenchment the lump sum is calculated
on primary unit entitlement contributions
only.

"Double" State Subsidisatlon of Pensions:
In recent years an increasing number of
State employees have become eligible to
join endowment assurance type superan-
nuation schemes. Such schemes are oper-
ated, for example, by the Teacher Educa-
tion Authority and the WA Institute of
Technology for their employees as an
optional alternative to the State super-
annuation scheme.

Where resignation occurs from such
schemes, in instances where the accrued
benefit Is not transferred to a new em-
ployer, the resigning member receives, in
the form of a lump sum, all of the con:tri-
butions; paid by the State on his behalf
during the term of his employment.

If such a person subsequently returns
to the service of the State and joins the
superannuation fund, he or she would be
automatically credited with forner State
service and on eventual retirement, could
receive a full Government subsidised pen-
sion. As a result, such a person would
receive a double pension benefit at the
taxpayers' expense.

It is therefore proposed to suitably
amend the Act to ensure that in any such
Instances, credit for previous service will
be conditional upon repayment to the
Crown of any employer contributions re-
ceived upon the termination of any period
of former service.

Inward Transfers from Other Funds:
Where a contributor to the Common-
wealth superannuation fund or to another
State fund transfers in employment to
this State, credit for years of service in
the former fund Is given provided the
transferring employee pays into the WA
fund the refund of personal contributions
received on resignation from the former
fund.

There have been Instances where trans-
ferring employees have received, on resig-
nation from their former fund, a sum
comprising employer contributions In addi-
tion to a refund of their personal contri-
butions.

As the Act stands no account is made
of any employer element included in the
lump sum a former employee receives and
it Is proposed that in future any such
employer element Is to be paid to the
Treasury before credit for former service
is given.

This Is a logical provision as the State,
as the new employer, assumies responsi-
bility for the Payment of the employer
component of pension when it emerges.

Reserve Units of Pension:. in 1947 the
Act was -amended to enable contributing
members to contribute, in addition to their
normal entitlement, up to eight reserve
units of pension.

In common with Provisions existing in
most other similar funds the purpose of
the eight reserve units was to enable con-
tributors to secure units at an early age
at low cost to be applied later during their
career when the cost of units would be
greater.

Following the 1970 amendments to the
Act, contributors generally became en-
titled to contribute for a much greater
number of units in excess of their primary
entitlement which In due course can be
converted to primary units as entitlement
arises. For this reason the original func-
tion of the eight reserve units introduced
in 1947 has become redundant.

Apart from their redundancy, the
existence of reserve units presents an un-
necessary and costly complication to the
board's accounting system, and It is pro-
posed that existing reserve unit holders--
approximately 2 per cent of contributors--
be given the choice of either withdrawing
their units or transferring them to benefit
units.

This concludes my explanation of the
proposals contained In the Bill.

There is, however, a further matter that
I wish to raise and that relates to the
question of widowers' pensions under this
scheme. I think this is of special interest
to members.

Members will appreciate that provision
has now been made for the payment of
widowers' pensions under the Parliamen-
tary Superannuation Act and Judges'
Salaries and Pensions Act.

There are however, a number of diffi-
culties which inhibit the early Introduc-
tion of similar provisions under the Super-
annuation and Family Benefits Act.

Female members of Parliament contri-
bute on the same basis as male members.
This is not the ease under the State
superannuation scheme and the recent ex-
tension to provide for widowers' pensions
under the Parliamentary Superannuation
Act does not provide an automatic prece-
dent.

Under the Superannuation and Family
Benefits Act a widowers' pension is payable
to the husband of a female contributor
if he Is wholly or substantially dependent
upon her at the time of her death. Female
contribution rates do not provide for the
payment of widowers' benefits regardless
of dependency, and consequently, the
introduction of such a benefit would re-
quite .substantial increases in those rates.

It is anticipated that after the results
of the current quinquennial investigation
have been fully evaluated, the rates for
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both male and female contributors will
need to be reviewed and consequently it
would be inappropriate at this time to
introduce a new scale for female contribu-
tors.

Moreover, if contribution rates for fe-
males were to be increased, strong objec-
tions could be expected from those who
would be unlikely to benefit and from
those whose dependent husbands are
protected under the existing rate structure.

It is arguable that should provision be
made for widowers' pensions regardless of
dependency, it should not be compulsory
for females to contribute for the benefit
and that an optional alternative rate
should be devised for the purpose.

There are therefore several complexities
associated with the provision of widowers'
pensions under the Superannuation and
Family Benefits Act which need to be
resolved and discussed with contributors'
representatives before any conclusion is
reached.

It is the view of the Superannuation
Board, which is supported by the Joint
Superannuation Committee, that more
time is required to satisfactorily examine
all ramifications of this question.

The Government concurs with this view
and has agreed to deferment of the ques-
tion at this time but would be prepared to
introduce legislation on this aspect in the
next session should it be considered war-
ranted In the light of further study by
the Superannuation Board and contribu-
tors' representatives.

I want to emphasise that the Govern-
ment has committed Itself to such legisla-
tion, but members will appreciate the
complexity of the problem. A considerable
number of single women work in the Public
Service and these women have no depend-
ants. They enjoy a special rate, and would
obviously react fairly sharply if their rate
of contribution were increased for depend-
ants they do not have. Then another
problem arises. If we give special treat-
ment to the single women, we would find
that sworn bachelors in the Public Service
would then want a special rate also.

Mr Skidmore: We are having trouble
with the equality business, aren't we?

Sir CHARLES COURT: I1 will say we are.
However, all parties have agreed that the
matter will be studied. We may have to
create a special category and if women do
not wish to contribute so that their de-
pendants may benefit, they will not have
to. However, those are technicalities and
intricacies that are quite impossible to
work out in time for this session. The Sup-
erannuation Board as well as the contri-
butors' representatives are agreed on this
Point. It will take some months to work
this matter out.

The cost of many improvements pro-
posed will be met from the fund and will
therefore not impact on Consolidated
Revenue,

Proposals relating to the introduction of
limited benefits, the restoration of widows'
pensions on attaining the age of 55 years,
and granting entry to the fund with seven
rather than 10 years' service or prospective
service, will increase the State's liability on
pensions.

It is difficult to make any reliable esti-
mate of the additional cost to the State
as there are insufficient data available to
enable an accurate assessment of the num-
bers likely to be affected In most cases.
However, the net additional liability is not
expected to be great,

The proposed changes have been ex-
plained to contributors' representatives
through the Joint Superannuation Com-
mittee and I am advised that they are
acceptable generally. I am sure the
changes proposed will be seen as very
positive Improvements which go a long
way towards removing some shortcomings
and modernising the State superannua-
tion scheme.

One thing In particular, of course, is
that those people who, because of a health
condition, cannot be accepted as normal
contributors, will find that some very
worth-while changes are included in this
legislation.

I commend the Bill to members.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

Jamieson (Leader of the Opposition).

LEGAL AID COMMSSION BILL
Second Reading

MR O'NEIL (East Melville-Minister for
Works) [2.49 am.3: I move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

The Bill presently before the House is de-
signed to set up an independent State
legal aid commission.

For same time, the State Goverrnent
has been negotiating with the Common-
wealth Government in regard to the set-
ting up of a commission so as to overcome
the duplication which at present exists In
relation to State and Commonwealth legal
aid schemes.

members should appreciate that legal
aid is basically a State matter under the
Constitution and that for many years the
State Government has subsidised the pro-
vision of legal aid which has been adminis-
tered by the Law society on a voluntary
or partly paid basis.

in addition, since 1973, the Common-
wealth Government has been providing
legal aid to certain personnel and In rela-
tion to certain types of matters through
the Australian Legal Aid Office.
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The Government has been acutely aware
of the defects which exist in the current
schemes, some of which may be summar-
ised as follows-

(a) that a person with a need for
legal assistance may be able to
receive partial assistance only
from the Australian Legal Aid
Office (ALAO);

(b,) that such a person may then have
to resort to the Law Society scheme
thereby involving the need to visit
both offices with consequent in-
convenience and delay;

(c) that there is a consequent dupli-
cation in certain areas thereby
entailing additional expense and
waste of professional skill and
public funds;

(d) that the ALAO scheme has been
criticised on the basis that the
normal solicitor-client relation-
ship cannot be said to exist where
the Government is providing the
service, particularly if the Gov-
erment happens to be a party
to the proceedings;

(e) that qualified professional per-
sonnel have not In all cases been
used in a qualified Professional
role thereby entailing a waste of
professional skill;

(f) it is uneconomical for both the
ALAC and the Law Society to
each send practitioners to remote
centres when one practitioner
could do the work. This dupli-
cation of costs and expenses has
occurred quite often.

Another illustration of a common problem
is the case of an unemployed Person
awaiting trial. While unemployed be is
entitled to the services of the ALAO. If
he is convicted, however, he no longer
comes under that classification. The ALAG
no longer acts for him and his case has
to be taken up by the Law Society.

Further, there has been a disturbing
tendency in some parts of Australia,' not
necessarily here, for the various services
providing legal aid to compete with one
another with consequent additional ex-
pense to public funds, and even in some
cases involving delay and protraction of
litigation. We would not want this situa-
tion to arise here.

It is our philosophy that State Govern-
ment constitutional responsibilities should
be accepted by the State Government and
not fobbed off onto the Commonwealth.

It is Just too easy for pliant State poli-
ticians to echo the Whitlamn Government
by saying "The Commonwealth should run
legal aid by extending the ALAO." There
is no warrant for the Commonwealth to

run legal aid. In fact there is a warrant
for the State to do so. It Is the best and
most effective way of doing so and will
give the greatest satisfaction to those
people who need it.

Taking all these matters into account
the Government has reached the conclu-
sion that the proper course is for legal
aid to be accepted as a State responsibility
as it truly is and with the co-operation
of the Commonwealth Government for an
Independent legal aid commission to be
set up to administer all types of legal aid
available to members of the public in this
State other than those provided by the
Aboriginal Legal Service.

The latter service will continue to oper-
ate and function under Commonwealth
Government sponsorship and will not be
affected by the proposals In the Bill.

The Bill proposes to set up a commission
which will be a body corporate having a
status In its own right and not directly
under the control of the Government. The
commission will consist of seven persons
and will comprise a chairman who shall be
a legal practitioner, having the qualifica-
tions of a Supreme Court Judge, one per-
son who has had senior administrative ex-
perience, and is not a legal practitioner:
three private legal practitioners to be sel-
ected from a Panel submitted by the Law
Society: a person appointed to represent
the interests of consumers-if I may use
this term to describe those persons who
may be In need of legal aid-on the nom-
ination of the Minister for Consumer Af-
fairs; and a person appointed to represent
the Commonwealth. In addition there will
be a full time professional director and
staff .

The chairman will be a legal practi-
tioner appointed by the Governor on the
nomination of the Attorney-General, but
need not necessarily be a legal practitioner
in private practice. There will be three
private practitioners on the commission
and the preponderance of private legal
practitioners. whilst not In a majority, is
nevertheless necessary as the scheme has
to be made to work by, and will depend for
its success on, the co-operation of the legal
profession.

Each member of the commission will
hold office for a period not exceeding three
years and membership will be on a part-
time basis. The functions of the commis-
sion will be to provide legal assistance and
to control and administer the legal aid
fund of Western Australia.

This fund will comprise contributions by
the State and Commonwealth Govern-
ments in addition to moneys paid in pur-
suant to the Legal Contribution Trust Act,
1967, in respect of interest on solicitors'
trust accounts, together with any other
sources of revenue which may become
available.
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The commission will be able to provide
legal assistance by way of legal aid in re-
lation to proceedings in all courts and tri-
bunals, as well as appeals and other mat-
ters nornally dealt with in legal offices.
In addition the commission may provide
legal assistance by way of legal aid
through duty counsel at any court or by
providing legal advice to any person.

The attention of members is drawn to
the definition of "legal aid" in clause 4 of
the Bill. A suggestion has been made that
this definition does not clearly include as-
sistance in the form of representation in
proceedings as it Is intended to do, and it
Is my intention to move an amendment to
put this beyond possible doubt when the
Bill is at the Committee stage.

The services of the director and the staff
will be available, and the services of private
practitioners will be made available by
assignment by a legal aid committee or
committees to be appointed by the com-
mission.

These legal aid committees will assist
the commission in the processing of ap-
plications for legal assistance and in de-
termination of matters of detail int rela-
tion to specific assignments of work to
practitioners. Legal aid committees will
work under guidelines laid down by the
commission. Legal aid may be provided to
any person who is in need of legal aid by
being unable to afford the full cost of
obtaining from a private practitioner the
legal services required and where the legal
aid committee considers it reasonable in
all the circumstances to provide legal aid.

A person who is refused legal assistance
may appeal and his application must then
be reconsidered. If he is still dissatisfied
as a result of the reconsideration he has
a further right of appeal to a review com-
mittee comprising an independent private
practitioner, a member of the commission
and a person who is not a, practitioner.
The decision of the review committee is
final.

Where private practitioners are assigned
they will receive for the performance of
legal services such fee as shall be pre-
scribed either on a lump Sum basis or on
the basis of such percentage of the fee
which would be payable in the ordinary
coursie of practice as is approved by the
commission and prescribed by the rules:
which rules will of course be tabled In
Parliament.

The commission will have to manage on
a budget to be allocated and will have to
so order its affairs that it Provides such
legal assistance as may be required within
its budget. Amongst its duties it must
ensure the Provision of legal assistance in
the mast effective, efficient and economical
manner, establish local offices where ne-
cessary, determine priorities in the provi-
sian of legal assistance, determine the
matters in respect of which lega] services
may be Performed and determine guidelines
to assist legal aid committees.

In guiding committees as to the alloca-
tion or work between private practitioners
and practitioners employed by the com-
mission, the commission will have to bear
in mind-

(1) the importance of maintaining
the Independence of the private
legal profession;

(2) the desirability of an assisted per-
son being entitled to select the
practitioner whom he wishes to
act for him;

(3) the desirability of a salaried legal
service being used where appro-
priate in the delivery of legal
assistance services; and,

(4) the need for legal services to be
readily available and easily acces-
sible to disadvantaged people.

The commission will also be required to
take into account the recommendations of
a Commonwealth commission which will
have a monitoring and advisory role, and
on which it is intended that the State Gov-
erynent will be represented when it is
set up.

The commission will be required to
accept and account for trust moneys in
all respects in accordance with the law
and any trust funds held by it from time
to time will be subject to the Legal Con-
tribution Trust Act and so carry interest
for the purposes of that Act. Surplus trust
funds over and above those required to
be invested for the Purposes of that Act
may be Invested at interest for the pur-
Poses of legal aid.

The person to be appointed director of
legal aid will be an experienced practitioner
and will be appointed by the Governor on
the recommendation of the commission,
after it has been set up and 'on terms and
conditions to be determined by it.

It is proposed that the staff of the
ALAO will be given the opportunity of
joining the commission as members of Its
staff should they wish to join, If. how-
ever, they do not wish to join then this
will be a matter for their Private decision.
If they do wish to join, an appropriate
arrangement will be made to ensure that
their superannuation and other benefits
will be Protected.

Likewise, Law Society staff engaged in
legal assistance may be transferred to the
commission with protection as to benefits.
All employees transferred from the ALAO
or the law society will retain their existing
salaries and allowances.

It is hoped that the legal aid scheme
will come into operation as at the 1st
July, 1977, which is the target date, for
which purposes it is necessary that the
legislation be passcd during the current
Session. Thereafter the commission can
be appointed and other administrative ar-
rangements made to ensure that the com-
mission Is ready to operate by the target
date.
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Agreement in principle has been arrived
at between the Western Australian and
Commonwealth Governments on the basis
of the terms of the legislation which Is
now embodied in the Bill.

The Government is proud to be able to
say that this is another "first" for West-
ern Australia. Members will be aware
that this State was the first and so far
the only State to Institute a State Family
Court by arrangement with the Common-
wealth Government. Other States have
been making inquiries concerning the
workings of our Family Court which has
demonstrated that it does not suffer from
the constitutional problems which have
attended the introduction Into other States
by the Commonwealth Government of the
Family Court of Australia. In all the
other States it will be necessary for ad-
justments to be made in relation to the
constitution of family courts, but this Is
unnecessary In the case of our own State
Family Court because State jurisdiction
has been conferred upon it as well as
Commonwealth jurisdiction.

The Government believes that the same
result will ensue In relation to legal aid.
Instead of a litigant having to go from
one legal aid service to another because
they deal with different matters, Com-
mnonwealth and State, it will now be pos-
sible for one service to be provided to
the public which will have the ability and
the power to deal with matters of both
Commonwealth and State jurisdiction.
Applicants will be able to bring proceed-
ings in any court. State or Federal, and
will be able to receive assistance and
advice Irrespective of whether or not they
might be migrants, es-servicemen or
women, pensioners or otherwise.

It is considered that this Is the most
satisfactory arrangement to make in res-
pect of a matter as basic and necessary as
legal aid, and the Government believes
that other States eventually will come to
a realisation that this is the appropriate
course to follow.

For these reasons I commend the Bill
to the House.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr
Barnett.

LEGAL CONTRIBUTION TRUST ACT
AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
MR O'NEIL (East Melville-Minister for

Works) [3.02 a.m.3: I move-
That the Bill be now read a second

time.
This Bill is a corollary to the Legal Aid
commission Bill. The main purpose oif
the Bill is to provide that the Interest on
solicitors' trust accounts will be paid to
the Legal Aid Commission in lieu of to
the Law Society as hitherto. The funds
will be used for the provision of legal aid
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and for the other purposes as envisaged
by the Legal Contribution Trust Act.
These are that by arrangement with the
Law Society part of the funds can be
applied, at the Minister's discretion, to-
wards law reform, legal research and edu-
cation. This arrangement will continue
under the Bill.

The functions conferred on the Law
Society under the Act will for the most
part be transferred to the commission.

The Bill contains other complementary
provisions resulting from the above change.

I commend the Bill to the House.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

Barnett.
House adjourned at 3.03 am. (Friday).
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The PRESIDENT (the Hon. A. F.
Griffith) took the Chair at 4.30 p.m., and
read Prayers.

BILLS (10): ASSENT
Message from the Governor received and

read notifying assent to the following

1. Teacher Education Act Amendment
Bill.

2. 'Rural and Industries Bank Act
Amendment Bill.

3. Iron Ore (Hamersley Range) Agree-
ment Act Amendment Bill.

4. Iron Ore (Mount Bruce) Agreement
Act Amendment Bill.

5. Education Act Amendment Bill (No.
2),

6. Stamp Act Amendment Bill.
7. Local Government Act Amendment

Bill (No. 5).
S. Nickel (Agnew) Agreement Act

Amendment Bill.
9. Small Claims Tribunals Act Amend-

ment Bill.
10. Rights in Water and irrigation Act

Amendment Bill.

QUESTION ON NOTICE
ABORIGINES

Cane River Village

The Hon. J. C. TOZER, to the Min-
ister for Community Welfare:

Would the Minister Please confirm
that the people of the Noualls
group at and about Onslow do, in
fact, wish to live at a future Cane
River village, in view of the fact
that as late as last weekend the
three groups at the Noualla Com-
munity Centre in the town, the
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